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Leading the way

in Asia, Africa and the Middle East

Here for good
standardchartered.com/np

About us

Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited has been in
operation in Nepal since 1987. It was initially registered
as a joint-venture operation. The Bank today is an integral
part of Standard Chartered Group having an ownership
of 75% with 25% shares owned by the Nepalese public.
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal enjoys the status of
being a subsidiary of Standard Chartered Bank, a leading
international bank in the world.

Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited offers a full
range of banking products and services in Consumer,
Wholesale and SME Banking by catering to a wide range
of customers encompassing individuals, mid-market local
corporate, multinationals, large public sector companies,
government corporations, hotels as well as the Development
Organisation (DO) segment comprising embassies, aid
agencies, NGOs and INGOs.

Standard Chartered is a leading international banking group.
It has operated for over 150 years in some of the world’s
most dynamic markets and earns around 90 per cent of
its income and profits in Asia, Africa and the Middle East.
This geographic focus and commitment to developing deep
relationships with clients and customers has driven the
Bank’s growth in recent years. Standard Chartered PLC is
listed on the London and Hong Kong stock exchanges as
well as the Bombay and National Stock Exchanges in India.

The Bank has been the pioneer in introducing ‘customer
focused’ products and services and aspires to continue to
be a leader in introducing new products and in delivering
superior services. It is one of the first Banks in Nepal to
implement the Anti-Money Laundering policy and to apply
the ‘Know Your Customer’ procedures.

With 1,700 offices in 68 markets, the Group offers exciting and
challenging international career opportunities to over 89,000
staff. It is committed to building a sustainable business over
the long term and upholding high standards of corporate
governance, social responsibility, environmental protection and
employee diversity. Standard Chartered’s heritage and values
are expressed in its brand promise, ‘Here for good’.
With 19 points of representation, 23 ATMs across
the country and more than 450 local staff, Standard
Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd. has carved a position to serve
its customers through an extensive domestic network.
In addition, the global network of Standard Chartered
Group gives the Bank a unique opportunity to provide truly
international banking services in Nepal.

Online
For further information please visit
www.standardchartered.com/np

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of
Standard Chartered’s ambition to become the world’s
best international bank and is the mainstay of the Bank’s
values. The Bank believes in delivering shareholder value in
a socially, ethically and environmentally responsible manner.
Standard Chartered throughout its long history has played
an active role in supporting those communities in which its
customers and staff live. The Bank supports its customers
and clients to contribute for sustainable economic growth.
The Bank also supports communities to promote local social
and economic development.
Through Employee Volunteering (EV) and our community
programmes (e.g. Seeing is Believing and Living with HIV),
we work with partners to deliver initiatives that promote
positive social and economic outcomes for people in our
markets.
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Performance highlights
Delivering growth

Profit After Tax

Total Shareholders Equity

(In NPR Million)
1,025

1,086

2008/09 2009/10

(In NRs. Million)

1,119

1,169

2010/11 2011/12

1,218

2012/13

Earning Per Share (In NRs.)
109.99

77.65

2008/09 2009/10

69.51

72.60

2010/11 2011/12

241

2008/09 2009/10

228

256

2010/11 2011/12

3,370

2008/09 2009/10

3,678

4,122

2010/11 2011/12

4,618

2012/13

Return on Total Assets
(In %)
65.70

2012/13

2.56

2.70

2008/09 2009/10

2.55

2.80

2010/11 2011/12

2.67

2012/13

Market Value Per Share

Net Worth Per Share (In NRs.)
328

3,052

(In NRs.)
249

2012/13

6,010

3,279

2008/09 2009/10

1,800

1,799

2010/11 2011/12

1,820

2012/13
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Operational overview
Building diversity

Financial highlights
Operating Income

Operating Profit

Total Assets

2,777m

1,862m

45,631m

Capital Adequacy

Return on equity

Dividend

12.54%

26.38%

50%

Non-financial highlights
Points of representation

19

Employees

454

Operational highlights

n Record income and operating
profit despite ongoing margin
compression
n Broad based and diversified
sources of income growth in
both Consumer and Wholesale
Banking
n Conscious decision to invest to
underpin future growth in both
businesses

n Disciplined and proactive
approach to risk management in
both Consumer and Wholesale
Banking
n Diverse, liquid, well capitalised
and robust balance sheet
composition
n Strong market capitalisation of
~ Rs. 34 Billion reflecting high
shareholder confidence

Company overview

Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited has continued to deliver consistent, diverse and sustained
growth while investing to underpin future momentum and building balance sheet resilience
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Chairman’s statement
Consistent strategy

We are putting renewed
focus on our clients and
customers, on building
deep and long-standing
relationships, on improving
the service delivery and
solutions
– Sunil Kaushal, Chairman
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Past year remained challenging because of socio-political
reasons and slowdown in economic growth. We however,
continued to invest cautiously in expanding products and
services and in enhancing skills of our people. Our focus
was to stick to our strategy and the basics of good banking;
we continued to grow with clients and customers with
whom we have deep, and in many cases long, relationships.
We are confident of our ability to perform and grow; we also
have the ability to win more market share. Our network
provides us an edge over our competitors to be a bridge for
trade and investment flows between Nepal and the outside
world. We are fulfilling our social purpose and helping to
drive the economic growth by supporting our customers
and clients. We are helping in facilitating their trade and
by identifying and supporting their partnerships and
investments.
We continue to follow the basics of prudent banking i.e.
being strongly capitalised and highly liquid; managing risks
proactively; keeping tight control of costs and staying well
diversified. This has helped us to make our balance sheet
and earnings resilient. We are putting renewed focus on
our clients and customers, on building deep and longstanding relationships, on improving the service delivery and
solutions.
We will be held to our brand promise, Here for good,
and continue to work hard to embed this commitment in
everything we do; we will try to do the right thing and take
a long-terms view of our obligations to our shareholders,
our clients and customers and the communities in which
we operate. Our brand is the most valuable asset which
is at the heart of our strategic intent i.e. to be the world’s
best international Bank, leading the way in Asia, Africa and
the Middle East. Here for good complements the Bank’s
strategy, and also its values. Our brand is deeply embedded
in our community and we will make all efforts to remain the
best brand in this market.

Results – A Synopsis
Financial Highlights
n Net Profit after tax rose by 4.19 percent to Rs.1.218
billion compared to Rs. 1.169 billion in the previous year.
n Earnings per share has decreased by Rs. 6.90 to 65.70
due to increase in number of shares.
n Risk Assets increased by 16.7 percent to Rs.23.14 billion
compared to Rs. 19.83 billion last year.
n Deposits increased by 9.7 percent to Rs. 39.47 billion
compared to Rs. 35.96 billion last year.

A Consistent Performance
Your Bank has been delivering a consistent performance
year on year. Because of yet another good performance,
the Bank has contributed an amount of Rs. 527 million to
the Government Exchequer as compared to Rs. 515 million
last year on account of corporate tax.
In accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements, the Board recommends a transfer of
Rs. 27,970,545 to Exchange Fluctuation Reserve and
transfer of Rs. 243,588,150 into General Reserve Fund.
Further, the Board has proposed the dividend of 40 percent
for which Rs 741,560,000 has been appropriated towards
dividend. Board has also proposed to increase the capital by
issuing 10 percent bonus share for which Rs 185,390,000
has been allocated from current year profit.
Our Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital Adequacy Ratios were 11.03
percent and 1.51 percent respectively with an overall ratio
of 12.54 percent, post appropriations. Our capital position
is more than adequate to meet our business needs and
exceeds the current Nepal Rastra Bank’s capital adequacy
requirement under the Basel II capital accord and also
exceeds the international norms.

Economic Environment
Global Scenario
World economy, last year, continued to be a rollercoaster
ride with new twists and turns. Number of challenges stood
on the path of recovery and growth. Major highlights were
Euro zone crisis, US fiscal cliff, threat of instability of Chinese
economy, high current account deficit in India and sensitive
and complex policy environment of emerging markets. As
a result it was a bumpy ride as policy makers were trying
to correct the situation with different fiscal and monetary
arsenals. Rage of competitive devaluation of currencies and
US budget sequester made quite a headlines.

Company overview

I am happy to report that your Bank has delivered yet
another year of record income and profits. Our performance
indicates that we are consistently moving ahead with the
right strategy and the right leadership to deliver value for our
shareholders.
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Chairman’s statement continued

Our history shapes the way we think
about the future: we keep an emphasis
on organic growth, invest with a longterms perspective and build diverse
income streams.

Over the last 8-9 months, policymakers of advanced
economy have achieved some success in diffusing the two
major risks of world economy – threat of euro area breakup and sharp fiscal contraction in the US. Also, Chinese
policy maker successfully avoided threat of instability of
their economy. Financial markets responded with a rally
on a broad front. Markets observed increasingly robust
private sector demands and healing credit and housing
markets in US. However demands in Europe are still
sluggish as improvement in sovereign risk environment are
yet to trickle-down to banks, companies and households.
As banks in Europe are still surrounded by low capital and
poor profitability, it is constraining the supply of credit.
Emerging markets and developing economy experienced
significant slowdown as a result of sharp fall in demand
from key advanced economies, domestic policy tightening
and sharp cut-down in investment from overseas. However
with resilient consumer demand, constant actions from
policy makers and encouraging growth in exports, most
of the emerging economies are reviving. We can see more
positive news from emerging markets as demand from
Europe slowly picks up. Economies in Middle East and North
Africa, however, may take some more time to come out from
political transitions.

Nepal
Political impasse continued to have a drag on the economy.
Lack of consensus amongst the political parties resulted in
a bureaucracy led care taker government. Much delayed
announcement of the fiscal budget for 2069/70 hampered
the economic activities. As a result, economy suffered from
high trade deficit, ballooning inflation and low economic
growth. However, surplus balance of payments, consistent
growth of remittances and record high foreign exchange
reserves held the economy together. Power, labor relation,
infrastructure and technology have remained major

challenges in the industrial and agricultural sector since
long time. Year under review also faced major challenges in
financial sector: lack of improved governance, deteriorating
credit environment especially in realty sector, erratic swings
in interest rates and sharp depreciation in Nepalese rupees.
The domestic economy is estimated to have grown by 3.6
percent with agriculture sector contributing 1.3 percent and
non-agriculture sector contributing 5.0 percent. The annual
average inflation as measured by Consumer Price Index
(CPI) increased by 9.9 percent in the fiscal year 2012/13 as
compared to 8.3 percent in the same period previous year.
The total remittance increased by 20.9 percent to reach Rs.
434.58 bio. Similarly, merchandize exports increased by 3.6
percent to Rs.76.92 bio and merchandize imports increased
by 20.6 percent to Rs.556.74 bio during the fiscal year
2012/13, as a consequence of which trade deficit widened
by 23.9 percent to Rs. 479.82 bio. The overall Balance of
Payment (BoP) recorded lower surplus of Rs. 68.94 bio and
the current account registered a surplus of Rs. 57.6 bio.
The total foreign exchange reserves surged to Rs. 533.3
bio in FY 2012/13 from a level of Rs. 439.46 bio as at midJuly 2012, which is expected to be sufficient to cover 10.1
months of imports of merchandise and service. In line with
the depreciation of Indian Rupees against the US dollar, the
Nepalese currency vis-à-vis the US dollar depreciated by
6.7 percent in mid-July 2013 compared to mid-July 2012.
Nepalese rupee enjoys a fixed parity of 1:1.6 with Indian
rupee. The exchange rate of one US dollar was Rs. 95.00 in
mid-July 2013 compared to Rs. 88.60 in mid-July 2012.

The Year Ahead
2012/13 was a challenging year and 2013/14 will no doubt
bring new challenges. However, the coming years should
be equally exciting too. We are in the right markets. We
have a clear strategy. We are investing in our businesses.
No doubt our markets will continue to change dramatically,
as they grow and get richer. No doubt technology will
change the way banks work and compete, and no doubt
regulation will force further change in business models. We
are not at all complacent. Yet, by sticking to our strategy,
by staying true to our culture, and by being innovative
and adaptive, I am confident that we can continue to be
successful. Our history shapes the way we think about the
future: we keep an emphasis on organic growth, invest with
a long-terms perspective and build diverse income streams.
Strong governance is crucial to our long-term success. We
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The Bank has refreshed its statement of strategic intent; the
essentials of the statement however remain the same: we
want to lead the way in Asia, Africa and the Middle East, and
we want to be Here for good. Yet, every year the context
and challenges differ, so our immediate priorities must shift
as well. We have seven priorities:
First, we must build stronger relationships with our clients
and customers. Deep, long-term client relationships have
always been the foundation of our business, but we have to
get even better: more relevant, more committed and more
responsive.
Second, we must prove to a sceptical world that we really
are Here for good. This is about doing the right thing and
being there for the long term.
Third, we must step up our efforts to innovate and digitise.
Whilst we have made enormous progress in automating
processes and offering online access to our services, we are
only in the early stages of using technology to transform the
business of banking.
Fourth, we have to intensify collaboration across our
network. For Standard Chartered, the network is a key to
our competitiveness; we are differentiated by our ability to
facilitate cross-border trade and investment, and that is as
much about the way we work as about our physical network.
Fifth, we need to get fitter and more flexible in the way
we work. We need to be ever more efficient, smarter in
deploying scarce resources, and more adaptable and agile.
Sixth, we must accelerate the next generation of leaders.
Taking a long-term perspective means building a strong
succession pipeline of diverse leaders.

Finally, we have to deliver superior financial performance.
By focusing on the fundamentals, sticking to our strategy,
funding before lending and keeping a tight grip on risks and
cost, we can continue to deliver a distinctive combination of
growth and returns for our investors.
Proving we are Here for good is all about our values and
culture. Lots of people are now talking about the culture
of banks, but we have been investing time and energy
in reinforcing our culture for a long time. We see it as a
key source of competitive differentiation and a key risk
management tool.
We must also keep innovating, to offer our clients and
customers new and better solutions, cut costs and reinforce
risk management. We are accelerating innovation to make
the Bank more accessible and easier to use through social
media, online and mobile.
We have started year 2013/2014 with a good momentum
with balance sheet in very good shape. Our client income
remains strong for Wholesale Banking; the deal pipelines
remain robust. Our balance sheet provides Consumer
Banking ample opportunities for capturing growth. We
continue to see enormous opportunities in front of us. While
we remain excited about it, we also believe that growth
momentum can be accelerated only under a scenario of
political stability. Our medium to long term view is that the
financial services industry will continue to grow and develop
into becoming the foundation of our national economy.
The agriculture sector, one of the major components
of our national economy, is likely to yield a good result
due mainly to timely arrival of monsoon this year. The
ongoing expansion of cultivation area and enhancement
in distribution of inputs and services in the rural areas is
likely to help in generating incremental GDP contribution
from this sector. On the other hand, the industrial sector is
expected to grow at an ordinary pace in the coming year;
improvement in the operating environment is a key for
improving performance of this segment. We also expect
the government to expedite the infrastructural expenditures
which we consider will provide some respite to the economy.
We have to find the right ways to make Nepal a popular
tourist destination; this country carries an enormous growth
opportunities for sustained development of tourism.

Company overview

continue to have a firm grip on the levers of risk, cost and
investment, and are using our balance sheet strength to
increase the financing support to our clients and customers.
We continue to take a conservative approach to managing
the balance sheet, maintaining a strong liquidity position and
keeping a watchful eye on asset quality given the uncertainties
that remain in the external environment. The risks of inflation
and currency volatility are not to be underestimated. Our
market is not immune; slower growth or shocks in the
neighbouring economies and the world will affect us.
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Chairman’s statement continued

Our successful performance,
diverse footprint, unique culture
and values and, most prominently,
the quality of our people will
continue to help us differentiate
ourselves in the market.

Corporate Governance
Governance across the Bank is robust. Strong governance
is also integral to our long-term success. As you may all
appreciate, banking is a relationship business, we highly
value the relationships that we have with our people,
regulators, clients and the other stakeholders; all efforts will
be made to further deepen this relationship.
We are committed to ensuring the integrity of governance.
In addition to the established committees, we have
committees on Diversity and Inclusion, Health and Safety,
the Environment and Community Partnership. The
initiatives taken by these committees have added value
to our stakeholders and delighted them. We believe good
governance provides clear accountabilities, ensures strong
controls, instils the right behaviours and reinforces good
performance.
The Bank has implemented the Risk Management Principles
and Practices of SCB Group which are in line with the latest
international best practices in the area of risk management
in the banks. This includes management of credit, crossborder, market, liquidity, operational, reputational and
other risks that are inherent to the bank’s business. The
risk management principles followed by the Bank include
Balancing risk and return, Responsibility and Accountability,
Anticipation of Risk, and Competitive advantage from
effective risk management. Similarly, the Bank follows
risk management governance structure of SCB Group
covering the Board, Audit Committee, Risk Committee,
Management Committee, Business/Functions etc. Roles
and responsibilities for risk management are defined under a
Three Lines of Defence model for business/operations, risk

function under the business/operations and the independent
internal audit function reporting to the Audit Committee.
In this way, the risk management function has now been
embedded from Board level to the business/operational
level ensuring an effective system of risk management in the
bank.
In order to enhance governance/oversight and to enable
earlier detection and mitigation of critical risks, a Small
Country Governance Framework (“SCGF”) has been
implemented in SCB Nepal Limited. The SCGF provides
a set of guiding principles covering the four key pillars
of People, Governance, Systems and Processes. It also
includes a set of tools which will enable small countries
to more proactively identify, assess and mitigate potential
control failures.
Mr. Anurag Adlakha, Mr. Sujit Mundul and Mr. Joseph
Silvanus nominated by the Standard Chartered Grindlays
Australia and Mr. Ram Bd. Aryal as Professional/Independent
Director continue to be in the Board of SCB Nepal Limited.
Ms Amrit Kumari Thapa continues to be in the Board to
represent the public shareholder in the board of the Bank. I,
Sunil Kaushal, continue to represent the Standard Chartered
Bank, U.K. on the Board of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal
Limited.
As on the date of this report, the Board is made up of the
Non-Executive Chairman, one Executive Director and four
Non-Executive Directors of which one is professional /
independent Director appointed as per the regulatory
requirement and one of them is the Public Director
representing General Public shareholders as per the
provisions of the Companies Act.

In Conclusion
Nepal’s economic indicators are still in the process of firming
up; absence of an investor-friendly environment, rising
inflation and widening trade deficit continue to challenge
our economy. We had to face a distressed operating
environment during the year and this situation is not likely to
change dramatically in the coming year too. However, we
believe that the announcement of the second constituent
assembly elections is an opportunity to elect a democratic
government that places high priority on the country’s
economic agenda.
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We are focusing on our capabilities around customer and
client needs, rather than seeking a rapid return on products
or building product silos. We have a clear competitive
advantage and are harnessing our strengths in deepening
the relationships. We are grateful to our customers,
shareholders and other stakeholders for placing enormous
amount of faith and support on us. I thank them all for their
unequivocal loyalty.
I also express my gratitude to the Ministry of Finance and
the Central Bank for their commitment in the development of
financial sector in Nepal. We are an international Bank and it
becomes increasingly important for us to demonstrate to the
regulators and other stakeholders, through our deeds, that
we are partner for them; we are continuing on this path.
Standard Chartered is a Bank with strong performance and
values culture. It places continuous focus on its peoples’
learning and development and in building their leadership
capabilities. We are working in making our rewards
competitive and in ensuring a healthy work-life balance for
our people.
Our Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) Council has been playing
an important role in embedding our D & I agenda to
address the different strands of diversity in our work-force,
in our products and in our community. We have recently

established a Day Care Centre (Crèche) at our Head Office
premises; this initiative will enable young parents working in
the Bank to look after their children in a convenient manner.
The key message for the coming year is that although the
world remains divided, with emerging economies in better
shape and with rising disparities across regions and within
countries, it is still likely that the world economy will grow
at a slightly faster pace than last year. The seismic shift in
the world economy that began more than a decade ago
remains in full swing and the balance of power will continue
to tilt towards the East. Under the circumstances, there are
opportunities for countries in this region, particularly Nepal,
to put years of good performance in the coming years;
we are well placed to make the most of the opportunities
they present. The Board remains confident in delivering
sustained value for our shareholders. Our successful
performance, diverse footprint, unique culture and values
and, most prominently, the quality of our people will continue
to help us differentiate ourselves in the market. I would like
to thank our investors for their support in this journey. I also
thank our employees for their hard work, professionalism
and commitment.
We remain confident and committed to consistent financial
delivery.

Sunil Kaushal
Chairman

Company overview

Under the prevailing socio-economic and political framework
this year, we have done reasonably well in creating
shareholder value. Weak market sentiments, market-wide
pressure on margins, continued downward pressure on ALM
and lower reinvestment yields played a role in restraining our
profit growth.
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Our strategy remains clear; we will focus on staying within
our strategy of measured growth, supporting our clients and
maintaining a strong risk management culture.
– Joseph Silvanus, Director and CEO
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CEO and Directors Report
Well positioned in exciting market

The Bank continues to remain in good shape and we have
delivered yet another year of stable financial performance.
The consistency of our performance should not detract from
our underlying achievement. Every year brings challenges,
and year 2012/13 was no exception. However, we have
been able to deliver on our promises mainly because of the
adoption of a focused and consistent strategy. An increase
in the net profit after tax of 4.19 % over last year to Rs. 1.21
billion is commendable in the backdrop of a challenging
business environment. This has been achieved by persistent
focus on cost and risk management while pursuing business
growth.
There is an increase in the volume of risk assets by 16.7 %
to Rs 23.14 billion compared to Rs 19.83 billion last year.
The Bank has been able to manage its credit portfolio better
as a result of which the Non-performing credit to Total credit
is 0.77 %. The provisions made are adequate to cover all the
potential credit losses as of the balance sheet date.
After transfer to general reserve Rs.243.59 million, exchange
fluctuation reserve Rs.27.97 million, proposed dividend of
Rs.741.56 Million and proposed bonus shares of 185.39
Million, total retained earnings as at 15 July, 2013 stood
at Rs.31.37 million. This performance reflects a good
momentum in the underlying businesses and disciplined
management of risks and costs.

Representation

continues to provide momentum to the overall performance
of the Bank. We have had another successful year on the
back of our consistent performance to strategy.
We have remained committed to our Clients in supporting
them and increasing our wallet share and thereby achieving
mutual growth. We continue to invest in our relationships
deepening them thereby increasing our product offerings
and usage. We achieved notable increase in the scale and
scope of engagement with our Clients despite maintaining
our strong risk management culture.
Wholesale bank has closed the fiscal year with notable
growth in terms with deeper customer penetration resulting
in increased bottom line.

Consumer Banking (CB)
The Consumer Banking business continued to face
challenges posed by prolonged political instability and
subdued economic environment resulting in slow credit offtake. Fee income has been impacted in the absence of new
stream of growth avenues.
Despite the above, the Business has put up a reasonable
performance in all the parameters during the year under
review. The Business assisted the Bank in maintaining a
good liquidity position. The cost of fund was managed
well which remained one of the lowest in the industry. The
Business maintained a healthy Net Interest Margin (NIM) in
lending products in spite of recognition of the fact that our
rates were amongst the finest borrowing rates available in
the market. Non Performing Asset (NPA) has been managed
well and kept below 1%. Some initiatives have been taken
to rationalize the costs as a result of which the Cost Income
Ratio of the Business has seen some improvement.

As at 15 July 2013, the Bank maintained nineteen points
of representation which included fifteen branches and four
extension counters. In addition to this, services were also
extended to our customers through twenty three ATMs
located at different parts of the country.

Provision for possible losses

Wholesale Banking

Net Profit after Provision and Tax

Against the backdrop of less than satisfactory business
climate coupled with subdued investor sentiment and
absence of political building blocks, Wholesale Bank

Issue of Bonus Shares
Proposed Cash Dividend

				

In Rs. ‘000s

			

15 Jul 13

15 Jul 12

Operating Profit

1,862,481

1,694,010

9.9%

110,125

208,251

-47.1%

Provision for Tax

% Change

524,056

506,540

3.5%

1,217,941

1,168,967

4.19%

185,390

241,525

-23.2%

741,560

724,576

2.3%

Company overview

The CEO & Director presents this report together with the
Balance Sheet and statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 15 July 2013. The report is in conformity with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2063 and Bank & Financial
Institution Act 2063 including the directives issued by the
Nepal Rastra Bank.
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We will continue our steady
performance by striking a
careful balance between risk
and reward for achieving a
sustained growth.

Off take of new Retail Loans is seen to be encouraging.
Sales resources representing Consumer Bank have been
made skilled for handling multi-products and this is helping
in assigning them incremental targets that help in boosting
the sales volume.
The focus of the Business will continue be in raising low
cost deposits primarily Current Account & Savings Account
(CASA); this has been our strength. We will also focus in
lending products by maintaining a good mix of secured
and unsecured portfolio. Employee Banking Proposition
will be one of our key priorities. Due attention will given for
increasing the wallet share of non-funds based income We
are planning to launch Deposit Protection Scheme (DPS)
through our Bancassurance business.
Consumer Banking is also contemplating introducing
product variants in the areas of Unsecure Lending and SME
product lines. Similarly, we are also putting a lot of focus in
our SME business, which is slowly emerging as the growth
engine of the Business.
Citing enhancement of risk in the local operating
environment, our focus has been in effective due diligence
and timely follow-through on delinquent accounts. We
will continue our steady performance by striking a careful
balance between risk and reward for achieving a sustained
growth.

Enhancing Customer Experience through
Service Quality and Re-engineering
In line with our customer focused strategy we have a
Service Quality agenda to ensure that we consistently strive
to enhance Customer Experience. We have a Customer
Experience Council in the Bank which drives service quality
and re-engineering activities to ensure:
End-to-end Customer Experience through close
collaboration with different parts of the organization to deliver
seamless executions which balances efficiency, effectiveness
and quality
To build broad-based customer focused mind sets and
skills to embed DNA in the organization through talent
development, discipline and standard operating rhythm
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1

2

1 The Bank participated in
the Money Expo 2012.
2 Inauguration of 24x7
Contact Centre opened
by the Bank.

The Customer Experience Council (CEC) in the Bank is
an active forum which works to drive the service/process
improvement initiatives to meet the Bank’s Customer
Focused agenda of delivering on our goals of Customer
Experience.
We treat all customer complaints as opportunities to better
understand what is important to our customers and to drive
service improvement priorities. To this end, all customer
complaints are tracked on a regular basis against the set
metrics to ensure satisfactory handling and resolution of all
customers issues within the set timelines.
The Bank proactively uses Voice of Customer survey
findings to drive service improvement priorities. In addition
we conduct Voice of Frontline and Voice of Support Line
sessions. These sessions are aimed at identifying challenges
both at our front end and back end to ensure customers do
not face any service barriers.
We comply with the Prudential Regulation Authority
regulation of Treating Customers Fairly (TCF). We have
a TCF Policy in the Bank to ensure that fair treatment of
customers is central to our corporate culture. The TCF policy
essentially ensures delivery of 6 key outcomes. Culture being
the first outcome, the remaining 5 outcomes tracks the
product lifecycle, starting with segmentation and product
design. The third outcome is Marketing or transparency
of information – clarity in our customer communication to
ensure we are able to explain our terms and our offerings
clearly, and market them transparently. Number 4 is Sales
Advice and Suitability, which we continuously strive to get
right. After Sales Service is outcome number 5 is to ensure
customers do not face any post-sales barriers. And finally
Complaints – Consumers do not face unrealistic barriers to
change product, switch providers or make a complaint. In
short TCF gives us a structure and a focus for activities – our
strategy, brand and values, are very much aligned to the
TCF outcomes. This is a manifestation of our commitment to
be Here for customers and Here for good.

Future Plans
We continue to remain highly liquid, strongly capitalized and
open for business. However, the competitive landscape,
regulatory changes and economic fundamentals could way
down on our aspirations for growth.
Our objective remains to build stronger relationships with our
Clients. Towards this end, we will continue to cater through
Client-centric product offerings and introduction of new
products. The critical driver is to move from basic lending to
strategic products for our Clients.
In line with our Brand Promise – Here for Good, we will
continue to engage with our stakeholders. We are in
constant discussions with the regulators for introduction
of new products and importing the best practices across
multiple touch points. We continue to drive our engagement
with the customers and society through our participation in
numerous activities.
We will strive for greater level of Digitisation of services
with our Clients. This will be achieved through introduction
of E-banking platforms. The objective of this drive is to
improve the service delivery on our part and for our Clients
to achieve operational efficiencies. Clients already onboarded attests to its user-friendly features and benefits,
available at its finger-tips.
Both our businesses WB and CB have been working
together in meeting corporate and individual needs of our
Clients. This collaboration helps the Bank in meeting the
Clients’ need more effectively and efficiently. We have also
been working closely with our network points for achieving
synergies in client referrals, initiation and conversions.
We continue to invest in training and development of
our team members. Performance is recognised and
rewarded. Multiple product partners are engaged to provide
effective solutions to Clients. It is our belief that with sn
enhanced engagement with Clients and on the backbone
of international expertise and knowledge base, we will be
able differentiate ourselves in the ever crowding market – to
achieve our aspirations.

Company overview

Delivering on acquisition integration: ‘Customer Focus From
Day One’
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Notwithstanding the deteriorating
credit environment, SCB Nepal has
largely been successful in maintaining
the credit quality owing to its
proactive risk management approach.
The Bank continued to stick to the
fundamentals of good banking.

The Bank is highly liquid, strongly capitalised and is
equipped with a strong risk management culture. This
enables us to poise for growth in the coming year.

Credit Environment
The country’s Credit Environment remained challenging
during Financial Year 2012/13. The economic growth
was depressing during the period under review owing to
continued sluggish growth in agriculture and industrial
sectors. The industrial sector continued to face impediments
like power crisis, labour problems, frequent bandhs and
strikes and concerns on security situation, etc.
In absence of consensus government, the annual budget
was delayed by almost nine months; this had a bearing
on the government’s development expenditure resulting in
shortage of liquidity, mainly in the second half.
Sharp depreciation of Rupee against US Dollar in the last
quarter of the year under review is expected to bring in
further challenges to the business and economy.
Increasing cost and lack of competitiveness slowed down
the pace of exports whereas there was a surge in imports
which widened the trade deficit further. The tourism industry
witnessed reduction in tourist arrivals by air.
The underlying challenges in the operating environment
resulted in low business confidence. The fading investor
sentiments and worsening credit environment is a cause
for concern for the banking industry. The banking industry
is facing rising levels of loan defaults and non-performing
assets (NPA). The challenges in liquidity management and
low return on investments made on government instruments
have had a bearing in the Bank’s profitability.
The steadily increasing inflow of workers remittance &
comfortable foreign exchange reserves, satisfactory stock
market performance, improving revenue collection to GDP
ratio, etc. were some reassuring factors for economy during
the year under review.
Good monsoon this year and timely announcement of full
annual budget are other positive factors for the economy.
The depreciation of NPR against USD is expected to prompt
Nepalese workers working abroad to remit more savings into
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We can also expect some amount of stability in political
environment mainly because of the fact that fresh dates have
been announced for the Constituent Assembly elections in
November 2013.
Notwithstanding the deteriorating credit environment, SCB
Nepal has largely been successful in maintaining the credit
quality owing to its proactive risk management approach.
The Bank continued to stick to the fundamentals of good
banking. SCB Nepal is Here for good; Here for good in the
sense of always seeking to do the right things. Clear strategy
and discipline, strong relationship with the clients, rigors
around the portfolio quality, debate on risk-return dynamics,
vigilance and prompt action etc. continued to remain the
fundamentals of our risk management procedure.

Auditor
M/S CSC & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed
as Statutory Auditors for FY 2012/13 by the 26th Annual
General Meeting of the Bank held on 13th of December 2012.
Since they have completed three years of engagement with
the Bank on a continuous basis, they are not eligible for
reappointment. As per the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, this meeting will decide on the appointment of the
auditor for next financial year.

Proposed Dividend and Bonus Shares
The 310th meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bank has
proposed dividend and bonus shares to the shareholders of
the Bank for the year ended 15 July 2013 at the rate of 40 %
and 10 % respectively.

Joseph Silvanus
Director and CEO

Company overview

the country. However, the growing trade deficit due to rising
imports and higher inflation due to Rupee depreciation are
likely to post some challenges to the economy.
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Sustainability
Our social purpose

Sustainability and our business
Banks have an essential role in a prosperous
and healthy society. We believe that by
running our operations well, standing by our
clients and customers and investing in the
communities where we operate, we can be
a powerful force for good.
Our approach focuses on getting the basics
of banking right, making sure that we are
financially stable with strong governance and
good sources of capital and liquidity, so that
we can create value for our shareholders
and society over the long run.
We have three key sustainability priorities;
contributing to sustainable economic
growth, being a responsible company and
investing in communities.

Contributing to sustainable economic
growth
By providing finance efficiently and responsibly, we
contribute to sustainable economic growth and job
creation. Widening access to finance is a core part of our
sustainability strategy, as is our commitment to providing
finance that supports sustainable development in our
communities.

Sustainable finance
Our main impact on people and the environment is through
the business activities we finance. We work closely with our
clients and customers to manage potential environmental
and social risk associated with our financing decisions and
to identify opportunities to finance clean technologies.
Our position statements underpin our approach to
environmental and social (E&S) risk management. In
2012, Standard Chartered continued to review its position
statements, aligning with the most recent international
standards, including the International Finance Corporation
(IFC) Performance Standards. In 2012, the Bank globally
provided and supported financing of $984 million across the
sector including wind, solar, geothermal and biofuels.
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The lending we provide to people and businesses helps to
support job creation and economic development across
our markets. Enabling international trade to flourish is a
key sustainable business priority for Standard Chartered.
We are also committed to extending access to finance for
individuals and small businesses that have traditionally been
underserved by financial institutions.
The Bank is committed to improve access to financial
services to the population which is either unbanked or
severely under-served by financial institutions by helping
them bring in the realm of financial services. Small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) play a crucial role in
generating jobs and economic growth across our markets.
By the end of Financial Year 2012/13, Standard Chartered

Bank Nepal continued to demonstrate its support for
increasing lending to the sector by around 50 percent to
Rs. 2.74 billion; the Bank has been able to enhance its
SME products and services both in terms of capability
and product differentiation. We remain committed to
microfinance as a means of lifting people out of poverty.
Our approach is to support the sector by providing a range
of financial services to microfinance institutions (MFIs). The
Bank currently holds: Rs. 52,190,000 in shares of RMDC;
and an additional Rs. 6,000,000 in other rural development
banks. Further, the Bank has a loan exposure of Rs.
801,787,770 towards the Deprived Sector.

Being a responsible company
We want to deliver long-term value for our shareholders
and society. This means having the right culture, structures
and processes in place to ensure that we practise strong
governance, serve our clients and customers well and
provide a great workplace for our people.

Company overview

Access to finance
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1 Our volunteers marking
World Environment Day
on a candid note.
2 The Bank supports
various local schools with
computers for education.

Governance
Good governance contributes to the long-term success of
a company, creating trust and engagement between the
company and its stakeholders. The right culture, behaviour
and values need to be adopted by the Board and actively
lived and promoted at all levels of management. It needs
to permeate the organisation at every level. We continue to
embed E&S governance within our business.
Financial crime
We continually work to prevent our products and services
from being used for financial crime and terrorist financing
activity. In line with this, we focus on training our employees,
strengthening our screening systems, and ensuring that
our policies and procedures are effective and up-to-date.
In 2012, we completed a Group-wide financial crime
risk transformation programme launched in 2011. We
are committed to combating money laundering, terrorist
financing, fraud, bribery and market abuse. The Bank follows
the laws, regulations and directives issued by Financial
Information Unit and the policies/procedures of SCB Group
on Anti-Money Laundering KYC/CDD.
To ensure that the transactions conducted by the Bank are
consistent in line with our knowledge about the customer,
their business and risk profile (KYC), the Bank conducts
ongoing due diligence on the business relationship and
transactions. The Bank has implemented automated
transaction surveillance solution called Detica TS System
which functionally performs Account Opening Check,
Customer Match Result and Transaction Surveillance.
Responsible selling and marketing
Responsible selling and marketing is integral to how we
do business. In Consumer Banking, our Customer Charter
outlines our commitment to treat customers fairly at all times.
In 2012, we continued to embed training on responsible
selling to staff across Consumer Banking and conducted
compliance reviews of our investment product approvals,
marketing materials and complaints handling.

People and values
Our distinctive culture and values guide the way we do
business, allowing us to deliver on our Here for good brand
promise. We focus on providing our people with learning and
development opportunities so that they can grow personally
and professionally. We also progressed on our targets for
diversity and inclusion, ensuring that our employees feel
valued and appreciated for who they are. The Bank has a
Diversity and Inclusion Council in place which is actively
engaged in addressing different strands of diversity.
Environment
We consider the environmental challenges across the
countries where we operate and proactively manage the
direct impact of our operations. In 2012, we improved the
energy efficiency of our offices and branches by 7 per cent
and decreased our paper consumption by 5 per cent per full
time employee (FTE).
Suppliers
Through our sourcing and procurement policies, we aim
to support local business in our markets. In 2012, we
introduced the Standard Chartered Supplier Charter, which
sets out the environmental and social standards we expect
of our suppliers.

Investing in communities
Our sustainability as a business is closely intertwined with
the health and prosperity of the communities where we
operate. Through employee volunteering and community
programmes, we work with partners to deliver initiatives that
promote positive social and economic outcomes for people
in our markets.
Employee volunteering
We actively encourage our staff to volunteer their time and
core skills to benefit their local communities. Each employee
is entitled to three days of paid volunteering leave per
year. In Nepal alone, a total of 446 staff volunteering days
were recorded for the year 2012; this shows passion and
commitment of our people towards the community where
we work and live.
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1 Joining hands against
HIVAIDs.
2 Our volunteers
celebrating World AIDS
Day & spreading the
awareness message
through a cycle rally.

Seeing is Believing
Seeing is Believing is our global campaign to tackle
avoidable blindness. Launched in 2003 to mark the
Bank’s 150th anniversary as a simple staff led initiative to
raise enough money for 28,000 cataract operations, the
programme has evolved rapidly. From 2003 to 2012, we
impacted over 31 million people. In 2012, we reached a new
fundraising milestone, at over $55 million, passing the halfway mark towards our goal of raising $100 million by 2020.
In Nepal, the Bank has been instrumental in supporting
restoration of sight to more than 6,100 people till date,
by sponsoring eye camps and intraocular lenses for
cataract surgeries in partnership with Tilganga Institute
of Ophthalmology (TIO) and other local eye hospitals in
different locations of the country. Under our initiative
Employee Volunteering (EV), our people actively participate
as volunteers in eye camps organised in partnership with
different eye hospitals in Kathmandu and other places.

On 24 November, the Bank conducted its annual fund
raising event ‘Walkathon 2012’ successfully. Walkathon is
an annual fund raising initiative of the Bank in partnership
with its stakeholders to increase awareness on the subject
of avoidable blindness; an effort to reduce stigma and to
encourage the visually challenged people. This event of 2012
was able to draw ~450 people in the walk represented by
our staff, staff of organizations partnering with the Bank for
the event, visually challenged students and Living with HIV
colleagues. Since 2003, Walkathon continues to remain a
signature event of the Bank.
Eastern Regional Eye Care Program (EREC-P), a project
under the aegis of Biratnagar Eye Hospital partially funded
(USD 1,000,000) by SCB Groups’ Seeing Believing Phase IV
program successfully concluded in June 2013. Earlier, soft
opening of the Hospital was done by Rt. Hon. President of
Nepal, Dr. Ram Baran Yadav; President Yadav had lauded
Bank’s involvement in these kinds of noble causes and had
expressed his views that the Bank had set an example to
other corporates in Nepal. The financial assistance has been
utilized by the Biratnagar Eye Hospital for establishing 5
Outreach eye care centres, construction of a Pre-Operative
Ward, a Canteen Building, construction of a Hostel Building
and construction of state of the art Decentralized Water
Treatment Plant. The hospital is now fully function-able in
servicing the people of the Eastern Region.

Company overview

Community programmes
For the Bank in Nepal, Standard Chartered Nepal
Community Partnership Forum (SCNCPF), an NGO,
undertakes various community initiatives. It is registered with
District Administration Office; affiliated with Social Welfare
Council and is represented by staff members from the
Businesses and Functions. SCB in the year 2003, globally
launched under its ‘Believing in Life’ campaign two major
community initiatives viz. ‘Seeing is Believing’ and ‘Living
with HIV’. Apart from these two major initiatives, Standard
Chartered Bank Nepal has been actively undertaking other
initiatives directed in the field of Environment, Health and
Education.
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1 Our enthusiastic
volunteers at an eye
camp.
2 Reinforcing our
commitment of being
‘Here for good’ towards
our community.

Living with HIV
HIV and AIDS remain a serious challenge in many of the
markets where we operate, impacting our staff, their families
and the broader community. In 2012, the Bank furthered our
commitment to support awareness of HIV and AIDS through
our workplace education programme, Living with HIV. The
Bank revised its comprehensive training toolkit to provide
up-to-date information and resources to its employee and
community partners.
In 1999, the Bank launched initially a ‘Living with HIV’ - a
workplace HIV education programme; which currently
involves a huge network of HIV Champions all across the
countries. There are more than a dozen HIV Champions in
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited, who work to raise
awareness of HIV and AIDS in the Bank and with external
organizations.
The bank conducted a joint workshop in partnership with
FNCCI-BCAN on 25th Jan 2013. Similarly, few sessions
were conducted for the students of Nandi Ratri school and
for the new joiners and interns of the Bank.

Focus on Environment, Health and
Education
With an aim to reinforce its brand promise ‘Here for good’,
various initiatives were taken by the Bank during the year
under review. The initiatives are summarized below:
• The Bank continues to support the deserving students
of Shree Mahendra Shanti High School, Balkot by
providing incentives/scholarships through VISCOSS –
Nepal since 2002. At a special program organised at the
school premises, the Bank awarded scholarships to the
deserving students of the School for year 2012/13.
• The Bank continued its support to provide computers
to various schools that were unable to source them
because of different financial and other constraints.
The schools receiving support from the Bank in Nepal
during the year under review included Mary Ward
School - Lubhu, Laboratory Higher Secondary School
- Kirtipur, Shree Devi Bal Sudhar Madhyamik Vidyalaya
- Suntakhan and Shree Mahankal Secondary school –
Maha Boudha. This initiative aims to help students to be
familiar with computer skills, eventually leading them to
have a better career.
• Financial Literacy sessions were organized for the
students of Bode Higher Secondary School by the
Bank’s staff with an aim to impart basic education and
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• As a part of the Global CRES initiative, CRES Nepal team
marked the Follow the Sun Day event by organising a
safety awareness training for about 375 students of three
local Government schools at Pharping, Kathmandu.
• Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited continues to
be the proud sponsor of Senior Nepal National Cricket
Team. Playing under the Bank’s logo, Nepal Team
achieved a major success this year by reaching the
Division II of ICC World Cricket League, thereby inching
closer towards Nepal’s dream of playing World Cup
Cricket. Similarly, the Team also won the ACC Trophy
played in UAE. Nepal National Cricket Team continues its
success by maintaining high standards of performance in
the international arena. The Bank is proud to play a role
in development of cricket in Nepal and in sponsoring the
Nepal National Cricket Team.

Company overview

knowledge on the Banking subject to the students.
The Bank in the year 2013/14 has a program to roll this
initiative out to many other schools in Kathmandu valley.
• To mark the World Environment Day in year 2013, our
staff members volunteered to maintain and upkeep the
heritage sites and few other environmentally sensitive
locations such as Bishankhu Narayan, Institute of
Engineering, Adinath temple and Laboratory school.
The Bank had earlier launched a tree plantation
campaign in many of these locations.
• To mark the Children’s Day of the year in September
2012, the Diversity & Inclusion (D & I) Council organised a
‘Fun day’ at our Lazimpat Branch for the special children
of Navjyoti Centre who were mentally challenged. The
purpose of the event was to provide a fun filled day to
these special children; where they could enjoy and take a
break against from the rush and monotony of their daily
schedules.
• With an aim to drive Employee Volunteering agenda in
year 2012/13, various programs were organised by the
Bank with an active participation from the staff such as
Blood donation camps, visit to schools, orphanages,
old age homes, NGO’s and needy organisations etc. All
these initiatives are captured in the fortnightly eNewsletter
of the Bank `Nepal Update’.
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People
Bringing our culture and values to life

Our highlights:
• Chairman’s Here for good awards 2012: Response from
Nepal for the Chairman’s Here for good Awards 2012
was overwhelming. With a total of 65 nominations and
49 registrations, Nepal occupied 10th & 5th positions
under respective categories among all counties in the
Group. The level of participation is a reflection of how our
brand promise Here for good has been embodied in our
day to day life by our people.
• Employee Volunteering: Increased level of participation
and engagement of staff members was seen in the
volunteering activities initiated by the Bank during the
year under review.

• Celebration of World Aids Day 2012: For the first time in
history, Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited created
a human chain of Red Ribbon in front of Head Office
on the eve of World Aids Day 2012; this was followed
by distribution of flyers. A cycle rally was organised
from Lazimpat Branch on 1st of December, which was
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• HR Manager of the Year 2012: Head
of Human Resources was accorded
with the HR Manager of the Year Award
2012 during the 6th edition of HR Meet
in February 2013, an annual event
organised by Growth Sellers Private

Limited. The event was observed by over 200 people
from different sectors.
In this fiscal year, a total of 65 talents joined in different
categories of employment with the Bank. With 454
employees representing 61% male and 39% female, the
diversity of our workforce is core strength and important part
of what makes our culture distinctive. For the first time in
Nepal, a local Head of Wholesale Banking was appointed to
lead the Wholesale Banking activities of the Bank.

Company overview

participated by 50 staff members. The
rally distributed HIV/AIDS related flyers
along the route.
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1 GTO Offsite.
2 The Bank has
established a
Day Care Centre
- Crèche for the
benefit of young
working parents in
the Bank.

Attracting and retaining talent
Human Resources Department supports the businesses
and functions by hiring talents using effective recruitment
and selection tools. In comparison to last year, Bank’s total
headcount witnessed a marginal increase during the year
under review. The Bank continues to exchange talents with
the network; two staff from the Bank joined SCB Singapore
and one staff member joined the Nepal operations from SCB
India. In order to retain talents who have been attracted
and hired by the Bank, it assists to nurture their career by
making relevant opportunities accessible to them in career
portals and help them to develop skills, knowledge and
experience in different functions through movements or on
the job trainings. We have a robust mentoring program,
performance management system and equipped managers
that help the organization in managing career aspirations of
our employees. Day 1 Readiness program and Right Start
Live are the learning tools which make the new joiners hold
positive on-boarding experience.

Developing leadership capabilities
The Bank bases development of its people on their
individual strengths. We also have the individual learning and
development plans which the employees have to identify for
their personal development and agree with their managers;
this is one way to grow their distinctive talents.
Massively multiplying leadership capabilities has been a
key business priority to ensure we have a strong leadership
and talent pipeline. A robust succession planning system
for all key positions, plan to develop the successor and
various programs to build the leadership skills for these
identified successors have proven to be effective in filling
up critical positions. Similarly group programs like Leading
for Performance and Great Managers remain the core
development programmes for our managers. A total of

27 managers attended Leadership Managerial Program
- leading by performance and Great Managers Program
organised by SCB Organisation Learning (OL) Team.

Building our employee engagement
Employee has been an important asset; without their
valuable contribution, we cannot achieve success. We focus
on delivering a positive employee experience where our
people feel strongly connected to the Bank and the Group
and are able to do what they do best each day.
One way of measuring the engagement level and enhancing
our employees’ experience is by conducting the Gallup
Organization’s Q12 Employee Engagement survey. In 2012,
100 % of the employees took the opportunity to have their
say about the Bank being a great place to work in.
Employee Engagement has been the focus of the Bank;
the year under review was filled with engagement activities
where we could see highly engaged staff throughout the
Bank. Engagement activities viz. Futsal competition for male
and female teams, Bank-wide Photography Competition
– “SCB to You”, The Perfect Match’ – a blind-fold penalty
shoot, Walkathon 2012 - ‘a walk for a brighter tomorrow’,
Volunteering programs etc. were organised to enhance
employee engagement.
At a function organised to mark winning of the prestigious
‘Bank of the Year Awards 2012’, 86 staff members
completing 5.10,15, 20 and 25 years of their services to
the Bank were felicitated. These measure our employees’
commitment and their drivers around the Bank’s five key
values- Courageous, Responsive, International, Creative and
Trustworthy and contribution to the Bank’s brand promiseHere for good.
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1&2 Funday - the Bank
organised an
exciting session for
the differently abled
children of Navjyoti
school.

Learning and Development Programs

Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) is an intrinsic part of our brand
promise - Here for good. The committee, established
to value our employees for whom they are and their
contribution towards the Bank’s growth, organized various
events to celebrate occasions together with employees and
customers at the workplace as well as in the communities.
Some of the highlights were celebration of the Children’s
Day, ‘Fun day’ for the special children of Navjyoti Center, Teej
celebration with friends of Karuna Bhawan and Missionary
of Charity, talk programs on different topics, Financial
Literacy sessions in schools, and celebrations of Bhai Tika,
International Women’s Day, Mother’s Day etc. One of our
major achievements was the launch of Mother’s Room at the
Head Office for the expecting, nursing and new mothers.

Learning can be in any form, anytime and anywhere.
Our employees have the opportunity to learn through
various ways whether it is learning from self/on-the-job,
learning from others or learning from formal methods. Our
development programmes are supported by a number of
tools and processes including Learning@SCB - a dedicated
intranet site promoting self-driven learning. Additionally, the
two learning tools - Masterclass and Learn & Grow launched
in 2012 turned out to be a good learning opportunity for our
employees.

Within the workplace, Parents & Careers Network site was
launched. The committee started with reaching out and to
the parents within the bank and interviewing them followed
by talk programs on various useful topics for parents. This
site has built good employees networks ensuring a more
inclusive environment to our people.

The Bank organized a Learning week and a separate CB
Learning Week in 2012 and 2013 covering a large number
of staff for multiple learning programs. CB Learning Week
was held during July 30 - August 03, 2012 covering 154
keen learners from Consumer Banking. Learning week was
organized during July 17 - 20, 2012 and February 04 - 08,
2013 covering a total of 107 participants. Apart from this,
our employees participated in Group programs, local training
programs, in-house trainings, Masterclass and Learn & Grow
sessions achieving a total of 472 learning man days.

Company overview

Diversity and Inclusion
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Our approach to
Corporate Governance

A Synopsis
Following are the steps taken by the management for
strengthening Corporate Governance in the organization.
• The Board of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited
is responsible and accountable to the shareholders and
ensures that proper corporate governance standards are
maintained.
• The Audit Committee meets quarterly to review the
internal and external inspection reports, control and
compliance issues and provides feedback to the Board
as appropriate.
• The Manco (Management Committee) represented by all
Business and Function Heads is the apex body managing
the day to day operations of the Bank. Chaired by the
CEO, it meets at least once a month for formulating
strategic decisions.
• The Annual General Meeting is used as an opportunity to
communicate with all our shareholders.
• To ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations enhance resilience to external events and
avoid reputational risk, the Board has adopted SCB
Group policies and procedures.
• Ultimate responsibility of effective Risk Management rests
with the Board supported by Audit Committee, Manco,
Country Risk Committee, Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO) and The Board Level Risk Committee.
• Embracing exemplary standards of governance and
ethics wherever we operate is an integral part of
our Strategic Intent. The Group Code of Conduct is
adopted to help us meet this objective by setting out the
standards of behaviour we must follow with each other

and with our customers, communities, investors and
regulators.

Analysis
The Board of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited is
responsible for the overall management of the Company and
for ensuring that proper corporate governance standards are
maintained. The Board is also responsible & accountable to
shareholders.
The report describes how the Board has applied the
principles and provisions of the Nepal Rastra Bank
directives on Corporate Governance and the provisions of
Companies Act, 2063 and Banks and Financial Institutions
Act, 2063 (the “Corporate Governance Code”). The directors
confirm that:
l

l

l

Throughout FY 2069/70, the Company complied with all
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Company complied with the listing rules of Nepal Stock
Exchange Limited.
Throughout FY 2069/70, the Company was in
compliance with the Securities Registration and Issuance
Regulation, 2065
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on further terms no
less than required by the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives
and the Companies Act and that all the Directors of the
Bank complied with the Code of Conduct throughout FY
2069/70.
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The Board
As on the date of this report, the Board is made up of the
Non-Executive Chairman, one Executive Director and four
Non-Executive Directors of which one is professional /
independent Director appointed as per the regulatory
requirement and one of them is the Public Director
representing General Public shareholders as per the provisions
of the Companies Act.
The Board composition complied with the regulatory
requirements. Four Directors including the Non-Executive
Chairman are nominated by the SCB Group to represent it in
the Board in proportion to its shareholding. The Board meets
regularly and has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved for its decision. These matters include determining
and reviewing the strategy of the Company, annual budget,
overseeing statutory and regulatory compliance and issues
related to the Company’s capital. The Board is collectively
responsible for the success of the Bank.

The following table illustrates the number of Board and Audit
Committee meetings held during the year under review:
				
		
Board
Number of meetings in FY 2068/069
12
Chairman, Sunil Kaushal
7*
Director, Anurag Adlakha
10*
Director, Sujit Mundul
12
Director, Ram Bahadur Aryal
12
Director, Amrit Kumari Thapa
12
CEO & Director Joseph Silvanus
12

Audit
Committee
5
5**
5***
5

* Sunil Kaushal and Anurag Adlakha had attended 1 (one) Board Meeting
through video conferencing.
** Anurag Adlakha had attended 5 Audit Committee meeting through video
conferencing.
*** Sujit Mundul had attended 1 Audit Committee meeting through video
conferencing.

As mandated by local regulations, the Board has formed an
Audit Committee with clear terms of reference. The duties
and responsibilities of Audit Committee are in congruence
with the framework defined by Nepal Rastra Bank Directives
and Companies Act.
Audit Committee is chaired by the Independent/Professional
director and all the members of the Audit Committee
are non executive directors thus ensuring complete
independence. The Composition of the Audit Committee as
on July 15, 2013 was as below:
1. Ram Bahadur Aryal
Chairman
2. Sujit Mundul
Member
3. Anurag Adlakha
Member
4. Sanjay Ballav Pant, Country Head of Audit
Member Secretary
The Audit Committee meets at least on quarterly basis
and reviews internal and external audit reports, control and
compliance issues, and bank’s financial condition etc. Audit
Committee provides a feed back to Board of Directors
by tabling of Audit Committee meeting minutes in the
subsequent board meeting for review. The Audit Committee
also liaises with Group Internal Audit to the extent necessary
to ensure that the conduct of Committee’s business is
consistent with and complementary to the practice and
requirement of Standard Chartered Group in this regard.
During the financial year 2069/70 (2012/13) Audit
Committee conducted 5 meetings and performed the
following tasks, among others
• Reviewed the Internal Audit Reports, Key Control
Review Scorecards & Control Effectiveness Review
Scorecard of units audited/reviewed and detail
discussion was made on the issues/deficiencies raised
by Internal Audit Department, root cause of the issues/
deficiencies identified and gave necessary instructions to
management for resolution of issues.
• Reviewed the findings of Central Bank Annual Onsite
Inspection Team, Statutory Auditors and issued
necessary instructions to the management for resolution
of the issues.

Corporate governance

During the year under review, the Board held 12 board
meetings of which 5 were held by circulation. The Directors
are given accurate, timely and clear information so that they
can maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial,
operational, compliance and governance issues.

Audit Committee
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Approved the annual audit/review plan for 2013 based
on the risk assessment and having regard to regulatory
requirements. Also discussed and revised the audit and
assurance plan for 2012.
Recommended to Board for appointment and fixation of
fee of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2069/70
(2012/13).
Reviewed quarterly financial statements, comparison
of key financial indicators, and adequacy of loan loss
provision.
Reviewed and discussed the changes made in the Audit
Methodology and approved the same. Also reviewed and
discussed the Control Review Methodology.
Discussion on Top Risk, Emerging Concerns &
Hotspots of the country was made and reviewed the
appropriateness of the management action plan to
mitigate the risk.

Management Committee (Manco)
The Management Committee (Manco) represented by all
Business and Function Heads of the Bank is the apex body
that manages the Bank’s operation on a day to day basis.
Manco meets formally at least once a month and informally
as and when required. The strategies for the Bank are
decided and monitored on a regular basis and decisions are
taken jointly by this Committee. The CEO Chairs the Manco.
As at the date of this report, the composition of Bank’s
Management Committee comprised of following:
Mr. Joseph Silvanus
Chief Executive Officer & Head Consumer Banking
Mr. Ammar Husain
Head Integrated Distribution & Segments
Ms. Bina Rana
Head Human Resources
Mr. Diwakar Poudel
Head Corporate Affairs
Mr. Gopi Bhandari
Chief Operating Officer & Senior Credit Officer
Mr. Gorakh Rana
Head Wholesale Banking
Mr. Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Shobha B Rana
Head Legal & Compliance
Mr. Sujit Shrestha
Chief Information Officer

Risk Governance
Through its risk management framework, the Bank seeks to
efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise
directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as
operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a
normal consequence of any business undertaking.
As part of this framework, the Bank uses a set of principles
that describe its risk management culture. The principles of
risk management followed include:
l		Balancing risk and reward.
l		Disciplined and focused risk taking to generate a return.
l		Taking risk with appropriate authorities and where there
is appropriate infrastructure and resource to manage
them.
l		Anticipating future risks and ensuring awareness of all
risks.
l		Efficient and effective risk management and control to
gain competitive advantage.
In order to enhance governance/oversight and to enable
earlier detection and mitigation of critical risks, a Small
Country Governance Framework (“SCGF”) has been
implemented in SCB Nepal Limited. The SCGF provides
a set of guiding principles covering the four key pillars
of People, Governance, Systems and Processes. It also
includes a set of tools which will enable small countries
to more proactively identify, assess and mitigate potential
control failures.
The Country Risk Committee (CRC) is represented by
the senior management team including the heads of he
concerned risk management units and Chaired by the
CEO. The committee meets normally in every two months
and reviews the Credit Risk, Operational Risk, Market Risk
and Reputational Risk; analyzes the trend, assesses the
exposure impact on capital and provides a summary report
to the Management Committee. Its objective is to ensure the
effective management of risks throughout SCBNL in support
of the SCB Nepal Ltd’s Business Strategy in the country.
The committee governance structure seeks to ensure that
risk management standards and policies are cascaded down
through the organization from the Board to business and
functional level. Information is communicated through the
functional, business committees to the Board which seeks to
ensure that key risk issues are addressed at the appropriate
levels and to provide assurance that standards and policies
are being followed.
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2

1 Bank’s 26th AGM in
progress.
2 CEO making
presentation in the
Directors’ Training
program organised
by NBTI.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of
counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the Bank in
accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Initiation and
Approval Policy and the Retail Lending Policy govern
the extension of credit to WB clients and CB customers,
respectively. Each policy provides the framework for lending
to counterparties, global account management, product
approvals and other product related guidance, credit
processes and portfolio standards.
The WB Monitoring and Control Policy and the CB
Management Information Systems and Reporting
Framework provide the outline for how credit risk should be
monitored and managed in the Bank.

The credit risk of individual counterparties or groups of
connected counterparties as well as at the portfolios of
retail customers is assessed and reviewed. The credit risk
management covers credit rating and measurement, credit
approval, large exposures and credit risk concentration,
credit monitoring, and portfolio analysis. All Corporate
and Institutional borrowers including SME borrowers, at
individual and group level, are assigned internal credit rating
that supports identification and measurement of risk and
integrated into overall credit risk analysis.

Operational Risk
Operational Risk is the potential for loss arising from the
failure of people, process or technology or the impact of
external events. We seek to minimize our exposure to
operational risk, subject to cost trade-offs. Operational
risk exposures are managed through a consistent set
of management processes that drive risk identification,
assessment, control and monitoring.

The Country Risk Committee, chaired by the CEO, oversees
the management of operational risks across the Bank. Each
risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are
material and for maintaining an effective control environment
across the organization. Operational risk control owners
have responsibility for the control of operational risk arising
from the management of the following activities: people,
technology, vendor, property, security, accounting and
financial control, tax, legal processes, corporate authorities
and structure, and regulatory compliances.
Operational risks can arise from all business lines and
from all activities carried out by the Bank. We seek to
systematically identify and manage operational risk by
segmenting all of the Bank’s activities into manageable
units. Each of these has an owner who is responsible for
identifying and managing all the risks that arise from those
activities as an integral part of their first line responsibilities.
Products and services offered to clients and customers are
also assessed and authorized in accordance with product
governance procedures.
The governance structure of OR is as follows:
l Operational Risk governance ensures consistent
oversight across all levels regarding the execution and
effectiveness of Operational Risk Framework (ORF).
l Operational risks are identified and graded at the
business/unit level. Mitigating controls are put in place
and progress monitored.
l Respective Risk Controls Owners approve all risk levels
identified by the business/unit level. These risks are
reported in phoenix and tabled in Business/Function
Operational Risk Committee (BORC/FORC).
l Business/Function Operational Risk Committees
(BORC/FORC) and the risk control owners ensure the
effective management of Operational Risk throughout
the business/ functions in the country in support of
the Group’s strategy and in accordance with the Risk
Management Framework.

Corporate governance

The Early Alert Committees (“EAC”) in WB and Small and
Medium Enterprise (“SME”) are subcommittees of CRC.
They are responsible for identifying and monitoring corporate
and SME clients showing potential signs of weakness
and/or may be exposed to higher risks. The EAC reviews
the existing Early Alert (“EA”) portfolio and new accounts
presented to the committee. The WB EAC is chaired by
the CEO, and the SME EAC is co-chaired by CCH-CB
(alternate: Head, Credit SME) and SME General Manager.
Both committees meet on a monthly basis.

Operational Risk Management Framework (ORMF) adopted
by the bank provides comprehensive risk management
tools for managing operational risk. The Operational Risk
Management Framework (ORMF) defines how risks are
managed, how Operational Risk policies and controls are
assured, how effective governance is exercised as well as
the key roles required to manage the underlying processes.
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BORC/FORC (as a committee) assign ownership,
require actions to be taken and monitor progress of
risks identified, in addition to confirming the risk grading
provided at the business/unit level.
Country Risk Committee (CRC) ensures the effective
management of Operational Risk throughout the country
in support of the Group’s strategy and in accordance with
the Risk Management Framework.
Country Risk Committee (CRC) accepts operational
risks arising in the country that have residual risk ratings
which are above ‘Low’ on the country materiality scale,
provided the residual risk rating is low on the Group
materiality scale. Risks categorized as Medium, High or
Very High on the Group materiality scale are reported
to the Country Risk Committee (CRC) for endorsement
and escalated to Group Business Operational Risk
Committees (ORCs) and Group Operational Risk
Committee (GORC) for acceptance.
The Business / Function Operational Risk Committees
(ORCs) at Regional level oversee operational risks within
businesses and functions across the Region.
The Group Operational Risk Committee (GORC) oversees
operational risks at Group level.
Process Governance Committee (PGC) provides global
oversight of all material operational risk arising from a
given end-to-end product, client or control processes to
ensure that they are identified and controlled.

Market Risk
Risks arising out of adverse movements in exchange
rates, interest rates, liquidity and equity are covered under
market risk management. We recognize Market Risk as
the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to
adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Our
exposure to market risk arises principally from customerdriven transactions. In line with capital framework prescribed
by NRB, the bank focuses on exchange risk management
for managing/computing the capital charge on market risk.
In addition the interest rate risk, liquidity risk and equity
risk are assessed at a regular interval to strengthen market
risk management. The market risk is managed within the
tolerance limit set by the Board.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not

have sufficient liquid financial resources available to meet
all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these
financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk
Framework governs liquidity risk and is managed by ALCO.
In accordance with that policy, the Bank maintains a liquid
portfolio of marketable securities as a liquidity buffer. The net
liquid assets to total deposits ratio is 40% which includes a
buffer of 7.8 billion over the regulatory requirement.

Reputational Risk
Reputational risk is the potential for damage to the franchise,
resulting in loss of earnings or adverse impact on market
capitalisation as a result of stakeholders taking a negative
view of the organisation or its actions.
The Reputational Risk Policy governs reputational risk and
is managed by the MANCO and CRC, which is responsible
for protecting the Group’s reputation locally and has the
responsibility to ensure that the Bank does not undertake
any activities that may cause material damage to the Group’s
franchise.
Reputational risk is registered, recorded and reviewed by the
CEO through the CRC. CRC covers all forms of reputational
risks (existing and forward looking) in the country. Business
and Functions related reputational risks are also discussed
in the CRC. Quarterly reporting from Country Corporate
Affairs to Group Corporate Affairs is in place to ensure that
no significant risks are missed and that Regional and Group
Corporate Affairs are fully briefed.
Given the level of local governance surrounding reputational
risk and as no material reputational concerns were noted by
the MANCO or CRC, the Bank is of the view that it does not
need to hold additional capital in respect of this risk.

Pension Risk
Pension risk is the potential for loss due to having to meet an
actuarially assessed shortfall in the Bank’s defined benefits
pension schemes. Pension obligation risk to a firm arises
from its contractual or other liabilities to or with respect to
an occupational pension scheme. It represents the risk that
additional contributions will need to be made to a pension
scheme because of a future shortfall in the funding of the
scheme.

31

The Pension Executive Committee (“PEC”), is a
subcommittee of the MANCO, and is responsible for pension
risk. The PEC is chaired by CEO and its other members
include: CFO and Head HR. It meets on a half-yearly basis.
The Bank assesses and monitors the assets and liabilities
within the defined benefit scheme on a full liability method.
The gross obligation is calculated considering the last drawn
salary of the individual staff and number of year’s service with
the bank. The PEC reviews the assets and liabilities position
of the defined benefit scheme on a half yearly basis.

Internal Control

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Bank’s system of internal
control during the year and provided feedback to the Board
as appropriate.
The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the Company through its program of business/unit
audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas
of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment
methodology. Internal Audit reports are periodically
forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits
are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business
Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

Capital Management
The Bank’s capital management approach is driven by
its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business and to meet the regulatory
capital requirements at all times.

In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing
the capital base as prescribed by the Central Bank, the Bank
is comfortable in meeting the minimum capital requirements
and is very strongly positioned to meet the performance
benchmarks.

Crisis Management
The Bank has in place a Crisis Management Plan and a
Country Crisis Management Team to manage and resolve
effectively serious crisis that may affect the operations
of the Bank. In addition to this, the Bank has a detailed
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to manage disruptions of
operations and a Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) to manage
Technological disruptions.

Health, Safety and Security
We consider the health and safety of our people and the
integrity of our business as most important aspect of our
operations. We regularly conduct audits of Health & Safety
and Environment Management and conduct inspections
of buildings and departments to provide assurance to
all stakeholders that risks are being managed effectively
and that there is a healthy and safety embedded working
environment for both our staff and our customers. As part of
Health & Safety corrective action plans, the Bank during the
year has completed redesigning and renovating work areas
in many parts of Head office building and other branches as
well.
We believe these actions will help our brand stand out from
our competitors. Ultimately they underpin our business and
will help us to grow stronger.

Relations with Shareholders
The Board recognizes the importance of good
communications with all the shareholders. There is regular

Corporate governance

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling
its business and financial activities in a manner which
enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities,
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational
damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To
achieve this, the Board has adopted the SCB Group policies
and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
mitigation and control/monitoring.

As Capital is the centerpiece of the Bank’s performance
matrix, a sound capital management forms the very core of
the overall performance landscape to ensure that the Bank
delivers on its objective of maximizing the shareholder’s
value. The senior management of the Bank is engaged and
responsible for prudent capital management at all times.
The Bank is comfortable in meeting the minimum capital
requirements and is very strongly positioned to meet the
performance benchmarks.
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information, both financial as well as non-financial, published
by the Company for the shareholder’s information. The
AGM is used as an opportunity to communicate with all the
shareholders.

Speaking Up: You have a responsibility to Speak Up when
you see behaviour you are not comfortable with at work.
This helps to maintain a culture of strong ethics, integrity and
transparency.

The notice of the AGM, as required by the Companies
Act, was sent to shareholders at least 21 days before the
date of the meeting at their mailing addresses available in
the Company’s records. In addition to that the notice and
agenda of the AGM were also published twice in the national
level daily newspaper for the shareholders information.

Comply with laws, regulations and Group standards: You
are individually responsible for complying with the spirit, not
just the letter, of laws, regulations and our Group standards.

Group Code of Conduct – Summary
Our values and our brand promise are integral to the way we
work every day. The Code is important because it outlines
how we can make sure that the decisions we make are the
right ones.
Our Code of Conduct has been updated more relevant to
our day-to-day work. We are all responsible for our actions
and for living our values, but the Code is a framework
to help us make the right decisions in difficult situations,
underpinning our brand promise of Here for good. The Bank
has a mandatory e-learning for its employees to embed the
revised Code of Conduct. There also is a process of yearly
recommitment to the Code by every employee.
Act responsibly and within authority: Be disciplined and
responsible in the risks you take and make sure they are
appropriate to your business or activity. You must keep
to our limits and policies and not make decisions that are
beyond your delegated authority.
Use good judgment: Recognise when there are situations
without simple solutions. Use the Code’s decision making
framework to help you make decisions well, appropriately
and with care.

Combat financial crime: It is critically important to protect
the worldwide financial system. You must comply with laws,
regulations and Group standards on anti-money laundering,
preventing financing for terrorism, fraud or sanctions.
Reject bribery and corruption: Bribery is illegal, dishonest
and damages the communities where it takes place. You
must not give or accept bribes nor take part in any form of
corruption.
Treat customers and clients fairly: A focus on building
long-term relationships helps to increase our business by
improving our reputation. This includes having well-designed
products, which:
• are clearly sold based on suitable advice;
• perform as expected; and
• give customers and clients choice.
Manage conflicts of interest: It is important not to put
yourself in a position where your judgment could be affected.
You are responsible for identifying, assessing and managing
conflicts of interest (whether actual or issues which could be
viewed as conflicts) that arise in your daily working life.
Do not take part in insider dealing: The misuse of inside
information undermines the financial system and unfairly
disadvantages others in the market. You must keep to the
Group Personal Account Dealing Policy to deal with the risk
of insider dealing.
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Protect confidential information: Building trust is a basic
part of all our relationships with customers and clients. You
must not release confidential information unless authorized
to do so.

Be open and co-operate with regulators: Deal with
regulators in a responsive, open and co-operative way and
give regulators information they would reasonably expect to
be told about.

Compete fairly in the market place: You must understand
and comply with the laws which affect how you compete in
your markets both locally and abroad.

Respect our communities and the environment: To
contribute to economic stability in our markets, we all have
a responsibility to reduce our effect on the environment and
give back to our communities.

Treat colleagues fairly and with respect: All employees are
entitled to a safe working environment that is inclusive and
free from discrimination, bullying and harassment. Treating
your colleagues as partners helps our people to deliver
on the brand promise, resulting in a positive effect on our
business results.

Corporate governance

34

Standard Chartered Annual Report 2012-2013

Additional Information
as required by section 109 of
the Company Act 2006

Un-audited first quarter result of the current financial year is
as follows:				(Rs.)
Risk Assets:
22.80 billion
Deposits:
40.017 billion
Operating profit:
496.31 million
Profit before bonus and taxes:
525.18 million
Net profit for the period:
334.20 million
Achievements of the current year as of the date of
preparation of the report, and opinion of the Board of
Directors on future actions:
Please refer the ‘Chairman’s Statement’ & CEO and
Director’s Report.
A review of the business during the previous year:
Please refer the sections ‘Wholesale Banking’ & ‘Consumer
Banking’ under CEO and Director’s Report.

Industrial or Professional Relations of the Company
The Company maintains a good professional relationship
with its customers, people and regulators. Senior
managers of the Company represent in number of councils,
committees and sub-committees of regulators’, professional
organizations, associations, and forums.
The Company is a member of Nepal Bankers Association,
Federation of Nepalese Chamber of Commerce & Industry,
Nepal Britain Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Nepal India
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Management Association
of Nepal and Nepal Institute of Company Secretary.
Changes made in the Board of Directors, and reasons
therefore
Please refer the section ‘Corporate Governance’ under
Chairman’s Statement.
Main factors affecting the business
Please refer the sections ‘A Challenging Environment’ and
‘Conclusion’ under Chairman’s Statement and ‘Credit
Environment’ under CEO & Director’s Report.
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Board of Directors’ Reaction to Remarks made, if any,
in the Audit Report
Please refer the sections ‘A Challenging Environment’ and
‘Conclusion’ under Chairman’s Statement and ‘Credit
Environment’ under CEO & Director’s Report.
The amount recommended for distribution as dividend
The Board has recommended paying Rs. 741,560,000 by
way of dividend and 185,390,000 by way of bonus share to
the shareholders.
Forfeited Shares
There are no shares forfeited during the fiscal year.
Transaction between the Bank and its Subsidiary
Company and the Progress made in the Business
The Bank does not have a subsidiary company.

Information furnished to the company by its basic
shareholders during the previous financial year
There are no basic shareholders in the bank as no
shareholder, except the SCB Group, holds more than 1%
of the paid up capital of the Company. There has been no
information received from the SCB Group in this regard.

Particulars of information furnished by any Director or
any of his close relatives about his personal interest
in any agreement connected with the company signed
during the previous financial year
There are no such information furnished by the directors and
any of their close relatives.
Purchase of own Shares
The bank has not purchased its own shares in the year
under review.
Whether or not there is an internal control system, and
if there is any such system, details there of
Please refer section ‘Our approach to Corporate
Governance’ under CEO & Director’s Report.
Particulars of the total management expenses of the
previous financial year
The management expense of the financial year is Rs.
804,114,453 (total of Staff Expenses and Other Operating
Expenses as per Schedule 4.23 & 4.24 of the Financial
Statements).
A list of members of the Audit Committee,
remunerations, allowances and facilities being
received by them, particulars of functions discharged
by the Committee, and particulars of suggestions, if
any, offered by the Committee.
Please refer section ‘Our approach to Corporate
Governance’.

Corporate governance

Main transactions carried out by the company and
its subsidiary company during the financial year and
any important change in the business of the company
during the period
The Bank does not have a subsidiary company and there is
no significant change in the business of the company during
the period.

Particulars of the ownership of shares taken up by the
Directors and office-bearers of the company during
the previous financial year, and information received
by the company from them about their involvement, if
any, in the transactions of the shares of the company
NIL. Directors and office bearer have not involved in the
shares transactions of the bank in FY 2069/70 as per the
declaration provided by them to the Company.
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Remunerations, allowances and facilities:
The Committee members and the Chairman have been
paid meeting allowance of NPR 5,000 and NPR 7,500
per meeting respectively. No remuneration and other
facilities were provided to them. The total amount of Audit
Committee meeting allowance paid during the fiscal year
was NPR 62,500; out of which NPR.37,500 was paid to Mr.
Ram Bahadur Aryal, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and NPR 25,000 was paid to Mr. Sujit Mundul member of
the Audit Committee, for attending the Audit Committee
meetings as Chairman and member of the Committee
respectively.
Functions discharged by the Committee:
Please refer section ‘Our approach to Corporate
Governance’.
Payments due, if any, to the company from any
Director, Managing Director, Executive Chief or basic
shareholder of the company or any of their close
relatives, or from any firm, company or corporate body
in which he is involved
Nil
Remunerations, Allowances and Facilities to the
Directors, the Managing Director, the Executive Chief
and other Office-bearers
Directors have not been paid any remuneration and no
facilities have been provided to them. Meeting allowance
is paid at Rs.22,500 to the Chairman and Rs. 17,500 to
Directors. However directors representing SCB Group are
not entitled to meeting allowance as per the Company’s
policy. Meeting allowances paid to the Directors are as
follows:
Professional Director, Ram Bahadur Aryal
Director, Sujit Mundul
Public Director, Amrit Kumari Thapa

2,10,000/2,10,000/2,10,000/-

Remunerations, allowances and bonus paid to the Chief
Executive Officer in FY 2069/70, who also was a Director of
the Board, is Rs. 1,94,41,736/- (after deducting applicable

tax). Chief Executive Officer is entitled for the following
facilities:
• Accommodation & Utilities
• Vehicle & Driver
• House Maid / Servant / Helper / Security
• Mobile / Telephone
• Medical Reimbursement
• Leave Travel Allowance
• Children Education Reimbursement
Dividends yet to be Collected by Shareholders
Total dividends yet to be collected by the shareholder
amounts to Rs. 31,800,264/55.
Detail of property’s buy or sell as per Clause 141
Nil.
Detail of the transactions held between Associated
Companies as per Clause 175
Nil.
Any other matter to be mentioned in the Board of
Directors’ report under Companies Act, 2063
Nil
Schedule- 13

Related to Sub Rule (1) of Rule 22 of
Securities Registration and Issuance
Regulation, 2065
Details to be incorporated in Annual
Report Functions
1. Report of Board of Directors
Covered in the CEO & Director’s Report section of this
annual report
2. Report of Auditor
Included in the annual report
3. Audited Financial Detail
Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss, cash flow detail and related
schedules Included.
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4. Detail relating to Legal Actions
(a) If any case filed by Organized Institution in the quarter,
Nil
(b) If any case relating to commission of disobedience
or criminal offence filed by or against the Promoter or
Director of Organized Institution.
No such information has been received.
(c) any case relating to commission of financial crime filed
against any Promoter or Director.
No such information has been received.
5. Analysis of share transaction and progress of
Organized Institution
a) Management view on share transaction of the Organized
Institution happened at Securities Market.
Price and transactions of the Bank’s shares are being
determined by the open share market operations thorough
a duly established Stock Exchange. Managements view on
this is neutral.

Ashwin end:
Maximum- Rs. 2,151, Minimum- Rs. 1,677, Last- Rs. 2,151,
total number of shares traded – 106939 and transacted
days - 63 respectively.
Poush end:
Maximum- Rs. 1,601, Minimum- Rs. 1,290, Last- Rs. 1,410,
total transacted number of shares- 51,406 and transacted
days-58 respectively.
Chaitra end:
Maximum- Rs. 2,084, Minimum- Rs. 1,794, Last- Rs. 1,877
total number of shares traded – 106939 and transacted
days - 63 respectively.

6.Problem and Challenge
The problem and challenge faced by the Bank are as
follows:
The problem and challenge the Organized Institution
has faced shall require to be clearly mentioned and the
Organized Institution shall, by clearly dividing such problem
and challenge as organized institution’s internal and external,
provide the detail relating to strategy followed by the
management in solving such problem and challenge.
INTERNAL
1. Escalating cost of operations due to inflationary and
regulatory pressures
2. Managing staff’s aspirations and engaging them in an
uncertain socio-economic environment.
EXTERNAL
1. Unstable socio-political environment.
2. Deteriorating risk environment.
3. Growing local competition.
STRATEGY
1. Closely monitor the internal and external environmental
changes and adopting proactive approach.
2. Undertaking various initiatives to improve employee
engagement and motivation.
3. Introducing new products and services to enhance
customer experience.
4. Achieving excellence in service for delighting our
customers.
5. Strict portfolio management.
7.Corporate Governance
Incorporated in detail under corporate Governance section
in this annual report.

Corporate governance

(b) Maximum, minimum and last share price of Organized
Institution including total transacted number of shares
and transacted day during each quarter of last FY
2069/70.

Aashadh end:
Maximum- Rs. 1914, Minimum- Rs. 1,721, Last- Rs. 1,820
total number of shares traded – 94480 and transacted days
- 63 respectively.
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Board of Directors
Sunil Kaushal
Chairman
Sunil Kaushal, Chairman of the Bank, is the Regional Chief
Executive, India & South Asia of Standard Chartered Bank.
He has over 26 years of banking experience. Prior to moving
into his current role, Sunil was the President and CEO of SCB
(Taiwan) Ltd. He has also assumed the roles of Global Head SME
and New Ventures based in Singapore and Head of Corporate
Banking in UAE. Sunil holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from Bombay University, India. He also holds a post-graduate
qualification as a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.Sunil has completed general
management courses at Harvard Business School, INSEAD,
Oxford University, and London Business School.

Anurag Adlakha
Director

Sujit Mundul

Anurag Adlakha, Director of the Bank, is a
Chartered Accountant by profession. He
has over 27 years of professional career
of which 20 years in financial services
industry including HSBC India. He is
presently working as the Chief Financial
Officer, India and South Asia.

Sujit Mundul, Director of SCB Nepal
holds the degree of M. Sc., BA
(Hons) in Economics & English, LLB,
CAIIB and AIB. He also served as a
Lecturer in Kolkata and possesses
over 39 years of banking experience
with SCB in different senior
positions.

Director
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Amrit Kumari Thapa
Public Director

Ram Bahadur Aryal
Independent Director

Joseph Silvanus
Director & Chief Executive Officer

Amrit Kumari Thapa, Public Director
is Masters in Business Administration
with specialisation in Budgeting, Profit
Planning & Control, Tax Laws and Tax
Planning. She was earlier the Director
in Synchro Media Pvt Ltd and the MD
of Vibes Media Pvt Ltd, Kathmandu.
She was also associated with Princeton
College in the capacity of Instructor cum
Teacher.

Ram Bahadur Aryal, Independent/
Professional Director is an MA in
Economics with more than 38 years
experience in Nepal Rastra Bank (Central
Bank of Nepal) holding senior positions
in banking operation, planning, training,
foreign exchange and Human Resources.

Joseph Silvanus has been with Standard
Chartered Bank for more than 22 years.
He had earlier assumed the role of CEO
Afghanistan, and the Regional Head,
Development Organizations, Southern Asia.
Prior to joining the Bank, he also worked
with other renowned organizations like Pepsi
Foods and Voltas in India. He holds a Post
Graduate degree in Management and an
honours degree in Economics.

Corporate governance
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Management Team

Ammar Husain
Head Integrated Distribution & Segments
Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer
SHOBHA BAHADUR RANA
Head of Legal and Compliance
Sujit Shrestha
Chief Information Officer
Gorakh Rana
Head Wholesale Banking
DIWAKAR POUDEL
Head Corporate Affairs
GOPI BHANDARI
Chief Operating Officer/
Senior Credit Officer
Joseph silvanus
Chief Executive Officer
BINA RANA
Head Human Resources
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Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd- Branches
KATHMANDU
Lazimpat
Branch- Lazimpat
PO Box 3990, Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 977-1-4418456
Fax: 977-1-4417428

Bhairahawa
Branch - Bhairahawa,Siddhartha Nagar
PO Box 14, Buddha Chowk Colony,
Burmeli Tole, Bhairahawa, Siddhartha Nagar
Tel: 977-71-524029,524429
Fax: 977-71-524039

Naya Baneshwor
Branch- Naya Baneshwor
PO Box 3990, Naya Baneshwor,
Kathmandu,Nepal
Tel:977-1-4782333, 4783753
Fax: 977-1-4780762

Biratnagar
Branch- Biratnagar, Morang
PO Box 201, Main Road, Biratnagar-3, Nepal
Tel: 977-21-528983
Fax: 977-21-528982

POKHARA
Pokhara- Lakeside
Branch- Lakeside, Pokhara
PO Box 8 Lakeside Baidam, Pokhara,Nepal
Tel: 977-61-462102, 462805, 461746
Fax: 977-61-462318

Birgunj
Branch- Birgunj, Adarsha Nagar
Adarsha Nagar 13, Birgunj, Nepal
Tel: 051-529494
Fax: 051-529677

Pokhara- New Road
Branch- New Road Pokhara, Nepal
PO Box 08
Tel: +977-061-23875, 523876, 536231, 524297
Fax: +977-061-531676

Butwal
Branch-Butwal, Rupandehi
Milan Chowk, Butwal, Municipality-11,
Rupandehi, Nepal
Tel: 977-71-546832
Fax: 977-71-546882

Narayangarh
Branch- Lions Chowk Bharatpur Height,
Narayangarh, Nepal
Tel: 056-571277/8
Fax: 056-571279

New Road
Branch- 1st Floor, 22, People’s
Plaza (Pako Wing) Pako,
New road Kathmandu,Nepal
Tel: 977-1-4157527/28
Fax: 977-1-4157530
Teku
Branch-Teku, Kathmandu
Tewa Investment Building,
House # 27,Hospital Marg Teku
Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 977-1-4100092/93/94
Fax: 977-1-4100095
Lalitpur
Branch- Jawalakhel, Lalitpur
PO Box 3990, Jawalakhel, Lalitpur, Nepal
Tel: 977-1-5540544, 5540566
Fax: 977-1-5523266

Dharan
Branch- Dharan, Sunsari, Panna Kamala
Complex, Ward No7/100 Ka, Buddha Marga,
Dharan-7 Sunsari, Nepal
Tel: 977-25-520505, 530980
Fax: 977-25-530981

Hetauda
Branch- Hetauda, Makwanpur, Bank Road,
Hetauda-4, Makwanpur, Nepal
Tel: 977-57-523019, 524972
Fax: 977-57-525695

Nepalgunj
Branch-Nepalgunj, Banke
Surkhet Road, Ward No 13,
Nepalgunj Banke, Nepal
Tel: 977-81-525514,520022
Fax: 977-81-525515

Extension Counters
UN Counter
UN Building, Lalitpur
Tel: 977-1-5537134
Fax No: 977-1-5540512

B.P. Koirala Institute of Health Sciences, Dharan
Tel: 977-25-530481
Fax No: 977-25-530481

British Gurkhas, PPO Pokhara
Tel: 977-61-440517
Fax No: 977-61-440517

Manipal Counter
Manipal Hospital, Fulbari
Tel: 977-61-526416

24 Hour ATM Sites
KATHMANDU
Maharajgunj
Opposite U.S. Embassy, Kathmandu
Boudha
Near mainentrance gate of
Boudhanalh stupa, Kathmandu
Durbar Marg
Hotel De'l Annapurna,
Durbar Marg, Kathmandu
New Road
Vishal Bazaar, New Road, Kathmandu
Naya Baneshwor
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd.
Naya Baneshwor, Kathmandu
UN Building
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd.,
UN Counter

New Road
22,People's Plaza (Pako Wing)
Pako, New road Kathmandu
Teku
Tewa Investment Building,
House No.:27,
Hospital Marg,Teku
Thamel
Kathmandu Arcadia Building,
Near Yin Yang Restaurant,
Thamel, Kathmandu
Thamel
Kathmandu Guest House,
Thamel, Kathmandu
Lazimpat
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd.
Lazimpat, Kathmandu

Jawalakhel, Lalitpur
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd
Jawalakhel, Lalitpur
Pulchowk, Lalitpur
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited,
Near UNDP Complex, Lalitpur
DHARAN
BPKIHS
B P Koirala Institute of Health Science Dharan
POKHARA
Lakeside Hotel Snowland, Lakeside Pokhara
New Road
Branch Pokhara, Nepal
Lake side
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd, Pokhara

Narayangarh
Hotel Pawan Building,
Bhairahawa
ITAHARI
Bhu Pu Gorkha
Departmental Store,
Dharan Biratnagar Road
Itahari 1, Sunsari
NARAYAN GHAT
Standard Chartered
Bank Nepal Limited,
Narayangarh
BIRATNAGAR
Standard Chartered Bank
Nepal Limited, Biratnagar
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CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mahamati Bhawan
175, Gairidhara Marg, Gairidhara
P.O Box No: 4861, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: +977-1-4004580, 4004581, 4004582
Fax: +977-1-4004578
Email: csc@cscnepal.com
Web: www.cscnepal.com

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited
Financial statements and management’s responsibility
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited which comprise the balance sheet
as of July 15, 2013 (Ashadh 31, 2070) and the profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Bank’s management.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Report on the requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2063 and Company Act 2063
We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the bank, though the statements are independently not
audited were adequate for the purpose of the audit; the financial statements including the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account
and the Cash flow Statement have been prepared in accordance with the methods and format specified by Nepal Rastra Bank, and
they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Bank; and the accounts and records of the Bank are properly maintained in
accordance with the prevailing laws.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as of July 15, 2013 (Ashadh 31,
2070) and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards, so far as
applicable in compliance with the prevailing Laws, the directives from Nepal Rastra Bank, Bank and Financial Institution Act 2063 and
Company Act 2063.

Date: 17 September, 2013
Place: Kathmandu

Madan Krishna Sharma
Partner
CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Financial statements and notes

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we observed that the bank
has taken actions for protection of the interest of depositors and investors; the capital fund and risk bearing fund were adequately
maintained; loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Bank was conducted satisfactorily and the Bank’s transactions
were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases where the board of directors or any director or
any office bearer of the Bank has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Bank or committed any
misappropriation or violated directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.
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Balance Sheet
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Capital & Liabilities

Schedule

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1. Share Capital

4.1

2,039,290,000

1,851,693,200

2. Reserves and Funds

4.2

2,578,284,225

2,270,475,759

3. Debentures and Bonds

4.3

-

-

4. Loans and Borrowings

4.4

-

-

5. Deposit Liability

4.5

39,466,453,239

35,965,630,744

6. Bills Payables

4.6

49,540,914

86,378,524

7. Proposed Dividend

741,560,000

724,575,600

8. Income Tax Liability

-

-

9. Other Liabilities

4.7

755,971,963

778,298,533

45,631,100,342

41,677,052,360

Schedule

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1. Cash Balance

4.8

687,680,696

509,677,917

2. Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank

4.9

4,588,269,872

4,833,920,464

3. Balance with Banks/Financial Institutions

4.10

1,129,048,214

1,022,634,688

4. Money at Call and Short Notice

4.11

3,009,064,000

2,126,035,000

5. Investments

4.12

12,753,518,240

12,966,635,227

6. Loans, Advances and Bills Purchased

4.13

22,828,838,456

19,575,968,330

7. Fixed Assets

4.14

81,518,150

89,633,207

8. Non-Banking Assets

4.15

-

-

9. Other Assets

4.16

Total Liabilities
Assets

Total Assets
Contingent Liabilities
Declaration of Directors
Capital Adequacy Table
Statement of Credit Risk
Statement of Eligible Credit Risk Mitigation
Statement of Operational Risk
Statement of Market Risk
Key Indicators
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts
Statement of Loan Availed by Promoter Shareholders from Other
Bank and FIs by Pledging Their Shares
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

552,547,527
41,677,052,360

Schedule 4.17
Schedule 4.29
Schedule 4.30 (Ka 1)
Schedule 4.30 (Kha)
Schedule 4.30 (Ga)
Schedule 4.30 (Gha)
Schedule 4.30 (Nga)
Schedule 4.31
Schedule 4.32
Schedule 4.33
Schedule 4.34
Schedule 4.35
As per our report of even date

Schedules 4.1 to 4.17 form integral part of the Balance Sheet

Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer

Joseph Silvanus
CEO & Director

Anurag Adlakha
Director

Sujit Mundul
Director

Ram Bahadur Aryal
Director

Amrit Kumari Thapa
Director

Date: 17 September, 2013

553,162,714
45,631,100,342

Madan K. Sharma
Partner
for and on behalf of CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Profit and Loss Account
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashadh 2070)

Particulars

Schedule

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1. Interest Income

4.18

2,535,359,454

2,870,970,682

2. Interest Expenses

4.19

Net Interest Income

611,382,395

1,007,198,992

1,923,977,059

1,863,771,690

3. Commission and Discount

4.20

294,967,606

267,766,400

4. Other Operating Incomes

4.21

42,726,526

38,354,654

5. Exchange Fluctuation Income

4.22

515,050,174

468,556,720

Total Operating Income

2,776,721,365

2,638,449,464

6. Staff Expenses

4.23

421,630,889

386,823,372

7. Other Operating Expenses

4.24

382,483,564

349,364,910

8. Exchange Fluctuation Loss

4.22

-

-

1,972,606,912

1,902,261,182

110,125,417

208,251,274

1,862,481,494

1,694,009,908

Operating Profit Before Provision for Possible Loss
9. Provision for Possible Losses

4.25

Operating Profit
10. Non-Operating Income/ (Loss)

4.26

1,170,292

707,946

11. Provision for Possible Loss Written Back

4.27

50,134,529

190,917,635

1,913,786,316

1,885,635,489

2,409,783

(42,576,698)

Profit from Ordinary Activities
12. Income/(Expenses) from Extra Ordinary Activities

4.28

Net Profit after considering all Activities

1,916,196,099

1,843,058,791

13. Provision for Staff Bonus

174,199,646

167,550,799

14. Provision for Income Tax

524,055,703

506,540,495

527,104,938

510,927,100

-

3,608,882

Current Year’s Tax Provision
Upto Previous Year’s Tax Provision
Current Year’s Deferred Tax Income/Expenses
Net Profit/Loss
Schedules 4.18 to 4.28 form integral part of this Profit and Loss Account

Joseph Silvanus
CEO & Director

Anurag Adlakha
Director

Sujit Mundul
Director

Ram Bahadur Aryal
Director

Amrit Kumari Thapa
Director

Date: 17 September, 2013

(7,995,487)
1,168,967,497

As per our report of even date

Madan K. Sharma
Partner
for and on behalf of CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Financial statements and notes

Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer

(3,049,236)
1,217,940,751
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Profit and Loss Appropriation Account
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashadh 2070)

Particulars

Schedule

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

10,795,121

44,407,112

1,217,940,751

1,168,967,497

-

-

1,228,735,871

1,213,374,609

1. Accumulated Loss up to Previous Year

-

-

2. Current Year’s Loss

-

-

243,588,150

233,793,499

4. Contingent Reserve

-

-

5. Institutional Development Fund

-

-

6. Dividend Equalisation Fund

-

-

7. Employees Related Reserves

-

-

8. Proposed Dividend

741,560,000

724,575,600

9. Proposed Issue of Bonus Shares

185,390,000

241,525,200

-

-

27,970,545

47,691,118

-

-

Income
1. Accumulated Profit up to Previous Year
2. This Year’s Profit
3. Exchange Fluctuation Fund
Total
Expenses

3. General Reserve Fund

10. Special Reserve Fund
11. Exchange Fluctuation Fund
12. Capital Redemption Reserve Fund
13. Capital Adjustment Fund
14. Deferred Tax Reserve
15. Investment Adjustment Reserve
Total
Accumulated Profit/(Loss)

-

-

(1,508,049)

7,995,487

367,500

(51,146,200)

1,197,368,147

1,204,434,704

31,367,725

8,939,905

As per our report of even date

Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer

Joseph Silvanus
CEO & Director

Anurag Adlakha
Director

Sujit Mundul
Director

Ram Bahadur Aryal
Director

Amrit Kumari Thapa
Director

Date: 17 September, 2013

Madan K. Sharma
Partner
for and on behalf of CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

10,795,121
1,217,940,751
(243,588,150)
(741,560,000)
(185,390,000)
(27,970,545)
1,508,049

1,851,693,200
-

185,390,000

2,206,800
-

Closing Balance as at 15 July 2013

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve

Exchange Fluctuation Fund

Issue of Share Capital

Proposed Issue of Bonus Shares

Issue of Bonus Share

Proposed Dividend

Transfer to General Reserve

Net Profit for the Period

Surplus/ Deficit on revaluation of investments

Surplus/ Deficit on revaluation of properties

Restated Balance as at 15 July 2012

Financial statements and notes

2,039,290,000

1,855,216

-

31,367,725

(367,500)

8,939,905

1,851,693,200

Opening Balance as at 15 July 2012

Adjustments

Accumulated
Profit

Share Capital

Particulars

Financial Year 2069/70 (FY 2012/13)

2,113,706,954

-

-

-

-

-

-

243,588,150

-

-

-

1,870,118,804

-

1,870,118,804

General
Reserve

Statement of Changes in Equity

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Capital
Reserve
Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Share
Premium

334,855,548

-

27,970,545

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

306,885,003

-

306,885,003

Exchange
Fluctuation
Fund

81,397,698

(1,508,049)

-

-

82,905,747

-

82,905,747

Deferred
Tax
Reserve

16,956,300

15,330,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,626,300

-

1,626,300

Other
Reserve &
Fund

4,617,574,225

14,962,500

-

-

2,206,800

-

-

(741,560,000)

-

1,217,940,751

-

-

4,124,024,175

1,855,216

4,122,168,959

Rs
Total
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Cash Flow Statement

for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashadh 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1. Cash Receipts
1.1 Interest Income
1.2 Commission and Discount Income
1.3 Income from Foreign Exchange Transaction
1.4 Recovery of Loan Written off
1.5 Other Income

(352,082,338)
3,248,009,949
2,348,701,226
295,033,070
515,050,174
44,618,830
44,606,649

(1,641,326,128)
3,138,159,277
2,317,393,636
270,471,498
468,556,720
43,382,769
38,354,654

2. Cash Payments
2.1 Interest Expenses
2.2 Staff Expenses
2.3 Office Operating Expenses
2.4 Income tax Payment
2.5 Other Expenses

2,636,209,235
641,284,367
424,573,409
330,396,998
521,405,292
718,549,169

3,218,331,097
1,090,292,362
381,732,280
430,470,635
519,653,601
796,182,219

611,800,713
(4,225,058,932)
(883,029,000)
(3,352,070,062)
10,040,130

(80,171,820)
925,605,691
2,154,853,000
(1,251,990,945)
22,743,636

3,261,175,881
3,500,822,495
(239,646,615)

(2,486,759,999)
(2,033,611,566)
(350,000,000)
(103,148,433)

388,641,251
231,491,987
(9,405,490)
166,295,513
259,241
-

5,031,763,919
4,320,466,698
(7,177,083)
717,991,400
482,904
-

2,206,800
2,206,800
-

-

-

-

38,765,713

3,390,437,791

(F) Opening Cash and Bank Balance

6,366,233,069

2,975,795,278

(G) Closing Cash and Bank Balance

6,404,998,782

6,366,233,069

Cash Flow before Changes in Working Capital
Decrease/ (Increase) of Current Assets
1. Decrease / (Increase) in Money at Call and Short Notice
2. Decrease / (Increase) in Short-term Investment
3. Decrease / (Increase) in Loan and Bills Purchase
4. Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets
(Decrease) /Increase of Current Liabilities
1. (Decrease) / Increase in Deposits
2. (Decrease) / Increase in Certificate of Deposits
3. (Decrease) / Increase in Short Term Borrowings
4. (Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities
(B) Cash Flow from Investment Activities
1. Decrease/ (Increase) in Long term Investment
2. Decrease/ (Increase) in Fixed assets
3. Interest Income from Long Term Investment
4. Dividend Income
5. Others
(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. Increase/ (Decrease) in Long term Borrowings (Bond, Debenture etc)
2. Increase / (Decrease) in Share Capital
3. Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liability
4. Increase / (Decrease) in Refinance /Facilities received from Nepal Rastra Bank
(D) Income/Expense from change in exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balance
(E) Current year’s cash flow from all activities

As per our report of even date
Satish Gundewar
Chief Financial Officer

Joseph Silvanus
CEO & Director

Anurag Adlakha
Director

Sujit Mundul
Director

Ram Bahadur Aryal
Director

Amrit Kumari Thapa
Director

Date: 17 September, 2013

Madan K. Sharma
Partner
for and on behalf of CSC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Schedule 4.1:

Share Capital and Ownership
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars
1.

This year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

2,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

-

-

Share Capital

1.1 Authorised Capital
A) 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
B) Non-Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each
C) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each
1.2 Issued Capital
A) 18,539,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
B) Non-Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each
C) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each

-

-

1,853,900,000

1,610,168,000

1,853,900,000

1,610,168,000

-

-

-

-

1,853,900,000

1,610,168,000

1,853,900,000

1,610,168,000

B) Non-Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each

-

-

C) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. - each

-

-

185,390,000

241,525,200

-

-

2,039,290,000

1,851,693,200

1.3 Paid Up Capital
A) 18,539,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

1.4 Proposed Bonus Share
1.5 Calls in Advance
1.6 Total

Share Ownership Details

This Year
%

Previous Year
Share Capital

%

Share Capital

1. Domestic Ownership

25.00

463,475,000

25.00

402,542,000

1.1 Government of Nepal

-

-

-

-

1.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions

-

-

-

-

1.3 Other Licensed Institutions
1.4 Other Entities
1.5 Individuals
1.6 Others
Total

-

-

-

38,740,300

2.03

32,760,200

22.91

424,734,700

22.97

369,781,800

-

-

-

-

75.00

1,390,425,000

75.00

1,207,626,000

100.00

1,853,900,000

100.00

1,610,168,000

Number of Shares Held

% of Total Shares

Amount Rs.

Details of the Shareholders holding 0.5 % or more of the Total Shares
Sn

Name of the Shareholders

1

Standard Chartered Grindlays Ltd, Sydney, Australia

9,269,500

50.00

926,950,000

2

Standard Chartered Bank, London, UK

4,634,750

25.00

463,475,000

3

Priyanka Agrawal

98,197

0.53

9,819,700

4

Avinash Agrawal

98,197

0.53

9,819,700

5

Komal Agrawal

98,197

0.53

9,819,700

6

Sashi Agrawal

98,197

0.53

9,819,700

7

Shankar Lal Agrawal

98,197

0.53

9,819,700

8

Arjun Bandhu Regmi

98,194

0.53

9,819,400

9

Pashupati Soap Industries

94,810

0.51

9,481,000

Financial statements and notes

2. Foreign Ownership

2.09
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Schedule 4.2:

Reserves and funds
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. General Reserve Fund
2. Capital Reserve Fund
3. Capital Redemption Reserve
4. Capital Adjustment Fund
5. Other Reserves and Funds
5.1. Contingent Reserve
5.2. Institutional Development fund
5.3. Dividend Equalisation Fund
5.4. Special Reserve Fund
5.5. Assets Revaluation Reserve
5.6. Deferred Tax Reserve
5.7. Other Free Reserves
5.8. Other Reserves
6. Accumulated Profit/ (Loss)
7. Exchange Fluctuation Fund
Total

This Year Rs.
2,113,706,954
98,353,998
81,397,698
16,956,300
31,367,725
334,855,548
2,578,284,225

Previous Year Rs.
1,870,118,804
84,532,047
82,905,747
1,626,300
8,939,905
306,885,003
2,270,475,759

Schedule 4.3:

Debentures and Bonds
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1 ...… Percent Bond/Debentures of Rs………each issued on……………….and Maturing
on…………... (Outstanding balance of Redemption Reserves Rs……..

-

-

2 ....… Percent Bond/Debentures of Rs………each issued on……………….and Maturing
on…………...(Outstanding balance of Redemption Reserves Rs……..

-

-

Total ( 1+2 )

-

-

Schedule 4.4:

Loans and Borrowings
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
A. Local
1. Government of Nepal
2. Nepal Rastra Bank
3. Repo Liabilities
4. Inter Bank and Financial Institution
5. Other Institutions
6. Others
Total A
B. Foreign
1. Banks
2. Others
Total B
Total (A+B)

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

-

-

-

-
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Schedule 4.5:

Deposit Accounts
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

A. CURRENT DEPOSITS

13,894,578,160

11,317,217,357

1. Local Currency

1. Non-Interest Bearing Accounts
6,632,454,753

5,636,162,825

1.1 Government of Nepal

22,993,196

49,276,792

1.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions

73,598,049

82,022,983

1.3 Other Licensed Institutions

3,421,126

2,899,213

6,196,750,092

5,123,449,731

293,462,062

326,613,052

42,230,229

51,901,054

7,262,123,407

5,681,054,532

2.1 Government of Nepal

16,630,877

24,619,212

2.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions

29,749,641

13,331,705

1.4 Other Organised Institutions
1.5 Individuals
1.6 Others
2 Foreign Currency

2.3 Other Licensed Institutions

-

-

7,049,951,043

5,442,841,161

162,512,263

193,712,751

3,279,583

6,549,703

716,906,966

867,303,529

2. Guarantee Margin

188,419,418

402,171,664

3. Letter of Credit Margin

171,608,129

303,688,112

4. Others

356,879,419

161,443,753

2.4 Other Organised Institutions
2.5 Individuals
2.6 Others
B. MARGIN DEPOSITS
1. Employees Guarantee

C. OTHERS
1. Local Currency
1.1 Financial Institutions

37,971,989
25,571,137

-

-

-

11,500,000

13,100,000

14,071,137

2. Foreign Currency

-

12,400,852

2.1 Financial Institutions

-

-

1.3 Individuals

2.2 Other Organised Institutions
2.3 Individuals
Total of Non-Interest Bearing Accounts

10,140,790
-

2,260,062

14,624,585,127

12,222,492,875

Financial statements and notes

1.2 Other Organised Institutions

13,100,000
13,100,000
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Schedule 4.5:

Deposit Accounts (Continued)
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

17,885,046,363

15,502,306,249

15,384,004,599

13,309,332,863

1,434,046,102

730,309,106

13,947,372,038

12,576,489,422

2. Interest Bearing Accounts
A. SAVING DEPOSITS
1. Local Currency
1.1 Organised Institutions
1.2 Individuals
1.3 Others
2. Foreign Currency
2.1 Organised Institutions

2,586,460

2,534,335

2,501,041,764

2,192,973,386

135,041,103

146,778,816

2,343,868,234

2,027,578,332

22,132,426

18,616,238

B. FIXED DEPOSITS

3,713,141,041

4,623,288,894

1. Local Currency

2.2 Individuals
2.3 Others

2,540,956,669

3,376,173,622

1.1 Organised Institutions

1,123,511,985

1,096,016,286

1.2 Individuals

1,417,444,684

2,280,157,336

1,172,184,372

1,247,115,272

1,153,095,098

1,205,284,877

19,089,273

41,830,395

-

-

C. CALL DEPOSITS

3,243,680,709

3,617,542,726

1. Local Currency

3,138,983,610

3,610,279,322

-

-

1.3 Others
2. Foreign Currency
2.1 Organised Institutions
2.2 Individuals
2.3 Others

1.1 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions
1.2 Other Licensed Institutions
1.3 Other Organised Institutions
1.4 Individuals
1.5 Others
2. Foreign Currency

43,328

43,321

2,715,361,434

2,635,866,061

422,362,317

973,533,468

1,216,531

836,472

104,697,099

7,263,404

2.1 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions

-

-

2.2 Other Licensed Institutions

-

-

2.3 Other Organised Institutions

104,697,099

7,263,404

2.4 Individuals

-

-

2.5 Others

-

-

D. CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS

-

-

1. Organised Institutions

-

-

2. Individuals

-

-

-

-

Total of Interest Bearing Accounts

3. Others

24,841,868,113

23,743,137,869

Total Deposits (1+2)

39,466,453,239

35,965,630,744
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Schedule 4.6:

Bills Payable
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1. Local Currency

29,861,828

52,369,360

2. Foreign Currency

19,679,086

34,009,164

Total

49,540,914

86,378,524

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

76,273,567

79,216,086

-

-

Schedule 4.7:

Other Liabilities
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Pension/Gratuity Fund
2. Employees Provident Fund
3. Employees Welfare Fund

-

-

4. Provision for Staff Bonus

174,199,646

167,550,799

55,560,331

89,040,617

-

-

7. Unearned Discount and Commission

116,110,710

51,255,715

8. Sundry Creditors

180,252,760

280,365,962

-

-

31,800,265

25,773,834

121,774,685

85,095,520

5. Interest Payable on Deposits
6. Interest Payable on Borrowings

9. Branch Adjustment Account
10. Deferred Tax Liability
11. Dividend Payable
12. Others
a) Audit Fees Payable
b) Others
Total

613,250

613,250

121,161,435

84,482,270
755,971,963

778,298,533

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

621,702,030

473,481,059

Schedule 4.8:

As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Local Currency (including coins)
2. Foreign Currency
Total

65,978,666

36,196,858

687,680,696

509,677,917

Financial statements and notes

Cash Balance
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Schedule 4.9:

Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

Local
Currency
Rs.

Foreign Currency Rs.

Grand Total
Rs.

Previous Year
Rs.

74,196,247

4,588,269,872

4,833,920,464

INR

Convertible
Foreign
Currency

Total

-

74,196,247

1. Nepal Rastra Bank

4,514,073,624

a) Current A/C

4,514,073,624

-

74,196,247

74,196,247

4,588,269,872

4,833,920,464

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Other A/C

Schedule 4.10:

Balance with Banks / Financial Institutions
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

1. Local Licensed Institutions
a. Current Account
b. Other Account
2. Foreign Banks
a. Current Account
b. Other Account
Total

Local
Currency
Rs.

Foreign Currency (Rs.)

Grand Total
Rs.

Previous Year
Rs.

-

65,811,107

90,043,264

-

65,811,107

90,043,264

-

-

-

-

141,909,045

921,328,062

1,063,237,107

1,063,237,107

932,591,424

141,909,045

921,328,062

1,063,237,107

1,063,237,107

932,591,424

INR

Convertible
Foreign
Currency

Total

65,811,107

-

-

65,811,107

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

65,811,107

141,909,045

921,328,062

1,063,237,107

1,129,048,214

1,022,634,688

Note: Balance as per the confirmation and statement received from respective banks is NPR Rs 1,606,677,929 and the differences have
been reconciled.
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Schedule 4.11:

Money at Call and Short Notice
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

-

-

2. Foreign Currency

3,009,064,000

2,126,035,000

Total

3,009,064,000

2,126,035,000

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

1. Local Currency

Schedule 4.12:

Investments
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

Purpose
Trading

Other

1.Government of Nepal Treasury Bills

-

4,299,023,740

4,299,023,740

7,242,986,727

2.Government of Nepal Saving Bonds

-

-

-

-

3. Government of Nepal Others Securities

-

531,875,000

531,875,000

648,150,000

4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds

-

-

-

-

5. Foreign Securities

-

-

-

-

6. Local Licensed Institutions

-

-

-

-

7. Foreign Banks

-

7,819,194,000

7,819,194,000

4,981,955,000

8. Corporate Shares

-

109,425,500

109,425,500

109,425,500

9. Corporate Debenture and Bonds

-

-

-

8,493,000

10. Other Investments

-

-

-

-

Total Investments

-

12,759,518,240

12,759,518,240

12,991,010,227

6,000,000

6,000,000

24,375,000

-

12,753,518,240

12,753,518,240

12,966,635,227

Provision
Net Investments

Financial statements and notes
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Schedule 4.12(A):

Investment in Shares, Debentures and Bonds
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

As per
Market
Price Rs.

Provision
Amount
Rs.

This Year
Rs.

Previous
Year Rs.

109,425,500

-

6,000,000

103,425,500

109,425,500

3,000,000

NA (Note - 3)

3,000,000

-

3,000,000

3,000,000

NA (Note - 3)

3,000,000

-

3,000,000

52,190,000

NA (Note - 3)

-

52,190,000

52,190,000

1,235,500

NA (Note - 3)

-

1,235,500

1,235,500

47,500,000

47,500,000

-

47,500,000

47,500,000

2,500,000

NA (Note - 3)

-

2,500,000

2,500,000

2. Investment in Debentures and Bonds

-

-

-

-

8,493,000

2.1 Nepal Electricity Authority

-

-

-

-

8,493,000

109,425,500

-

6,000,000

103,425,500

117,918,500

1. Investment in Shares
1.1 Purwanchal Grameen Bikash Bank Ltd.

Cost Price
Rs.

30,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up
1.2 Sudur Paschimanchal Grameen Bikash Bank Ltd.
30,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up
1.3 Rural Micro Finance Development Centre Ltd.
521,900 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up
1.4 Credit Information Centre Ltd.
36,599 Ordinary Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up
(including 24,244 bonus shares fully paid up)
1.5 Taragaon Regency Hotels Ltd.
475,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up
1.6 Nepal Clearing House Ltd.
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up

7.75%; 8,493 bonds of Rs. 1,000 each fully paid
up, interest payable semiannually, maturity on 27th
March 2013
Total Investment
3. Provision for Loss
3.1 Upto Previous year
3.2 Increase/Decrease this Year
Total Provision
Net Investments

24,375,000

24,375,000

(18,375,000)

-

6,000,000

24,375,000

103,425,500

93,543,500

NOTE:
1. The following companies have not distributed dividends in the last three years :
1.1 Purwanchal Grameen Bikash Bank Ltd.
1.2 Sudur Paschimanchal Grameen Bikash Bank Ltd.
1.3 Rural Micro Finance Development Centre Ltd.
1.4 Taragaon Regency Hotels Ltd.
1.5 Nepal Clearing House Ltd.
2. Out of the total investment above, shares of Purwanchal Grameen Bikash Bank Ltd and Taragaon Regency Hotels Ltd. are listed at the Nepal Stock Exchange
Ltd (NEPSE).
3. NA - In the absence of sufficient information and/or listing in NEPSE , the market value of the investments have not been shown.
4. Last trading price of Taragaon Regency Hotels Ltd. was Rs.100/share, accordingly the provision as per last year has been reversed in Investment Adjustment
Reserve.
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Schedule 4.12.1:

Business Investment (Held For Trading)
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

Cost
Price Rs.

Previous
Market
Price (a)
Rs.

Current
Market
Price (b)
Rs.

This Year
Previous
Profit/
Year
(Loss)
Profit/
(b-a) Rs. (Loss) Rs.

Remarks

1. Nepal Government’s Treasury Bills
2. Nepal Government’s Saving Bonds
3. Nepal Government’s Other Securities
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bond
5. Foreign Securites
6. Shares of Domestic Licensed Institution
7. Debenture and Bond of Domestic Licensed Institution
8. Shares, Debentures and Bond of Domestic Corporates
9. Foreign Bank Investment (Placement)
10. Interbank Lending
11. Other Investments
Total Investment

Schedule 4.12.2:

Investment Held To Maturity
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

Cost Price (a)
Rs.

Impairment
till Date (b)
Rs.

Impairment
this year (c)
Rs.

This Year
Profit/(Loss)
(a-b-c) Rs.

Previous Year
Profit/(Loss)
Rs.

1. Nepal Government’s Treasury Bills

4,299,023,740

-

-

4,299,023,740

7,242,986,727

-

-

-

-

-

531,875,000

-

-

531,875,000

648,150,000

2. Nepal Government’s Saving Bonds
3. Nepal Government’s Other
Securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6. Shares of Domestic Licensed
Institution

-

-

-

-

-

7. Debenture and Bond of Domestic
Licensed Institution

-

-

-

-

-

8. Shares, Debentures and Bond of
Domestic Corporates

-

-

-

-

8,493,000

7,819,194,000

-

-

7,819,194,000

4,981,955,000

9. Foreign Bank Investment
(Placement)
10. Other Investments
Total

-

-

-

-

-

12,650,092,740

-

-

12,650,092,740

12,881,584,727

Financial statements and notes

4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bond
5. Foreign Securites

Remarks
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Schedule 4.12.3:

Business Investment (Available for Sale)
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

Cost Price
Rs.

Previous
Market Price
(a) Rs.

Current
Market
Price (b)
Rs.

This Year
Fund Adj
(b-a) Rs.

Previous
Year Profit/
(Loss) Rs.

58,190,000

58,190,000

58,190,000

-

58,190,000

51,235,500

29,860,500

51,235,500

21,375,000

51,235,500

109,425,500

88,050,500

109,425,500

21,375,000

109,425,500

1. Nepal Government’s Treasury Bills
2. Nepal Government’s Saving Bonds
3. Nepal Government’s Other Securities
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bond
5. Foreign Securites
6. Shares of Domestic Licensed Institution
7. Debenture and Bond of Domestic Licensed
Institution
8. Shares, Debentures and Bond of Domestic
Corporates
9. Foreign Bank Investment (Placement)
10. Other Investments
Total

The market price of the investments which are either not listed or not actively traded are shown on cost price.

Remarks

-

-

-

3.4 Doubtful

3.5 Loss

-

3.3 Substandard

(B) Total Provision

-

-

-

-

-

Insured
Rs.

3.1 Pass

-

4.4 Doubtful

-

(D) Previous Year’s Provision written back

-

-

Net Adjustments of the Year

31,027,821
94,677,580
63,649,759
21,407,376,210

4,352,990
5,650,000
1,297,010
735,929,772

19,101,625

5,354,495

231,289,545

31,110,267

234,363

-

6,370,987

175,723,158

-

34,317,197

-

6,136,624

21,519,759

22,320,406

-

-

294,939,304

216,781,942

7,433,634

234,363

21,702,315,514

743,597,770

7,667,997

68,634,393

86,079,036

22,320,406

-

-

177,033,835

234,363

234,363

21,525,281,678
21,525,281,678

743,363,407

Other
Rs.

Uninsured
Rs.

Foreign
Rs.

672,978,974

6,442,737

6,797,767

355,030

355,030

355,030

6,797,767

-

-

-

-

6,797,767

679,776,741

-

-

-

-

-

679,776,741

679,776,741

Loans & Advances

743,363,407

Financial statements and notes

Net Loan (A-B)

(E) This Year’s additional provision

-

(C)Total Provision upto PreviousYear

-

-

4.3. Substandard

4.5 Loss

-

-

4.1 Pass

4.2 Rescheduled/Restructured loan

4. Provision up to Previous Year

Domestic

Deprived Sector

3.2 Rescheduled/ Restructured

3. Loan Loss Provision

(A) Total Loans

2.4 Loss

2.3 Doubtful

2.2 Substandard

2.1 Restructured/Rescheduled

2. Non-Performing Loans

Pass

1. Performing Loans

Particulars

As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

22,816,284,956

71,389,507

107,125,347

35,735,841

238,015,562

19,335,988

5,354,495

31,110,267

-

182,214,812

309,405,069

22,554,769

34,317,197

21,519,759

-

231,013,344

23,125,690,024

22,554,769

68,634,393

86,079,036

-

177,268,199

22,948,421,826

22,948,421,826

Total
Rs.

Schedule 4.13: Classification of Loans, Advances and Bills Purchased and Provisioning

11,880

70

70

-

50

-

-

-

50

120

-

-

-

120

12,000

-

-

-

-

-

12,000

12,000

Domestic
Rs.

12,541,620

(14,398,688)

-

14,398,688

14,525,371

-

-

-

14,525,371

126,683

-

-

-

126,683

12,668,303

-

-

-

-

-

12,668,303

12,668,303

Foreign
Rs.

12,553,500

(14,398,618)

70

14,398,688

14,525,421

-

-

-

14,525,421

126,803

-

-

-

126,803

12,680,303

-

-

-

-

-

12,680,303

12,680,303

Total
Rs.

Bills Purchased and Discounted

22,828,838,456

56,990,889

107,125,417

50,134,529

252,540,983

19,335,988

5,354,495

31,110,267

-

196,740,233

309,531,872

22,554,769

34,317,197

21,519,759

-

231,140,147

23,138,370,328

22,554,769

68,634,393

86,079,036

-

177,268,199

22,961,102,129

22,961,102,129

This Year
Rs.

19,575,968,330

17,333,639

208,251,274

190,917,635

235,207,344

26,540,971

1,767,800

21,431,833

-

185,466,740

252,540,983

19,335,988

5,354,495

31,110,267

-

196,740,233

19,828,509,313

19,335,988

10,708,990

124,441,070

-

154,486,048

19,674,023,265

19,674,023,265

Previous Year
Rs.
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Schedule 4.13(A):

Securities Against Loan, Advance and Bills Purchased
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

(A) Secured

23,138,370,328

19,828,509,313

1. Movable / Immovable Assets

20,340,044,048

15,369,457,673

-

-

3. Government Guarantee

138,807,033

138,807,033

4.Guarantee of Internationally Rated Banks

203,149,200

411,115,644

2. Guarantee of Local Licensed Institutions

5. Export Documents

-

-

445,975,935

294,785,397

47,969,016

111,003,622

398,006,920

183,781,775

103,280,275

679,257,213

8. Counter Guarantee

-

-

9. Personal Guarantee

-

-

1,907,113,837

2,935,086,353

-

-

23,138,370,328

19,828,509,313

6. Fixed Deposit Receipts
(a) Own Fixed Deposit Receipts
(b) Fixed Deposit Receipts of Other Licensed Institutions
7. Government Securities/ Bonds

10. Other Securities
(B) Unsecured
Total
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Schedule 4.14:

Fixed Assets
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Assets
Particulars

Freehold
and
Buildings
Rs.

Vehicles Machinery
Rs.
Rs.

Office
Equipment
Rs.

Others
Leasehold
Assets
Rs.

This Year
Rs.

Previous
Year
Rs.

1. Cost
a. Balance upto Previous
Year
b. Addition this year

21,718,550

53,651,417

-

303,436,155

90,345,421

469,151,543

482,129,849

-

-

-

10,584,725

2,386,675

12,971,400

3,751,173

-

-

c. Revaluation/Writtenback this year

-

d. Sold this year

-

e. Written-off this year

-

Total Cost (a+b+c+d+e)

-

(3,228,944)

-

(3,228,944)

(16,729,479)

(1,768,850)

(1,768,850)

-

21,718,550

53,651,417

-

310,791,936

90,963,246

477,125,149

469,151,543

6,648,145

50,665,370

-

286,704,387

49,941,900

393,959,802

386,989,223

431,211

2,287,713

8,777,952

5,054,599

16,551,476

23,700,058

(3,228,944)

(744,779)

(3,973,723)

(16,729,479)

2. Depreciation
a. Upto Previous Year
b. For this Year
c. Depreciation on
Revaluation / Writtenback
d. Depreciation adjustment/
write back
Total Depreciation
(a+b+c+d)

7,079,356

52,953,083

-

292,253,395

54,251,720

406,537,555

393,959,802

3. Book Value (WDV)* (1-2)

14,639,194

698,333

-

18,538,542

36,711,526

70,587,594

75,191,741

4. Land

10,930,556

10,930,556

10,930,556

-

-

-

3,510,910

5. Capital Work in Progess

-

-

(To be Capitalised)
6. Leasehold Assets
Total (3+4+5+6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,569,750

698,333

-

18,538,542

36,711,526

81,518,150

89,633,207

* Written Down Value.
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Schedule 4.15:

Non-Banking Assets
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Name and Address of
Borrower or Party

Date of assuming
Non Banking
Assets

Total Amount of NonBanking Assets Rs.

Provision for Loss
%

Net Non
Banking
Assets Rs.

Amount Rs.

Previous
Year
Rs.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

Schedule 4.16:

Other Assets
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Stock of Stationery
2. Income Receivable on Investments
3. Accrued Interest on Loan
Less: Interest Suspense Amount

143,729,984

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

20,689

6,199,155

41,910,584

21,547,869

-

(143,729,984)

4. Commission Receivable

153,293,812
(153,293,812)

-

65,464

5. Sundry Debtors

113,802,347

141,589,055

6. Staff Loan and Advances

233,383,502

215,468,409

20,180,039

19,035,964

-

-

7. Prepayments
8. Cash in Transit
9. Other Transit Items (Including Cheques)

-

-

10. Drafts Paid without Notice

-

-

20,163,624

23,741,938

-

-

13. Deferred Tax Assets

81,397,698

82,905,746

14. Others

42,304,230

41,993,927

11. Expenses Not Written-off
12. Branch Adjustment Account

a) Advance Income Tax (net of Provision)

19,570,295

b) Others

22,733,935

Total

25,269,942
16,723,985
553,162,714

552,547,527
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Schedule 4.16 (A):

Other Assets (Additional Statement)
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

1. Accrued Interest on Loans and Advances

This Year (Rs.)

Previous Year

Up to 1 Year

1 to 3 Year

Above 3 Year

Total

Rs.

119,474,138

137,745

24,118,102

143,729,984

153,293,812

2. Drafts Paid without Notice

-

-

-

-

-

3. Branch Adjustment Account

-

-

-

-

-

4. Local/Foreign Agency Account

-

-

-

-

-

Schedule 4.17:

Contingent Liabilities
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Claims on Bank but not Acknowledged as Liabilities by the Bank
2. Letters of Credit (Full amount)
(a) Maturity period of less than 6 months
(b) Maturity period of more than 6 months
3. Rediscounted Bills
4. Unmatured Guarantees/Bonds

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

2,500,000

2,500,000

3,046,891,158

2,605,896,552

2,786,171,091

2,450,813,703

260,720,068

155,082,849

-

-

1,130,080,700

1,273,190,164

(a) Bid Bonds

162,699,358

48,293,257

(b) Performance Bonds

708,387,782

749,450,655

(c) Other Guarantee/Bonds

258,993,559

475,446,252

-

-

5. Unpaid amount on Investment in Shares
6. Outstanding Liabilities of Forward Exchange Contracts

249,067,175

143,600,272

207,493,441

8. Acceptance and Endorsements

474,214,738

1,696,211,263

-

-

9. Underwriting Commitment
10. Irrevocable Loan Commitments

2,473,565,895

1,559,811,762

11. Guarantee against Counter Guarantee of Internationally Rated Banks

7,400,394,326

5,137,170,075

23,029,386

109,736,612

7,000,000

15,700,000

29,410,428

24,586,495

12. Advance Payment Guarantee
13. Financial Guarantee
14. Contingent Liabilities on Income Tax
15. Others
Total

266,131,675

99,433,848

18,094,084,364

12,980,797,387
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Schedule 4.18:

Interest Income
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

A. On Loan, Advances and Overdraft

2,258,308,959

2,212,661,640

2,015,359,742

1,961,771,594

242,949,217

250,890,046

1. Loan and Advances
2. Overdrafts
B. On Investment

186,658,228

553,577,046

186,198,359

552,917,035

147,371,324

513,794,290

38,827,036

39,122,745

-

-

2. Foreign Securities

-

-

3. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds

-

-

459,869

660,011

-

-

-

-

807,340

850,090

-

-

807,340

850,090

8,301,812

8,937,846

-

-

8,301,812

8,937,846

81,283,115

94,944,060

1. Government of Nepal Securities
a. Treasury Bills
b. Development Bonds
c. National Savings Certificates

4. Debenture and Bonds
5. Interest on Inter bank Investment
a. Financial Institutions
b. Other Organisations
C. On Agency Balances
1. Local Banks / Financial Institutions
2. Foreign Banks
D. On Money at Call and Short Notice
1. Local Banks / Financial Institutions
2. Foreign Banks
E. On Others
1. Certificate of Deposits
2. Inter-Bank / Financial Institution Loan
3. Placement with Foreign Banks
4. Others
Total

-

-

834,931

141,575

77,092,796

90,196,234

3,355,388

4,606,251

2,535,359,454

2,870,970,682
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Schedule 4.19:

Interest Expenses
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars
A. On Deposit Liabilities
1. Fixed Deposits
1.1. Local Currency
1.2. Foreign Currency

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

602,179,081

1,003,271,231

189,611,104

497,407,768

178,621,071

415,903,128

10,990,034

81,504,640

2. Savings Deposits

337,209,564

275,648,456

2.1. Local Currency

326,870,477

264,154,924

2.2. Foreign Currency
3. Call Deposits
3.1. Local Currency
3.2. Foreign Currency
4. Certificate of Deposits
B. On Borrowings
1.Debentures and Bonds
2. Loans from Nepal Rastra Bank

10,339,087

11,493,532

75,358,412
66,805,228

230,215,007
221,903,343

8,553,184

8,311,664

-

-

5,625,000

349,447

-

-

-

-

5,625,000

349,447

4. Other Institutions

-

-

5. Other Loans

-

-

3,578,314

3,578,314

3,578,314

3,578,314

-

-

611,382,395

1,007,198,992

3. Inter Bank /Financial Institutions Borrowings

C. On Others
1. Premium on Development Bonds
2. Others
Total
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Schedule 4.20:

Commisssion and Discount
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars
A. Bills Purchased and Discounted
1. Domestic

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

10,475,002

12,467,939

79,684

146,706

10,395,318

12,321,233

171,851,636

127,359,403

1. Letters of Credit

21,141,994

28,361,385

2. Guarantees

77,116,674

43,968,195

2. Foreign
B. Commission

9,417,046

666,835

4. Remittance Fees

3. Collection Fees

43,117,631

38,052,381

5. Credit Cards

21,054,609

16,298,445

6. Share Underwriting/Issues

-

-

7. Government Transactions

-

-

8. E.Pra. Commission
9. Exchange Fees ( Batta Income)
C. Others
1. Management Fees
2. Loan Processing Fees
3. Ledger and Activity Fees
4. Commission on Travellers Cheque
5. Others (including income from Gold & Derivatives)
Total

-

-

3,682

12,162

112,640,968

127,939,058

5,505,257

5,084,923

51,204,351

39,587,943

142,856

830,428

3,783,605

1,959,784

52,004,899

80,475,980

294,967,606

267,766,400

Schedule 4.21:

Other Operating Income
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Rental on Safe Deposit Locker
2. Issue and Renewals of Credit Cards

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

5,435,723

4,654,994

15,593,966

14,986,894

3. Issue and Renewals of ATM Cards

9,838,417

8,165,323

4. Telex /T.T.

9,998,377

8,931,879

5. Service Charges
6. Renewal Fees
7. Others
Total

-

-

11,500

206,520

1,848,543

1,409,044

42,726,526

38,354,654
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Schedule 4.22:

Exchange Fluctuation Gain/Loss
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

A. Revaluation Gain

111,882,181

190,764,470

B. Trading Gain (except Batta)

403,167,993

277,792,250

Total Income (Loss)

515,050,174

468,556,720

Schedule 4.23:

Staff Expenses
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Salary
2. Allowances
3. Contribution to Provident Fund
4. Training Expenses

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

262,916,402

240,083,034

966,422

1,189,098

11,392,403

10,918,278

2,801,446

3,800,616

5. Uniform

272,212

287,025

6. Medical

7,221,027

6,091,770

69,746

73,685

7. Insurance
8. Pension and Gratuity Provision
9. Others
a) Staff Incentive
b) Others
Total

23,893,563

24,308,490

112,097,669

100,071,376

72,657,209

71,560,428

39,440,460

28,510,948

421,630,889

386,823,372
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Schedule 4.24:

Other Operating Expenses
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. House Rent
2. Light, Electricity and Water
3. Repair and Maintenance
(a) Building
(b) Vehicles
(c) Others
4. Insurance
5. Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax
6. Office Equipment, Furniture and Repair
(a) Office Equipment and Furniture (non capitalised item)
(b) Repairs
7. Travelling Allowances and Expenses
8. Stationery and Printing
9. Periodicals and Books
10. Advertisement
11. Legal Expenses
12. Donations
13. Expenses Relating to Board of Directors
(a) Meeting Allowance
(b) Others Expenses
14. General Meeting Expenses
15. Expenses Relating to Audit
(a) Audit Fees
(b) Other Expenses
16. Commission on Remittances
17. Depreciation on Fixed Assets
18. Amortization of Pre Operating Expenses
19. Share Issue Expenses
20. Technology Support Cost (Technical Services Fees )
21. Entertainment
22. Written Off Expenses
23. Security Expenses
24. Credit Guarantee Premium
25. Commission and Discount
26. Others
(a) Software Expenses
(b) Cleaning, Pest Control and Waste Management
(c) Share Listing and Registration Expenses
(d) Other Professional Fees
(e) Hire of Vehicle and Equipments
(f) Clearing House Charges
(g) Credit information and Collection Expenses
(h) Others
Total

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

63,683,985
28,488,426
25,719,346
8,220,209
2,474,801
15,024,337
13,368,403
22,141,974
32,444,273
18,760,407
13,683,865
22,850,851
17,259,981
228,024
18,881,224
948,057
1,632,002
692,500
939,502
967,234
906,500
621,500
285,000
16,551,476
33,188,111
3,941,678
350,788
32,334,849
6,041,765
40,554,616
6,327,125
10,571,597
1,183,738
5,369,307
2,999,845
1,767,655
927,931
11,407,417
382,483,564

59,331,538
20,202,570
16,384,376
2,985,690
2,246,789
11,151,897
5,617,704
23,723,795
32,825,324
17,564,103
15,261,221
19,574,432
15,989,204
133,794
19,505,046
131,421
37,000
2,435,075
942,500
1,492,575
1,269,358
906,500
621,500
285,000
23,700,058
27,355,324
6,031,798
812,918
31,240,584
5,820,368
36,336,723
12,388,197
8,455,315
50,000
2,659,867
1,470,875
557,305
530,725
10,224,439
349,364,910
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Schedule 4.25:

Provision for Possible Losses
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

107,125,417

208,251,274

3,000,000

-

3. Provision for Non-Banking Assets

-

-

4. Provision for Other Assets

-

-

110,125,417

208,251,274

1. Increase in Loan Loss Provision
2. Increase in Provision for Loss on Investments

Total

Schedule 4.26:

Non Operating Income/ (Loss)
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
Particulars
1. Profit (Loss) on Sale of Investment
2. Profit (Loss) on Sale of Assets
3. Dividend (Net)
4. Subsidies Received from Nepal Rastra Bank

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

-

-

(969,071)

85,000

259,241

482,904

-

-

a. Compensation against Losses of Specified Branches

-

-

b. Interest Indemnity

-

-

c. Exchange Counter

-

-

5. Others

1,880,123

140,042

Net Non Operating Income/ (Loss)

1,170,292

707,946

Schedule 4.27:

Provision for Possible Loss Written Back
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

50,134,529

190,917,635

2. Provision against Non-Banking Assets Written Back

-

-

3 Investment Provision Written Back

-

-

4. Provision against Other Assets Written Back

-

-

50,134,529

190,917,635

1. Loan Loss Provision Written Back

Total
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Schedule 4.28:

Income / (Expenses) from Extra-Ordinary Activities
for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

Particulars
1. Recovery of Loans Written Off
2. Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses
3. Unrecoverable Loan Write Off (Schedule 4.28A)
4. Other Expenses/Income
Total

This Year Rs.

Previous Year Rs.

51,064,295

43,382,769

-

-

(42,209,047)

(85,959,467)

(6,445,465)

-

2,409,783

(42,576,698)

Schedule 4.28 A:

Statement of Loans Written Off

for the period 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)
S.N

Types of Loan

1
2
3
4

Working Capital Loan
Project Loan
Fixed Capital Loan
Personal Loan

5

Other Loan
a) Credit Cards

Type of
Security
and
Amount
Rs.

Basis of
Valuation of
Security

Loan
Approving
Authority /
Designation

1,546,087

None

NA

Manager
Credit/ Head
Consumer
Bank

Follow up through phone
calls, SMS, letters & visit.
Accounts written off as
per Loan Write Off Bylaws
and Collection & Recovery
Guidelines of the Bank.

Recoveries
from Current
year write off
is Rs. 380,227
and earlier
FY is Rs.
2,190,007

40,662,960
3,183,001

None

NA

Manager
Credit/ Head
Consumer
Bank

1,905,866

None

NA

Manager
Credit/ Head
Consumer
Bank

Follow up through phone
calls, SMS, letters & visit.
Accounts written off as
per Loan Write Off Bylaws
and Collection & Recovery
Guidelines of the Bank.
Follow up through phone
calls, SMS, letters & visit.
Accounts written off as
per Loan Write Off Bylaws
and Collection & Recovery
Guidelines of the Bank.

C) Auto Loan

35,574,093

Vehicle

Valuation
Report from
Approved
Valuators &
cost price at
the time of
disbursement
of Loan

Manager
Credit/ Head
Consumer
Bank

Recoveries
from Current
year write off
is Rs. 693,082
and earlier FY
is Rs. 365,238
Recoveries
from Current
year write off
is Rs. 63,599
and earlier
FY is Rs.
1,498,295
Recoveries
from Current
year write
off is Rs.
16,663,583
and earlier
FY is Rs.
26,900,613

Total Loan

42,209,047

b) Gramin Prathamik
Karja

Written off
Amount Rs.

Initiations made for
Recovery

Follow up throug phone
calls, SMS, letters &
visit. Efforts also made
to reposess the vehicle,
publication of auction
notice, securities sold by full
& final settlement. Accounts
were written off as per
Loan Write off Bylaws and
Collection & Recovery
Guidelines of the Bank.

Remarks

During the year, Bank has recovered the amount against the written off loans as shown under Remarks column; additionally it recovered Rs.
2,309,652 from Home Loan written off earlier. In respect of Auto Loan, the value of a vehicle in posession of the Bank is Rs. 6,355 thousand
( as per the valuation of approved valuators).
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Schedule 4.29:

Statement of Loans & Advances Extended to
Directors/ Chief Executive Officer/Promoters/Staff
and Shareholders
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

The Statement of amount, included under total amount of Bills Purchased and Discounted, Loans, Advances and
Overdraft, provided to the Directors, Chief Excecutive Officer, Promoters, Staff, Shareholders and to the individual
members of their undivided family or against the guarantee of such persons or to the organisations or companies in
which such individuals are managing agent, are as follows:
Name of Promoter/
Director/Chief Executive
Officer

Balance upto Previous Year Recovery made This Year

Additions
during the
year Rs.

Balance as at Ashad end

Principal
Rs.

Interest Rs.

Principal
Rs.

Interest Rs.

-

-

(B) Chief Executive Officer

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(C) Promoters

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(D) Staff

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(E) Shareholders

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(A) Directors

Principal
Rs.

Interest
Rs.

Note : As per clause 4 of the Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No. 6, loans given to executive officers and employees are as per Bank staff
rules and hence not disclosed above.
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Schedule 4.30 (Ka 1):

Capital Adequacy Table
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
NPR ‘000
1.1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES
A

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

B

Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

C

Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

This Year

Previous Year

34,321,758

26,974,977

3,941,996

3,716,532

244,469

146,290

-

-

Adjustments Under Pillar-II
Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non Compliance to Disclosure (6.4 a 10)
Add: ...% of the total deposits due to insufficient liquid assets (6.4 a 6 )
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (A+B+C)
1.2 CAPITAL FUND

-

-

38,508,223

30,837,799

This Year

Previous Year

Core Capital (Tier 1)

4,245,599

3,789,916

a

1,853,900

1,610,168

Paid up Equity Share Capital

b

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

-

-

c

Share Premium

-

-

d

Proposed Bonus equity Shares

185,390

241,525

2,113,707

1,870,119

31,368

8,940

e

Statutory General Reserves

f

Retained Earnings

g

Current year profit/loss

-

-

h

Capital Redemption Reserve

-

-

i

Capital Adjustment Reserve

-

-

j

Dividend Equalization Reserves

k

Deferred Tax Reserves

-

-

81,398

82,906

l

Other Free Reserve

-

-

m

Less: Goodwill

-

-

(20,164)

(23,742)

n

Less : Fictitious Assets

o

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

-

-

p

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

-

-

q

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

-

-

r

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

-

-

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

-

-

s

Less: Other Deductions
Adjustments Under Pillar-II
Less: Shortfall in provisions (6.4 a 1)

-

-

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

-

-

582,952

505,251

-

-

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)
a

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

b

Subordinated Term Debt

-

-

c

Hybrid Capital Instruments

-

-

d

General loan loss provision

231,140

196,740

e

Exchange Equilization Reserve

334,856

306,885

f

Investment Adjustment Reserve

16,956

1,626

g

Assets revaluation reserve

-

-

h

Other Reserves

-

-

4,828,551

4,295,167

Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier 2)
1.3 Capital Adequacy Ratios

Current Period Previous Period

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank’s adjustments of Pillar II)

11.03%

12.29%

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank’s Adjustments of Pillar II)

12.54%

13.93%

73

Schedule 4.30 (Kha):

Credit Risk
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
NPR ‘000
Assets
Balance Sheet Exposure

Risk
Weighted
Exposures
f=d*e

Previous Year
Net Value
Risk
Weighted
Exposures

687,681
4,588,270
4,830,899
138,807
-

-

-

687,681
4,588,270
4,830,899
138,807
-

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

-

509,678
4,833,920
7,862,717
167,226
-

-

-

-

-

-

20%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

50%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

150%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0%

-

-

-

553,170
613,311

26,585
-

-

526,585
613,311

100%
20%
50%
100%
150%
20%

789,878
122,662

61,995
7,227

92,992
1,445

57,056

-

-

57,056

100%

57,056

82,816

82,816

4,053,861
7,819,194
18,441

-

-

4,053,861
7,819,194
18,441

20%
50%
100%
150%
20%

810,772
7,819,194
3,688

4,144,785
3,883,000
12,796

828,957
3,883,000
2,559

10,215,177
3,923,237
-

-

320,138
-

9,895,039
3,923,237
-

100%
20%
50%
100%
150%
75%
100%

9,895,039
2,942,428
-

6,200,581
4,219,805
-

6,200,581
3,164,854
-

3,000,273
102,183
2,656,603
231,085

29,195
22,610

-

3,000,273
72,988
2,656,603
208,475

60%
150%
100%
100%
150%

1,800,164
72,988
2,656,603
312,713

2,684,055
71,019
4,070,956
255,879

1,610,433
71,019
4,070,956
383,819

1,713,278
50,500

2
3,000

75,388
-

1,637,888
47,500

150%
100%

2,456,832
47,500

1,035,252
29,125

1,552,878
29,125

58,926

3,000

-

55,926

150%

83,888

55,926

83,888

110,641
4,438
-

-

-

110,641
4,438
-

60%
0%
20%

66,385
-

-

649,154
46,076,185

143,730
228,122

395,526

505,424
45,452,537

100%

505,424
30,443,214

618,095
40,806,853

618,095
22,677,417

Financial statements and notes

Cash Balance
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank
Gold
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities
All claims on Government of Nepal
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank
(ECA Rating 0-1)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank
(ECA Rating 2)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank
(ECA Rating 3)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank
(ECA Rating 4-6)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 7)
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on Multilateral
Development Banks (MDBs) recognized by the
framework.
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1)
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2)
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6)
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital
adequacy requirements
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital
adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)
Claims on Foreign bank incorporated in SAARC
Region operating with a buffer of 1% above their
respective regulatory capital requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA rating 0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA rating 2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA rating 3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA rating 7)
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regulatory retail
except granularity
Claims secured by residential properties
Claims not fully secured by residential properties
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)
Claims secured by Commercial real estate
Past due claims (except for claim secured by
residential properties)
High Risk claims
Investment in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions listed in the stock exchange
Investment in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions not listed in the stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities
Cash in transit and other cash items in the process
of collection
Other Assets
Total

Book
Value a

15th July, 2013 (31 Asadh 2070)
Specific Eligible
Net Value
Risk
Provision CRM c
d=a-b-c Weight
b
e
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Schedule 4.30 (Kha):

Credit Risk (Continued)
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

NPR ‘000
Previous Year

15th July, 2013 (31 Asadh 2070)
Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Book Value Specific
a Provision
b

Eligible
CRM c

Net Value
Risk
Risk
d=a-b-c Weight Weighted
e Exposures
f=d*e

Net Value

Risk
Weighted
Exposure

-

Revocable Commitments

874,277

-

-

874,277

0%

-

-

Bills Under Collection
Forward Exchange Contract
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Up to 6 months
(domestic counterparty)
Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

143,600

-

-

143,600

0%

-

207,493

-

3,097,266

-

-

3,097,266

10%

309,727

249,067

24,907

2,786,171

-

947,915

1,838,256

20%

367,651

2,062,279

412,456

-

-

-

-

20%

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

-

-

-

-

50%

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7

-

-

-

-

150%

-

-

-

260,720

-

48,594

212,126

50%

106,063

72,461

36,231

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

-

-

-

-

20%

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

-

-

-

-

50%

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

L C Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months
(domestic counterparty)

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter Guarantee
(domestic counterparty)

-

-

-

-

150%

-

-

-

196,938

-

69,690

127,248

50%

63,624

156,822

78,411

901,725

20%

180,345

378,181

75,636

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

4,344,993

- 3,443,268

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

2,009,845

-

970,639

1,039,205

50%

519,603

1,353,278

676,639

489,834

-

-

489,834

100%

489,834

357,232

357,232

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6
Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7

6,139

-

-

6,139

150%

9,208

-

-

Underwriting commitments

-

-

-

-

50%

-

-

-

Lending of Bank’s Securities or Posting of Securities as
collateral

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee
Financial Guarantee
Acceptances and Endorsements
Unpaid Portion of Partly paid shares and Securities
Irrevocable credit commitments (short term)
Irrevocable Credit commitments (Long Term)
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective regulatory
capital requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities
Unpaid Guarantee Claims

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

1,246,643

-

806,721

439,922

100%

439,922

221,388

221,388

7,000

-

738

6,263

100%

6,263

-

-

474,215

-

15,688

458,527

100%

458,527

1,680,963

1,680,963

-

-

-

-

100%

-

-

-

2,265,106

-

152,975

2,112,131

20%

422,426

1,331,485

266,297

208,460

-

-

208,460

50%

104,230

146,444

73,222

-

-

-

-

20%

-

-

-

554,654

-

153,534

401,121

100%

401,121

394,177

394,177

-

2,500

-

200%

2,500

Total

18,968,361

- 6,612,262 12,356,100

Total RWE for Credit Risk (A) +(B)

65,044,546

228,122 7,007,788 57,808,637

-

-

-

3,878,544

8,611,270

4,297,558

34,321,758 49,418,123 26,974,977

Adjustments under Pillar-II

-

-

-

-

Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in excess of Single Obligor
Limits (6.4 a 3)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Add: 1% of the contract (sale) value in case of the sale of credit
with recourse (6.4 a 4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total RWE for Credit Risk (After Bank’s adjustments of
Pillar II)

65,044,546

228,122 7,007,788 57,808,637

-

- 34,321,758 49,418,123 26,974,977
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Schedule 4.30 (Ga):

Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
NPR ‘000
Credit exposures

Deposits Deposits Gold
Govt.
with with other
& NRB
Bank banks/FI
Securities

G’tee Sec/G’tee G’tee of G’tee of
of
of Other domestic MDBs
Govt. Sovereigns
banks
of
Nepal

Sec/
G’tee of
Foreign
Banks

Total

Balance Sheet Exposures
Cash Balance

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Gold

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Investment in Nepal Government Securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

All claims on Government of Nepal

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 0-1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 3)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 4-6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA
Rating 7)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy
requirements

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital
adequacy requirements

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign bank incorporated in SAARC Region
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Domestic Corporates

105,833

-

76,646

-

-

-

-

135,759

320,138

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regulatory retail except
granularity

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims secured by residential properties

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims not fully secured by residential properties

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Claims secured by commercial real estate

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Past due claims (except for claim secured by residential
properties)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

High Risk claims

75,388

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

75,388

Investment in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions listed in the stock exchange

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Investment in equity and other capital instruments of
institutions not listed in the stock exchange

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial statements and notes

1,900

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1)
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Schedule 4.30 (Ga):

Continued...

NPR ‘000
Credit exposures

Deposits Deposits Gold
Govt.
with with other
& NRB
Bank banks/FI
Securities

G’tee Sec/G’tee G’tee of G’tee of
of
of Other domestic MDBs
Govt. Sovereigns
banks
of
Nepal

Sec/
G’tee of
Foreign
Banks

Total

-

Off Balance Sheet Exposures

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

770,589

-

-

177,327

-

-

-

-

-

947,915

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,594

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

48,594

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

69,690

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

69,690

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 0-1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 3,443,268 3,443,268

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

970,639

970,639

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 3-6

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign Counterparty ECA Rating 7

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Underwriting commitments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Lending of Bank’s Securities or Posting of Securities as
collateral

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

LC Commitments With Original Maturity Up to 6 months
(domestic counterparty)

L C Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months
(domestic counterparty)

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter Guarantee
(domestic counterparty)

Repurchase agreements, Assets sale with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee
Financial Guarantee
Acceptance and Endorsements

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

377

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

806,344

806,721

738

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

738

15,688

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,688

Unpaid Portion of Partly paid shares and Securities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Irrevocable Credit Commitments(short term)

-

12,477

-

6,754

-

-

-

-

133,744

152,975

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

106,821

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

46,713

153,534

-

2,500

Irrevocable Credit Commitments(long term)
Other Contingent Liabilities
Claim Received on Guarantee (As per directive 13/065/66)
Total Eligible CRM

2,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,092,285

118,310

-

260,727

-

-

-

- 5,536,467 7,007,788
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Schedule 4.30 (Gha):

Operational Risk
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)

NPR ‘000

SN

Particulars

1

Net Interest Income

2

Commission and Discount Income

3

Other Operating Income

4

Exchange Fluctutation Income

5

Additional/ Deduction Interest Suspense during the period

15.07.2013

15.07.2012

16.07.2011

1,923,977

1,863,772

1,715,599

294,968

267,766

314,674

15.07.2012

42,727

38,355

36,753

515,050

468,557

394,231

(9,564)

(34,808)

51,936

2,767,158

2,603,642

2,513,193

15%

15%

15%

Gross Income as per Fixed Percentage[ c=(a*b)]

415,074

390,546

376,979

Capital Requirement for Operational Risk(d) (average of c)

394,200

371,653

10

10

3,941,996

3,716,532

Total Credit and investments (net of Specific Provision)

-

-

Capital Requirement for operational risk (5%)

-

-

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times

-

-

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g)

-

-

3,941,996

3,716,532

Gross Income (a)
Fixed Percentage (b)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in
times (e)
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure for Operational
Risk[f=(d*e)]
Pillar-II Adjustments
If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative (6.4 a 8)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [(h=f+g)]

Financial statements and notes
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Schedule 4.30 (Nga):

Market Risk
As at 15 July, 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)
NPR ‘000
As on 15 July, 2013
S. No.

Currency

1

INR

2
3

Previous Year
Relevant Open
Position (NPR) as
on 15.07.2012

Open Position
(FCY)

Open Position
(NPR)

Relevant Open
Position (NPR)

249,803

399,872

399,872

198,022

USD

(543)

(52,109)

52,109

70,824

GBP

(53)

(7,641)

7,641

396

4

EUR

59

7,383

7,383

280

5

THB

27

82

82

55

6

CHF

52

5,302

5,302

1,026

7

AUD

14

1,218

1,218

4,946

8

CAD

33

3,015

3,015

3,100

9

SGD

42

3,178

3,178

3,456

10

JPY

297

285

285

3,184

11

HKD

144

1,781

1,781

1,687

12

DKK

130

2,185

2,185

2,307

13

SEK

81

1,166

1,166

1,164

14

SAR

64

1,626

1,626

733

15

QAR

23

594

594

363

16

AED

16

408

408

320

17

MYR

27

824

824

363

18

KRW

427

38

38

169

19

CNY

15

230

Total Open Position (a)
Fixed Percentage (b)
Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(a*b)]
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (d)
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposures for Market Risk [e=(c*d)]

230

187

488,937

292,582

5%

5%

24,447

14,629

10

10

244,469

146,291
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Schedule 4.31:

Key Indicators
Particulars
1. Net Profit/Gross Income

Indicators

FY
2008/2009

FY
2009/2010

FY
2010/2011

FY
2011/2012

FY
2012/2013

Percent

36.84

36.47

31.40

30.12

34.96

2. Earning Per Share

Rs.

109.99

77.65

69.51

72.60

65.70

3. Market Value Per Share

Rs.

6,010

3,279

1,800

1,799

1,820

4. Price Earning Ratio

Ratio

54.64

42.23

25.90

24.78

27.70

5. Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital

Percent

100

70

50

60

50

6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital

Percent

50

55

50

45

40

7. Interest Income/Loan & Advances

Percent

9.94

9.94

10.34

11.16

9.76

8. Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses

Percent

23.58

26.43

21.86

22.19

29.79

9. Interest Expenses on Total Deposit and Borrowings

Percent

1.53

1.64

2.62

2.80

1.55

10. Exchange Fluctuation Income/Total Income

Percent

15.36

15.40

10.86

12.07

14.78

11. Staff (statutory) Bonus/Total Staff Expenses

Percent

36.70

32.93

30.40

30.22

29.24

12. Net Profit/Loan and Advances

Percent

7.39

7.82

6.00

5.90

5.26

13. Net Profit/Total Assets

Ratio

2.56

2.70

2.55

2.80

2.67

14. Total Credit/Deposit

Percent

39.27

45.98

49.11

55.13

58.63

15. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets

Percent

2.68

2.94

3.82

4.18

3.10

a. Core Capital

Percent

13.05

12.52

12.10

12.29

11.03

b. Supplementary Capital

Percent

1.65

1.99

2.12

1.64

1.51

c. Total Capital Fund

Percent

14.70

14.51

14.22

13.93

12.54

16. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted Assets

17. Liquidity (CRR)

8.18

6.74

6.10

22.40

16.43

Percent

0.66

0.61

0.62

0.78

0.77

19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

Percent

3.98

3.44

3.28

3.92

4.12

20. Book Net-worth

Rs’000

3,052,470

3,369,709

3,677,777

4,122,169

4,617,574

21. Total Shares

No.

9,319,664

13,984,836

16,101,680

16,101,680

18,539,000

22. Total Staff

No.

392

429

429

424

454

23. Networth Per Share

Rs.

328

241

228

256

249

24. Return on Equity

Percent

33.58

32.22

30.43

28.36

26.38

25. Profit per Employee

Rs’000

2,615

2,531

2,609

2,757

2,683

Financial statements and notes

Ratio

18. Non-performing Credit/Total Credit
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Schedule 4.32:

Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Year 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

1. Background
The accompanying financial
statements for the year ended
15th July 2013 comprise the accounts
of Standard Chartered Bank Nepal
Ltd. The Bank carries out commercial
banking activities in Nepal under the
license from Nepal Rastra Bank (The
Central Bank of Nepal) as Class “Ka”
licensed institution. The Bank is listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange. The Banks
ultimate holding company is Standard
Chartered Plc (SCPLC), which is
incorporated in United Kingdom.

2. Approval of Financial
Statements
Accompanied financial statements
have been adopted by the Board
of Directors on its meeting held on
17th September, 2013 and have
recommended for approval of
shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

3. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis of accounting
(except for interest income on loans
and advances which is accounted for
on cash basis), and in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), Statutory
requirements of Banks and Financial
Institutions Act 2063, The Companies
Act 2063, directives, circulars and
guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank (NRB) from time to time, Nepal
Accounting Standards to the extent
applicable and current practices
prevailing within the banking industry
in Nepal.

4. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and disclosures relating
to the contingent liabilities reported in
the financial statements. Management
believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively
in the current and future periods.

5. Significant Accounting
Policies
5.1 Income Recognition
Interest income on Loans and
advances is accounted for on cash
basis.
Interest income on discounted
instruments is recognised over the
tenor of the instrument on a constant
effective yield basis.
Commission on guarantees and letters
of credit are recognised over the facility
tenure, except for commission on sight
bills which is recognised upfront.
Fees on loans and credit cards are
recognised at the inception of the
transactions.
Dividend on equity shares is
recognised as income when the right
to receive the same is established, i.e.
after it is declared in the company’s
Annual General Meeting.

5.2 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Balances
Transactions in Foreign currency are
recorded at exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction. Exchange
differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are
recognised as trading gains/losses in
the Profit and Loss Account.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the
Balance Sheet date are translated at midpoint exchange rates of the Nepal Rastra
Bank after adjustment for effective trading
rate and resultant exchange differences
are recognised as revaluation gain/loss in
the profit and loss account. In conformity
with the directives of Nepal Rastra
Bank, 25% of the total revaluation gain
is transferred to Exchange Fluctuation
Fund by charging to Profit and Loss
Appropriation Account.

5.3 Loans, Advances and Bills
Purchased
Classification and provisioning of
Loans, Advances and Bills Purchased
is carried out in accordance with the
directives issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.
Classification
Loans, Advances & Bills Purchased
are classified into performing loans
and Non Performing Loans based
on management’s periodical internal
assessment and NRB’s directives on
classification. Further Non Performing
Loans are classified into Restructured/
Rescheduled, Substandard, Doubtful
& Loss assets based on the criteria
stipulated by NRB.
Loans and advances granted to staff in
accordance with the Staff loan scheme
as prescribed by staff bye laws are
reflected under Other Assets.
Provisioning
Loans Advances and Bills Purchased
are stated net of specific & General
Loan Loss provisions. Specific
provisions are maintained in line with
the minimum provisioning norms
laid down by NRB. The Bank also
maintains a General Loan Loss
Provision at rates and as per the
norms prescribed by NRB.
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Write off
Unrecoverable loans and advances are
written off in accordance with the Loan
Write-off By-Laws 2068 of the Bank
approved by the Nepal Rastra Bank
and Collection & Recovery Guidelines
of the Bank.
Amounts recovered against loans
written off in earlier as well as current
year are recognized as income in the
year of recovery.

5.4 Investments
Classification and valuation of
Banks Investments is carried out in
accordance with the directives issued
by NRB.

The Bank follows the settlement date
accounting for its investments.
Valuation
Investments classified as HTM are
carried at acquisition cost. Any
premium or discount on acquisition is
amortised over the remaining period
till maturity on the basis of a constant
yield to maturity. Where in the opinion
of management and in accordance
with NRB guidelines, there is a
diminution in the value of any HTM
security, which is other than temporary,
appropriate provisions are made and
charged to Profit and loss account

Investments classified as HFT are
marked to market on a daily basis and
any appreciation/depreciation in the
value is recognised in the profit and
loss account.
Treasury Bills being discounted
instruments are disclosed at cost
including the pro rata discount
accreted for the holding period.
As required by NRB Directives, the
Bank also maintains Investment
Adjustment Reserve to the extent of
2% of Available for Sale Portfolio. This
Reserve is considered as Tier 2 capital.
All investments are subject to regular
review according to the directives of
Nepal Rastra Bank.

5.5 Fixed Assets and
Depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at acquisition
cost less depreciation. Acquisition cost
includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.
Fixed assets individually costing less
than or equal to Rs. 400,000 (Rs. Four
Lakhs) are expensed in the year of
purchase.
Costs of refurbishment and renovation
of leasehold/owned premises are
capitalised provided they are in excess
of Rs. 400,000 (Rs. Four Lakhs).

Computer software costing less than
or equal to Rs. 40,000,000 (Rs. Four
Crores) is expensed in the year of
purchase.
Licence fees for the software paid by
the Bank is amortised over the period
of the licence.
Profit or loss on disposal of fixed
assets is recognised in the profit and
loss of the year.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation
of other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to amortise their
cost over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:
S.N. Assets Types

Life of an
Asset

1.
2.
3.
4.

36 months
36 months
36 months
36 months

5.
6.
7.
8.

Equipment
Furniture & Fittings/Fixtures
Vehicle
Computers –
PC, Printer, Laptop etc.
Computers – Server
Computer – ATM
Freehold Premises
Software Applications

60 months
84 months
600 months
36 months

Costs of refurbishment and renovation
of leasehold premises are depreciated
over the remaining period of that lease
or 120 months whichever is less.
For additions during the year,
depreciation is charged from the
month the assets is put to use and
for disposed assets, depreciation is
charged up to the month immediately
preceding the month of disposal.

5.6 Accounting for Leases
Premises are taken as operating leases
which are cancellable in nature. The
expenses under operating leases as
per the lease agreements are charged
to Other Operating Expenses in the
profit and loss account.

Financial statements and notes

Classification
Investments are classified as ‘Held to
Maturity (HTM) or ‘Held for Trading’
(HFT) or ‘Available for Sale’ (AFS) at the
time of their purchase. Investments
acquired by the Bank with the intention
and ability to hold up to maturities
are classified as HTM. Investments
acquired with the intention to trade by
taking advantage of short term price/
interest rate movement are classified
as HFT. All other investments are
classified as AFS.

Investments classified as AFS are
marked to market regularly and any
movement in the value is adjusted
through reserves, while the permanent
decline in value is charged to profit
and loss account. Similarly increase in
the recoverable value of the impaired
equity investment (up to cost value) is
recognised in Investment Adjustment
Reserve.
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5.7 Retirement and Other
Employee Benefits
The Bank has schemes of retirement
benefits namely Gratuity and Provident
Fund. Provision for expenses on
account of Gratuity and Provident
Fund is made on accrual basis with the
amount of gratuity computed by the
Bank in accordance with its applicable
scheme. Contributions to approved
retirement fund are made on a regular
basis as per the Retirement Fund rules
and regulations.

5.8 Taxation
a. Current Income Tax
Provision for current income tax
is made in accordance with the
provisions of the prevailing Income Tax
Act, 2058 and Rules as amended.
b. Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
The principal temporary differences
arise on account of differences
in depreciation of fixed assets,
provision for diminution in the value
of investment in shares, provisions
for gratuity, performance bonus and
premium on development bonds
between financial statements and tax
bases.

Deferred tax assets are recognised
where it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be
utilised.
Deferred Tax Reserve equivalent to
Deferred Tax Assets is created as
per the regulatory requirement. This
reserve is considered as part of core
capital.

5.9 Stationery
Stationery purchased is accounted for
on cost and is recognised as a current
asset and expended as and when it is
issued for consumption on a weighted
average basis.

5.10 Non Banking Assets
Non Banking Assets are accounted for
as per the directives of Nepal Rastra
Bank.

5.11 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent
Assets
The Bank creates a provision when
there is a present obligation as a result
of past events that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible obligation or
a present obligation in respect of which
the likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.
Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain
that an economic benefit will arise,
the asset and related income are
recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.
Liabilities on account of derivative
contracts are reported under
Contingent liabilities under sub heading
Outstanding Liabilities for Forward
Exchange Contract. These include
notional principal on outstanding
forward rate agreements. .

5.12 Provision for reward points
awarded to customers
The Bank has a policy of awarding
reward points to customers for credit
card spends. Provision for such
reward points is made on the basis
of behavioural analysis of utilisation
trends.

5.13 Rounding off and
Comparative Figures
The financial statements are presented
in Nepalese Rupees, rounded off to
the nearest rupee. Previous year
amounts have been reclassified to
facilitate comparison; details of which
are given in the Notes to Accounts.
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Schedule 4.33:

Notes to Accounts
Financial Year 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2013 (1 Shrawan 2069 to 31 Ashad 2070)

1. Provision for Bonus
Provision for bonus has been calculated and provided for
at 10% of net profit, after making adjustments for loan loss
provision and bonus.

2. Staff Housing Fund

based on the Bank’s overall performance and individual
employee’s annual performance. It is provisioned on the
basis of the individual targets set and paid in line with the
actual achievements. A total of Rs 54,411,315 has been
provided for the performance bonus in this year.

The Staff By-Laws approved by our Board and also
approved by NRB, has a provision for extending housing
loans to the eligible staff at concessional rates. Hence a
separate housing fund has not been created in accordance
with Labour Act, 2048.

6. Dividend and Bonus

3. Taxation Assessment Status

7. Investment Adjustment Reserve

Financial year 2006-07
Reassessment for FY 2006-07 (2063-64 BS) was done
by Large Tax Payer Office (LTPO), the Bank contested
the order and filed for Administrative Review. LTPO is yet
to issue revised assessment order as per the decision
of Administrative Review. However based on the initial
assessment order of LTPO, contingent liability for the tax
(including interest up to year end) Rs.294.10 Lakhs has been
created in the books.

As required by NRB Directives the Bank has created
Investments Adjustment Reserve of Rs. 16,956,300
(previous year Rs. 1,626,300). As per IAS 39 the impairment
provision on investment is charged to Profit and Loss
Account while the release of impairment provision is released
through Investment Adjustment Reserve. These will be
recycled in profit and loss account in the year when the
related investments are sold.

The Board has recommended 40% as cash dividend and
10% bonus shares as appropriation for the reported year.
This proposal of the Board has been shown under Proposed
Dividend for the cash portion and under Share Capital for the
Proposed Bonus Shares issue respectively.

Particulars

Financial years 2008-09 and 2009-10
LTPO has opened the self assessments filed by the Bank for
financial year 2008-09 (2065-66 BS) and 2009-10 (2066-67
BS) at once. The required details have been submitted and
the review process is underway.
Financial Year 2010-11 and 2011-12
The self assessment returns filed by the Bank for financial
year 2010-11 (2067-68 BS) and 2011-12 (2068-69 BS), has
not yet been opened for reassessment by the LTPO.

109,425,500

5. Performance Bonus
The Bank’s total reward consists of fixed and variable
compensation. Performance Bonus is a variable component

109,425,500

Less; Provision held in the
books

6,000,000

Less; Exempted for Reserve
creation as per NRB
directives

3,735,500

3,735,500

99,690,000

81,315,000

1,993,800

1,626,300

Net AFS Investment
Investment Adjustment
Reserve@2%
Release of Provision in AFS
Equity Investments due to
appreciation in their value.
Less; Deferred Tax on the
above release

21,375,000

Closing balance of
Investment Adjustment
Reserve

16,956,300

(6,412,500)

4. Provision for Gratuity
During the year, the Bank has provided Rs. 23,893,563
(Previous Year Rs. 24,308,490) on account of gratuity. Out
of the amount provided, Rs. 19,601,555 has been funded
(previous year Rs 17,480,791) and Rs. 7,234,527 (previous
year Rs. 1,736,607) has been paid to the staff at the time of
separation.

Balance Remarks
15.07.2012

24,375,000 As per IAS 39,
the impairment
provision on
AFS equity
investment is
charged to
Profit and Loss
Account.

- As per IAS 39,
the reversal
of impairment
provision in
AFS equity
investment to
be reversed
in Investment
Adjustment
Reserve.
1,626,300 Balance
reported as
Other Reserves

8. Unpaid Dividend
As on the balance sheet date, unpaid dividend for over five
years amounts to NPR 3,420,702. The Bank published a
notice in national daily detailing the information about the
unclaimed dividend on 16th August, 2013.

Financial statements and notes

Tax demands (including interest) amounting to Rs. 294.10
Lakhs for the assessment year 2006-07 (2063-64 BS) are
pending final outcome of the appeals filed by the Bank. The
Bank believes that these demands are largely unsustainable
and accordingly no provisions have been made.

Total Available For Sale (AFS)
Investments

Balance
15.07.2013
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9 Paid up Share Capital
Paid up share capital of the Bank has moved over the years
as follows:
Financial Year

Cumulative Paid Remarks
up Capital Rs.

1987-88 (2044-45 BS)

30,000,000

1990-91 (2047-48 BS)

50,000,000

Balance
15 Jul
2012

Movement
during the
year

Fixed Assets

39,567,825

2,065,385

41,633,210

Gratuity Provision

23,764,826

(882,756)

22,882,070
8,668,677

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Performance bonus

Opening Share Capital at
Rs. 60 paid up
Capitalisation of Reserve
Rs. 100 paid up

8,775,565

(106,888)

Provision for investment
impairment

7,312,500

(5,512,500)

1,800,000

Premium on Development Bond

5,340,246

1,073,495

6,413,741

84,760,962

(3,363,264)

81,397,698

1992-93 (2049-50 BS)

100,000,000

Issuance of 100% Bonus Shares

1994-95 (2051-52 BS)

150,000,000

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

1996-97 (2053-54 BS)

225,571,800

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

1997-98 (2054-55 BS)

339,548,800

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

2002-03 (2059-60 BS)

374,640,400

Issuance of 10% Bonus Shares

Impact of Deferred tax on
Investment Adjustment Reserve
Transferred to Reserve

2005-06 (2062-63 BS)

413,254,800

Issuance of 10% Bonus Shares

Net – Deferred Tax Asset

2006-07 (2063-64 BS)

620,784,000

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

2007-08 (2064-65 BS)

931,966,400

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

2008-09 (2065-66 BS)

1,398,483,600

Issuance of 50% Bonus Shares

2009-10 (2066-67 BS)

1,610,168,000

Issuance of 15% Bonus Shares

2011-12 (2068-69 BS)

1,853,900,000

Issuance of 15% Bonus Shares

10. Provision for Taxation
a. Current & Deferred Tax
Current tax has been provided for in the books as per
the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058 and Rules thereon
prevailing as on the year end. Following table details the
calculation of Income Tax provisions for the current financial
year:
Particulars

Amount
(Rs. ‘000)

Profit before Tax

1,741,996

Permanent
Difference

Depreciation

(5,072)

(5,072)

Repairs & Maintenance

11,957

11,957

Gratuity

(2,943)

(2,943)

(356)

(356)

Premium on Development Bond

3,578

3,578

Dividend Income & refund

6,186

Provision on Investment

3,000

Miscellaneous
Total

(1,330)

(1,330)
4,856

Current & Deferred Tax @30%

527,105

Net Tax charge for current year

524,056

3,000

1,757,016

10,164
3,049

b. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between
the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax bases of
assets/liabilities using an effective tax rate of 30.00%.
The items attributable to deferred tax assets and liabilities
and their movement are as follows:

-

-

6,412,500
84,760,962

3,049,236

81,397,698

The deferred tax impact up to last year Rs. 1,855,216 has
been adjusted in the opening balance of retained earnings
while movement of current year Rs. 3,049,236 has been
credited to the profit and loss account. Net debit impact has
been accounted in Deferred Tax Reserve and Deferred Tax
assets respectively.

i. Ultimate Parent Company : Standard Chartered Plc

Temporary
Difference

6,186

Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities

11. Related Party Disclosures
a. Related Parties and the nature of their
relationship with the Bank are given below:

Adjustment for tax purposes
(presented on net basis)

Performance Bonus

Balance
15 Jul 2013

ii. Major Shareholders
(a) Standard Chartered Grindlays Ltd, Australia: Holding
50% of shares
(b) Standard Chartered Bank, UK: Holding 25% of shares
iii. Related parties with whom transactions have occurred
during the current year.
a. Head Office and Branches of Head Office
1. Standard Chartered Bank, UK
2. Standard Chartered Bank, India
3. Standard Chartered Bank, Japan
4. Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore
5. Standard Chartered Bank, USA
6. Standard Chartered Bank, Germany
7. Standard Chartered Bank, Indonesia
8. Standard Chartered Bank, Qatar
9. Standard Chartered Bank, South Korea
10. Standard Chartered Bank, U.A.E
11. Standard Chartered Bank, Bangladesh
12. Standard Chartered Bank, Bahrain
b. Subsidiaries of Head Office (Standard Chartered Bank UK)
1. Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited
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2.
3.
4.
5.

Scope International Private Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (China)
Standard Chartered Bank MLY BHD

iv. Key Management Personnel compensation
1. Total of Key Management Personnel Compensation
NPR 39,811,823
a) Short Term Employee Benefits — NPR 37,696,921
(Salary, Allowance, PF)
b) Post Employment Benefits — NIL
c) Other Long Term Benefits — NIL
d) Termination Benefits — NPR 2,114,902 (Gratuity)
e) Share Based Payment — NIL
Additional information:
a) Key Management Personnel includes 4 expatriate staff.
(Existing - 3, repatriated - 1)
b) Key Management Personnel are also provided with the
following benefits:
i) Benefits as per Staff Service Bye-laws,
ii) Bonus to local staff as per Bonus Act,
iii) Performance Bonus depending on performance of the
individual,
iv) Car Allowance as per Bank’s Car Scheme.
2. Apart from above Rs. 692,500 was paid as meeting fees
to the Directors in the financial year.

Balances at the year end
Transactions
Placements
Nostro Balances
Interest Receivable
Shared Service cost
Payable
Trade Contingents

7,819,194,000
1,477,517
37,642,446
7,838,324

4,493,605,213

-

13. Segment Reporting with description of
segments and methodology.
a. Segment Description
The Bank has disclosed its operations under the following
segments:
Activity

Consumer
Banking
(CB)

Consumer Banking serves retail customers
through the branch network and other
delivery channels. This segment raises
deposits from customers and makes
loans and provides other services to such
customers. This segment also includes
activities relating to credit cards, debit
cards, mortgage loans, auto loans,
SME segments and third party product
distribution. Exposures are classified under
Consumer Banking taking into account
the orientation, product, granularity and
individual exposure criteria.

Wholesale
Banking
(WB)

Local corporate financing, advances to
partnership firms, companies and statutory
bodies, which are not included under
Consumer Banking segments are reported
under Wholesale Banking.

Treasury

Treasury include foreign exchange, fixed
income, money market and derivative
transactions.

Others

Others include Corporate Real Estate
Services and other items not allocable in
the aforementioned Segments.
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Segment
Definition

Transactions during the year
Total SCB Group
141,906,973,000
85,394,607
26,456,897
617,594

3,009,064,000
592,718,101
14,811
-

The future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable
operating leases, where the bank is lessee is NIL.

The Bank being a subsidiary of an International Bank
avails of support services from its global support functions
governed by approved agreements. Foreign currency
funds have mainly been placed with Standard Chartered
Bank (SCB) network points. These funds are all under
the management of Standard Chartered Group with high
governance levels and acceptable country risks and returns.

Transactions
Placements
Interest on placements
Shared Service Center Costs
Training Fees

SCB
Subsidiaries

12. Operating Lease Commitment

b. Transactions & Balances

Following are the details of transactions and the end of
period balances:

H O & SCB
Branches
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b. Segment Accounting Policy
Segment revenues stated below are aggregate of net income reported by the
Bank under various heads. Segment results are determined after considering the
following inter-unit notional charges/recoveries.
i. Fund Transfer Pricing (FTP):Treasury gives notional interest benefits to other
segments for funds mobilised by the latter through deposits and similarly
charges notional interest to other divisions for funds utilised by them for lending
and investment purposes. Based on tenor of assets/liabilities and market
scenarios, Treasury calculates notional interest rates used for this purpose.
ii. Support costs (costs pertaining to Finance, HR, Corporate Real Estate
Services, Legal & Compliance, Corporate Affairs, Information Technology
etc) are allocated to CB, WB & Treasury segments based on Management’s
estimates of the benefits accruing to these segments for the costs incurred.
This is similar to the basis used for the internal management reporting.
c. Segmental Reporting
For the year ended 15.07.2013
Particulars
A Net Segment
Revenue
B Net Segment Results

Amount in’000
CB

WB

Treasury

Others

Total

1,452,014

855,758

457,452

3,222

2,768,446

898,926

462,986

404,768

(24,683)

1,741,996

C Profit before Tax

1,741,996

Provision for Tax

524,056

Net Profit

524,056
1,217,941

Segment Assets

12,297,577 11,257,197

21,445,916

630,411

45,631,100

Segment Liabilities

21,997,913 15,386,717

2,334,717

5,911,753

45,631,100

-

-

Capital Expenditure to
acquire Fixed Assets
Depreciation
Contingent

2,147

788

978,840 13,781,803

13,617

3,298,345

35,097

18,094,084

16,551

		

For the year ended 15.07.2012
Particulars
A Net Segment
Revenue
B Net Segment Results
C Profit before Tax

CB

WB

Treasury

Others

Total

1,213,421

1,082,895

341,566

1,136

2,639,018

635,467

753,480

290,680
                      

(4,119)

1,675,508
1,675,508

506,540

506,540

638,959

41,677,052

2,664,673 3,842,002

41,677,052

Provision for Tax
Net Profit

1,168,968

Segment Assets

10,770,393

Segment Liabilities

21,470,596 13,699,781

Capital Expenditure
to acquire Fixed
Assets
Depreciation

		

8,956,303 21,311,397

670

-

-

3,081

3,751

20,813

1,978

909

-

23,700

*FTP has been adjusted for Nepali calendar years.
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14. Details of Lending/Investment qualifying as
Deprived sector lending
NPR Mn
% of
total
Loans Requirement

Out
standing

S.No. Particulars
a.

As of 15th July 2013

802

4.04%

4.00%

b.

As of 15th July 2012

672

3.51%

3.50%

15. Concentration of Deposits, Loans & advances
and Contingents

17. Summary of Loans and Advances Disbursed,
Recovered and Principal and Interest Written-off
during the year:

Loans Disbursed
Loans Recovered
Loans Written-off
Interest Written-off

As at
As at
15th July 15th July
2013
2012

Balance
Received/
as at
(Withdrawn)
15.07.2012

Rs. In ‘000
Balance
as at
15.07.2013

Total deposits

Current and Margin
Accounts

12,184,521

2,426,964

14,611,485

b.

Total deposits of twenty largest
depositors
Total Deposit of a single largest
depositor
Percentage of deposits of twenty
largest depositors to total deposit of
the Bank
Percentage of highest single
depositor
Total Loans & Advances
Total loans & advances of twenty
largest borrowers
Total loans & advances to a single
largest borrower
Percentage of twenty largest
borrowers to total loans and
advances
Percentage of highest exposure in a
single largest borrower
Total Contingent Liabilities
Total Contingent to a single largest
customer
Highest exposure in a single largest
customer

Saving Account
Call Deposits
Fixed Deposits
Total

15,502,306
3,617,543
4,661,261
35,965,631

2,382,740
(373,862)
(935,020)
3,500,822

17,885,046
3,243,681
3,726,241
39,466,453

c.
d.

e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

j.
k.
l.
m.

Particulars
Branch
Adjustments
Accounts
Agency
Accounts

39,466

35,966

11,266

9,093

2,281

1,304

28.55%

25.28%

5.78%

3.63%

Particulars

23,138

19,829

9,793

6,696

2,008

916

a. Weighted average yield on loans and investments
& Cash balance
b. Average Cost of local currency deposits plus
borrowing after factoring CRR

42.32%

33.77%

8.68%

4.62%

18,094

12,981

727

1,343

4.02%

10.34%

Amount in’000

16. Reconciliation Status:

Total
<3
>3<9 > 9<12
> 12
Amount Months Months Months Months
-

Particulars

-

-

-

-

556,934 554,393

2,541

-

-

The reasons for differences are fully identified and are being
addressed in regular course of business.

19. Weighted Average Interest Spread:

c. Spread (Yield -cost) i.e. c=b-a

Rate %
6.47
2.35
4.12

20. Particulars of Amortised Expenses yet to be
Expensed Off:
Rs. in ‘000
Particulars

Amount

Software Costs

-

Licence Fees

-

Premium on Development Bonds

20,164

Total

20,164

Financial statements and notes

a.

16,713,771
13,361,701
42,209
788

18. Summary of Changes in Deposit Liabilities :

NPR Mn

S.No. Particulars

Rs. In ‘000
Amount

Particulars
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21. Classification of Assets and Liabilities based on Maturity
Particulars

1-90 Days

91-180 Days

181-270 Days

271 Days -1 Year

Over 1 Year

Total

688

-

-

-

-

688

Assets
Cash Balance
Balance with Banks & Fis

5,717

-

-

-

-

5,717

Investment in Foreign Banks

1,794

3,837

1,229

959

-

7,819

Call Money

3,009

-

-

-

-

3,009

Government Securities

2,673

1,626

-

182

350

4,831

-

-

-

-

-

-

Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds
Inter Bank & FI Lending
Loans, Advances & Bills Purchased

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,345

2,573

1,661

1,575

10,985

23,138

Interest Receivable

5

27

4

2

4

42

Reverse Repo

-

-

-

-

-

-

Receivables from other Institutions under
Commitment

-

-

-

-

-

-

Payments under S.No. 20,21 & 22

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Assets

-

-

-

511

185

696

Total Assets

20,231

8,062

2,894

3,229

11,524

45,941

4,810

-

-

-

9,085

13,895

Liabilities
Current Deposits

-

Saving Deposits (Including call)

4,162

-

-

-

16,967

21,129

Fixed Deposits

1,976

390

656

555

149

3,726

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

-

-

-

-

Borrowings

-

-

-

-

-

-

Call/Short Notice

-

-

-

-

-

-

Inter-bank/Financial Institutions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Refinance

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other Liabilities and Provisions

Others

285

174

-

346

310

1,115

Sundry Creditors

180

-

-

-

-

180

Bills Payable

50

-

-

-

-

50

Interest Payable

56

-

-

-

-

56

Provisions

-

174

-

-

310

484

Others

-

-

-

346

-

346

Payable to other institutions under
Commitment

-

-

-

-

-

-

Irrevocable Loan Commitment

1,717

298

216

136

106

2,474

Letter of Credit/Guarantee (Net of Margin)

2,700

2,215

2,563

1,527

2,310

11,315

-

-

-

-

-

-

Repo
Payable under s.no.11
Others
Total Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

357

742

-

-

4,618

5,716

16,006

3,819

3,435

2,564

33,544

59,369

Net Financial Assets

4,225

4,243

(541)

664

(22,020)

(13,428)

Cumulative Net Financial Assets

4,225

8,469

7927

8,592

(13,428)

-
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Rs. in Mio

22. Borrowing by Bank against the collateral of own assets is Nil.
23. Details of Customer complaints
For the fiscal
year 2012/13

S.No.

Particulars

a.

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

NIL

b.

No. of complaints received during the year

243

c.

No. of complaints redressed during the year

239

d.

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

4

					

24. Penalties

There were no penalties paid by the Bank during the last two fiscal year to the
regulators i.e. NRB, Company Registrar’s Office, SEBON, NEPSE.

25. Dividend Refund
Under the instruction of Nepal Rastra Bank, Rural Micro Finance Development
Centre (RMDC) requested the Bank to refund the dividend distributed by RMDC for
the financial year 2009-10. The dividend refunded amounting to Rs. 6,445,465 has
been reported under extra ordinary item in the current year results.

26. Interest Realisation after Year End
Bank has not utilised the facility given in Unified Directive 4(5)(1) for accounting in
income the interest on customer loans and advances which were due as at end of
financial year and were collected within 15days of end of financial year.

27. Restatement of Previous Period Balances
Reference

Reported in
2011-12

Restatement

Reported in
2012-13

Sch 4.12

12,938,215,774

28,419,453

12,966,635,227

Sch 4.16

580,966,980

(28,419,453)

552,547,527

Sch 4.24

349,224,868

140,042

349,364,910

Sch 4.26

567,904

140,042

707,946

Reason
Change in the disclosure of
Treasury bills’ value
Change in the disclosure of
Operational Loss Recovery
amount

28. Country Governance Framework with Chart.
The diagram below illustrates the high level risk committee structure.

Audit
Committee
(Board Level)

Executive Committee
(MANCO)
Asset
Liability
committee

Country Risk Committee

Impaired Asset
Management
Committee

Early Alert
Accounts
Committee
WB

Early Alert
Accounts
Committee
SME

CB Credit
Governance
Committee

Pension
Executive
Committee

Risk
Committee
(Board Level)

Financial statements and notes

Board of Directors
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Schedule 4.34:

Statement of loan availed by bank’s promoter/
promoters’ group from other bank and financial
institutions by pledging their shares.
as on 15th July 2013 (31 Ashad 2070)							

S.No.

1
2
3
4
5

Name of
Promoter/
Shareholders
under Promoters’
Group

Shares under the
ownership of Promoter
Total no. of
shares

Percentage of
total paid up
capital

Description of Loan
Name of other bank/
financial institution from
which loan has been taken

Loan
amount Rs.

Remarks
No. of shares
pledged
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Schedule 4.35:

Comparison of Unaudited and Audited
Financial Statement as of FY 2069/70
S.
No.

Particulars

As per
Unaudited
Financial
Statement

As per
Audited
Financial
Statement

Variance in
Amount
In %

1
1.1

Total Capital and Liabilities (1.1 to 1.7)
Paid up Capital

45,940,632
1,853,900

45,940,632
2,039,290

(0)
(185,390)

-0.00%
-10.00%

1.2

Reserve and Surplus

3,505,234

2,578,284

926,950

26.44%

1.3
1.4
1.5

Debenture and Bond
Borrowings
Deposits (a+b)
a. Domestic Currency
b. Foreign Currency
Income Tax Liability
Other Liabilities

39,466,453
28,083,757
11,382,697
1,115,045

39,466,453
28,083,757
11,382,697
1,856,605

(741,560)

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
-66.50%

45,940,632
6,404,999
3,009,064
12,753,518
23,138,370
1,483,812
147,376

45,940,632
6,404,999
3,009,064
12,753,518
23,138,370
1,483,812
147,376

0
0
-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

1,336,437
3,979,406
2,451,181
10,233,322
4,990,650
81,518
553,163

1,336,437
3,979,406
2,451,181
10,233,322
4,990,650
81,518
553,163

-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

2,535,359
611,382
1,923,977
294,968
42,727
515,050
2,776,721
421,631
382,484
1,972,607
110,125
1,862,481
1,170
50,135
1,913,786
2,410
1,916,196
174,200
524,056
1,217,941

2,535,359
611,382
1,923,977
294,968
42,727
515,050
2,776,721
421,631
382,484
1,972,607
110,125
1,862,481
1,170
50,135
1,913,786
2,410
1,916,196
174,200
524,056
1,217,941

-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

1.6
1.7
2
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4

As per the proposed
appropriation of profit.
As per the proposed
appropriation of profit.

As per the proposed
appropriation of profit.

0.00%
0.00%

Financial statements and notes

Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7)
Cash and Bank Balance
Money at Call and Short Notice
Investments
Loans and Advances (a+b+c+d+e+f)*
a. Real Estate Loan
1. Residential Real Estate Loan (Except Personal Home Loan
upto Rs.10 million)
2. Business Complex and Residential Apartments Construction Loan
3. Income generating Commercial Complex Loan
4. Other Real Estate Loan (including land purchase and plotting)
b. Personal Home Loan of Rs. 10 million or Less
c. Margin Type Loan
d. Term Loan
e. Overdraft/ TR Loan/WC Loan
f. Others
2.5
Fixed Assets
2.6
Non Banking Assets
2.7
Other Assets
3
Profit and Loss Account
3.1
Interest Income
3.2
Interest Expense
A. Net Interest Income (3.1 - 3.2)
3.3
Fees, Commission and Discount
3.4
Other Operating Income
3.5
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net)
B. Total Operating Income (A+3.3+3.4+3.5)
3.6
Staff Expenses
3.7
Other Operating Expenses
C. Operating Profit Before Provision (B -3.6 - 3.7)
3.8
Provision for Possible Losses
D. Operating Profit (C -3.8)
3.9
Non Operating Income/Expenses (Net)
3.10 Write Back of Provision for Possible Loss
E. Profit from Regular Activities (D+3.9+3.10)
3.11 Extraordinary Income/Expenses (Net)
F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E +3.11)
3.12 Provision for Staff Bonus
3.13 Provision for Tax
G. Net Profit/Loss (F - 3.12 - 3.13)
* Loans and advances are shown on gross value.

NPR ‘000
Reasons for
Variance
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Schedule 4.35: Kha

Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
As at the end of Fourth Quarter (15/07/2013) of the Fiscal Year 2069/70 ( FY 2012-2013)
Rs. in ‘000

S. N.

Particulars

1
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
a
b
1.6
1.7
2
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4

2.5
2.6
2.7
3

Total Capital and Liabilities
Paid-up Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Debenture and Bond
Borrowings
Deposits (a+b)
Domestic Currency
Foreign Currency
Income Tax Liability (Net)
Other Liabilities
Total assets
Cash & Bank Balance
Money at Call and Short Notice
Investments
Loans and Advances
a. Real Estate Loan
1. Residential Real Estate Loan (Except Personal Home Loan upto Rs 10 million)
2. Business complex and residential apartments construction loan
3. Income generating Commercial Complex Loan
4. Other Real Estate Loan (including land purchase and plotting)
b. Personal Home Loan of Rs. 10 million or less
c. Margin Type Loan
d. Term Loan
e. Overdraft/ TR loan/WC loan
f. Others
Fixed Assets
Non Banking Assets
Other assets
Profit and Loss Account

3.1
3.2
A
3.3
3.4
3.5
B
3.6
3.7
C
3.8
D
3.9
3.10
E
3.11
F
3.12
3.13
G

Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Fees, Commission and Discount
Other Operating Income
Foreign Exchange gain / Loss (Net)
Total Operating Income
Staff Expense
Other Operating Expenses
Operating Profit Before Provision
Provision for Possible Losses
Operating Profit
Non Operating Income / Expense ( Net)
Write back of Provision for Possible Losses
Profit from Regular Activities
Extraordinary Income/ Expenses ( Net)
Profit Before Bonus and Taxes
Provision for Staff Bonus
Provision for Tax
Net Profit / Loss

4

Ratios

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8

Capital Fund to RWA
Non Performing Loan ( NPL) to Total Loan
Total Loan Loss Provision to Total NPL
Cost of Funds (LCY)
Credit to Deposit Ratio (as per NRB Directive)
Base Rate
Average Yield
Net Interest Spread

This Quarter
Ending
(Unaudited)

Previous
Quarter
Ending
(Unaudited)

Corresponding
Previous Year
Quarter Ending
(Audited)

45,940,632
1,853,900
3,505,234
39,466,453
28,083,757
11,382,697
1,115,045
45,940,632
6,404,999
3,009,064
12,753,518
23,138,370
1,483,812
147,376
1,336,437
3,979,406
2,451,181
10,233,322
4,990,650
81,518
553,163
Up to This
Quarter

44,333,919
1,853,900
3,118,573
100,000
38,255,115
26,261,760
11,993,355
(32,376)
1,038,706
44,333,919
2,726,362
6,352,290
13,143,098
21,573,643
1,369,223
173,354
1,195,869
3,816,492
2,462,077
9,478,630
4,447,222
79,386

41,929,593
1,851,693
2,270,476
35,965,631
26,322,310
9,643,321
1,841,793
41,929,593
6,366,233
2,126,035
12,966,635
19,828,509
1,658,141
97,718
1,560,423
2,820,153

2,535,359
611,382
1,923,977
294,968
42,727
515,050
2,776,721
421,631
382,484
1,972,607
110,125
1,862,481
1,170
50,135
1,913,786
2,410
1,916,196
174,200
524,056
1,217,941

1,844,309
464,102
1,380,207
194,537
30,918
360,935
1,966,596
315,579
274,807
1,376,210
81,089
1,295,121
135
39,691
1,334,946
(2,222)
1,332,725
121,157
363,470
848,097

At the End
of This
Quarter

At the End
of Previous
Quarter

14.48%
0.77%
174.61%
2.35%
67.80%
6.34%
6.48%
4.13%

14.34%
0.88%
154.32%
2.40%
69.50%
6.57%
6.28%
3.88%

459,140
Up to
Previous
Quarter

1,272,896
7,896,071
6,181,247
89,633
552,548
Up to
Corresponding
Previous Year
Quarter
2,870,971
1,007,199
1,863,772
267,766
38,355
468,557
2,638,450
386,823
349,365
1,902,262
208,251
1,694,011
708
190,918
1,885,636
(42,577)
1,843,059
167,551
506,540
1,168,968
At the End of
Corresponding
Previous Year
Quarter
13.93%
0.78%
163.47%
3.44%
59.53%
0.00%
7.36%
3.92%

Note: Loans and Advances includes Bills Purchased amount, figures are shown in Gross Value. Figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.
Above figures may change with the audited figures if modified by the External Auditors or the Regulators.
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Disclosure as per Bank’s disclosure policy
under the Capital Adequacy Framework of
Nepal Rastra Bank
1. Capital structure and capital
adequacy

Board and Senior Management
Oversight

a. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown
of its components;

Bank management is responsible for
understanding the nature and level of
risk taken by the Bank and relating
the risk to the capital adequacy level.
The Country Risk Committee (CRC)
reviews the Credit Risk, Operational
Risk, Market Risk and Reputational
Risk; analyzes the trend, assesses
the exposure impact on capital and
provides a summary report to the
Management Committee. The Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO) is
responsible for the management
of capital and liquidity and the
establishment of policies relating to
balance sheet management including
management of Bank’s liquidity and
capital adequacy.

Core Capital (Tier 1)
a
b
c
d
e
f

As on 15.07.2013
4,245,598,753

Paid up Equity Share Capital 1,853,900,000
Proposed Bonus Equity Share 185,390,000
Statutory General Reserves 2,113,706,954
Retained Earnings
31,367,725
Deferred Tax Reserve
81,397,698
Less : Deferred Revenue
Expenses
(20,163,624)

b. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown
of its components;
As on 15.07.2013
Supplementary
Capital (Tier 2)

a General loan loss provision
b Exchange Equalization Reserve
c Investment Adjustment Reserve

582,951,995
231,140,147
334,855,548
16,956,300

c. Detailed information about
the Subordinated Term Debts
with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity,
and amount raised during the
year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.
l

Not applicable.

l

Rs. 20,163,624.

e. Total qualifying capital;
l

Rs 4,828,550,748

f. Capital adequacy ratio;
l

12.54%.

g. Summary of the bank’s
internal approach to assess
the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future
activities, if applicable; and

With regard to Market Risk, the
Financial Markets Operations maintains
net open position of all currencies on
a daily basis. The net open position
report is also discussed at the ALCO.

Sound Capital Assessment
In order to ensure a sound capital
assessment process, all three risks
that have direct impact on the capital
adequacy level are managed in a
structured manner with clear roles and
responsibilities.
The management of risk lies at the
heart of the Bank’s business. Effective
risk management is fundamental
to being able to generate profits
consistently and sustainably and is
thus a central part of the financial and
operational management of the Bank.
Risk Management Framework
(RMF) sets out the bank’s approach
to risk management and the
control framework. Through our
Risk Management Framework, we
manage enterprise-wide risks with the
objective of maximizing risk-adjusted
returns while remaining within our risk
appetite.
Roles and responsibilities for risk
management are defined under a
‘three lines of defense’ model. Each
line of defense describes a specific set
of responsibilities for risk management
and control.
l

The First Line of defense is that all
employees are required to ensure
the effective management of risks
within the scope of their direct

Financial statements and notes

d. Deductions from capital;

In respect of operational risk it is
managed by CRC, which exercises
oversight of the Bank’s operational
risk exposures to ensure that it is
managed in a manner consistent with
the Risk Management Framework. The
responsibility for daily management
of Operational Risk exposures rests
with Consumer Banking (CB) and
Wholesale Banking (WB). Head of
Operational risk have been appointed
in both the business to ensure that
the Operation Risk (OR) framework is
implemented and that OR exposures
are effectively controlled. Finance
checks the capital charge on
Operational Risk.

Management Committee reviews
the inputs received from CRC and
ALCO and provides a synopsis to the
Board along with its view on the risks
exposure and the adequacy of capital,
for review and noting.
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organizational responsibilities.
Business and function heads are
accountable for risk management
in their respective businesses and
functions.
The Second Line of defense
comprises the Risk Control
Owners, supported by their
respective control functions. Risk
Control Owners are responsible
for ensuring that the risks within
the scope of their responsibilities
remain within appetite. The
scope of a Risk Control Owner’s
responsibilities is defined by a
given Risk Type and the risk
management processes that relate
to that Risk Type. The Second Line
is independent of the origination,
trading and sales functions to
ensure that the necessary balance
and perspective is brought to risk/
return decisions.
The Third Line of defense
comprises the independent
assurance provided by the Group
Internal Audit (GIA) function, which
has no responsibilities for any of
the activities it examines. Its role
is defined and overseen by the
Audit Committee. The findings
from GIA’s audits are reported
to all relevant management and
governance bodies – accountable
line managers, relevant oversight
function or committee and
committees of the Board. GIA
provides independent assurance of
the effectiveness of management’s
control of its own business activities
(the First Line) and of the processes
maintained by the Risk Control
Functions (the Second Line). As
a result, GIA provides assurance
that the overall system of control
effectiveness is working as required
within the Risk Management
Framework.

Credit Risk is managed through a
framework that sets out policies,
procedures and standards covering
the measurement and management
of credit risk. Credit policies and

standards are considered and
approved by the Board. Any exception
to the credit policies and standards
get escalated and approved by the
appropriate authorities as stipulated in
the policies and standards.
Operational Risk is managed through
Operational Risk Framework (ORF).
The Market Risk is managed in line
with the Bank’s market risk and
other related policies, giving due
consideration to the prevalent market
conditions.

Comprehensive assessment
of risks
The Country Risk Committee is
responsible for overseeing the
effective implementation of the Risk
Management Framework, including
the clear assignment of the roles
and responsibilities of Risk Control
Owners for the effective management
of risk throughout the Bank. Ultimate
responsibility for setting our risk appetite
and for the effective management of
risk rests with the Board.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential for loss
due to failure of counterparty to meet
its obligations to pay the Bank in
accordance with agreed terms. The
Credit Initiation and Approval Policy
and the Retail Lending Policy govern
the extension of credit to WB clients
and CB customers, respectively.
Each policy provides the framework
for lending to counterparties, global
account management, product
approvals and other product related
guidance, credit processes and
portfolio standards.
The WB Monitoring and Control Policy
and the CB Management Information
Systems and Reporting Framework
provide the outline for how credit risk
should be monitored and managed in
the Bank.
The Early Alert Committees (“EAC”) in
WB and Small and Medium Enterprise

(“SME”) are subcommittees of CRC.
They are responsible for identifying and
monitoring corporate and SME clients
showing potential signs of weakness
and/or may be exposed to higher
risks. The EAC reviews the existing
Early Alert (“EA”) portfolio and new
accounts presented to the committee.
Both committees meet on a monthly
basis.
The credit risk of individual
counterparties or groups of
connected counterparties as well as
at the portfolios of retail customers is
assessed and reviewed. The credit
risk management covers credit rating
and measurement, credit approval,
large exposures and credit risk
concentration, credit monitoring, and
portfolio analysis. All Corporate and
Institutional borrowers including SME
borrowers, at individual and group
level, are assigned internal credit
rating that supports identification and
measurement of risk and integrated
into overall credit risk analysis.

Operational Risk
Operational Risk is the potential for
loss arising from the failure of people,
process or technology or the impact of
external events. We seek to minimize
our exposure to operational risk,
subject to cost trade-offs. Operational
risk exposures are managed through
a consistent set of management
processes that drive risk identification,
assessment, control and monitoring.
Operational Risk Framework (ORF)
adopted by the bank provides
comprehensive risk management tools
for managing operational risk. The
Operational Risk Framework (ORF)
defines how risks are managed, how
Operational Risk policies and controls
are assured, how effective governance
is exercised as well as the key roles
required to manage the underlying
processes.
The Country Risk Committee,
chaired by the CEO, oversees the
management of operational risks
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across the Bank. Each risk control
owner is responsible for identifying
risks that are material and for
maintaining an effective control
environment across the organization.
Operational risk control owners
have responsibility for the control
of operational risk arising from the
management of the following activities:
people, technology, vendor, property,
security, accounting and financial
control, tax, legal processes, corporate
authorities and structure, and
regulatory compliances.
l

l

l

Market Risk
Risks arising out of adverse
movements in exchange rates, interest
rates, liquidity and equity are covered
under market risk management. We
recognize Market Risk as the potential
for loss of earnings or economic value
due to adverse changes in financial
market rates or prices. Our exposure
to market risk arises principally from
customer-driven transactions. In line
with capital framework prescribed by
NRB, the bank focuses on exchange
risk management for managing/
computing the capital charge on
market risk. In addition the interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and equity risk
are assessed at a regular interval to
strengthen market risk management.
The market risk is managed within the
tolerance limit set by the Board.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the
Bank either does not have sufficient
liquid financial resources available

to meet all its obligations as they
fall due, or can only access these
financial resources at excessive
cost. The Liquidity Risk Framework
governs liquidity risk and is managed
by ALCO. In accordance with that
policy, the Bank maintains a liquid
portfolio of marketable securities as a
liquidity buffer.

Other risks
In addition to the credit, operational
market and liquidity risk, the bank
identifies, assesses and monitors
strategic and reputational risks at a
regular interval. The Board maintains
the primary responsibility to establish
the strategic direction of the Bank.
It will develop its strategies, which
include a view on the forecast capital
position, in line with the Group’s
overall strategy. The Bank’s actual
performance to strategy is measured
on a continual basis at a more
granular level at MANCO but also
from an overall perspective by the
Board. The Country Risk Committee
and MANCO are also responsible for
the management of reputational risk.

Monitoring and Reporting
All risks, including credit, operational
and market risks are identified,
escalated, monitored and mitigated
to the satisfaction of the Risk Type
Owner. The Risk Type Owner is
responsible for ensuring that risks
are adequately identified, escalated
monitored and mitigated. The bank
has adequate system for monitoring
and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the changing risk
profile affects the need for capital.
The Country Risk Committee
reviews and assesses the credit risk,
operational risk, reputational risk,
market risk, etc and provides a report
to the Management Committee.

Internal Control Review
The Bank is committed to managing
risk and controlling its business and
financial activities in a manner which
enables it to maximize profitable
business opportunities, avoid or
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The governance structure of OR is as
follows:
l Operational Risk governance
ensures consistent oversight across
all levels regarding the execution
and effectiveness of Operational
Risk Framework (ORF).
l Operational risks are identified and
graded at the business/unit level.
Mitigating controls are put in place
and progress monitored.
l Respective Risk Controls Owners
approve all risk levels identified by
the business/unit level. These risks
are reported in phoenix and tabled
in Business/Function Operational
Risk Committee (BORC/FORC).
l Business/Function Operational
Risk Committees (BORC/FORC)
and the risk control owners ensure
the effective management of
Operational Risk throughout the
business/ functions in the country
in support of the Group’s strategy
and in accordance with the Risk
Management Framework.
l BORC/FORC (as a committee)
assign ownership, require actions
to be taken and monitor progress
of risks identified, in addition
to confirming the risk grading
provided at the business/unit level.
l Country Risk Committee (CRC)
ensures the effective management
of Operational Risk throughout the
country in support of the Group’s
strategy and in accordance with
the Risk Management Framework.
l Country Risk Committee (CRC)
accepts operational risks arising

in the country that have residual
risk ratings which are above ‘Low’
on the country materiality scale,
provided the residual risk rating is
low on the Group materiality scale.
Risks categorized as Medium,
High or Very High on the Group
materiality scale are reported to
the Country Risk Committee (CRC)
for endorsement and escalated
to Group Business Operational
Risk Committees (BORCS) and
Group Operational Risk Committee
(GORC) for acceptance.
The Business / Function
Operational Risk Committees
(ORCs) at Regional level oversee
operational risks within businesses
and functions across the Region.
The Group Operational Risk
Committee (GORC) oversees
operational risks at Group level.
Process Governance Committee
(PGC) provides global oversight of all
material operational risk arising from
a given end-to-end product, client or
control processes to ensure that they
are identified and controlled.
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reduce risks which can cause loss
or reputational damage, ensure
compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and enhance resilience to
external events.
The effectiveness of the Bank’s
internal control system is reviewed
regularly by the Board, its
committees, Management and
Internal Audit. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system during the FY
2068/69 and reported on its review
to the Board. The Internal Audit
monitors compliance with policies
and standards and the effectiveness
of internal control structures across
the Bank through its program of
business/unit audits. The Internal
Audit function is focused on the areas
of greatest risk as determined by a
risk-based assessment methodology.
Internal Audit reports regularly to the
Audit Committee. The findings of all
adverse audits are also notified to the
Chief Executive Officer and Business
Heads for immediate corrective
actions.

b. Summary of the terms,
conditions and main features
of all capital instruments,
especially in case of
subordinated term debts
including hybrid capital
instruments.
l

Bank has fully paid equity shares as
qualifying capital.

2. Risk exposures
a. Risk weighted exposures for
Credit Risk, Market Risk and
Operational Risk
RISK WEIGHTED
As on
EXPOSURES
15.07.2013
A Risk Weighted Exposure 34,321,757,628
for Credit Risk
B Risk Weighted Exposure 3,941,996,068
for Operational Risk
C Risk Weighted Exposure
244,468,593
for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted
38,508,222,289
Exposures (a+b+c)

b. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk
No. Particulars
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Claims on govt. and central Bank
Claims on other official entities
Claims on Banks
Claims on corporate and securities firm
Claims on regulatory retail portfolio
Claim secured by residential properties
Claims secured by commercial real state
Past due Claims
High risk claims
Other Assets
Off Balance sheet Items
Total

c. Total risk weighted exposure
calculation table;
l

Please refer Schedule 4.30 (Kha),
4.30 (Ga), 4.30 (Gha) and 4.30 (Nga)
of the financial statements for details.

d. Amount of NPAs (both Gross
and Net)
l

Restructure/Reschedule Loan
NIL
Substandard Loan
n Gross value Rs. 86,079,036,
Net values Rs. 64,559,277
Doubtful Loan
n Gross value Rs. 68,634,393,
Net value Rs 34,317,197
Loss Loan
n Gross value Rs. 22,554,769,
Net value: NIL

l

l

l

e. NPA ratios
l

Gross NPA to gross advances
0.77 %
Net NPA to net advances
n 0.43 %

RWE as on
15.07.2013

10,250,094,808
553,170,000
12,561,862,588
10,215,177,210
3,923,237,459
3,213,097,088
2,656,603,274
231,085,437
1,822,703,065
649,153,666
18,968,361,235
65,044,545,830

789,877,500
8,813,372,909
9,895,039,080
2,942,428,094
1,939,536,513
2,656,603,274
312,713,037
2,588,220,116
505,423,681
3,878,543,423
34,321,757,628

in Loan Loss Provisions of Rs.
56,990,889.
Year on year downward movement
in Interest suspense of Rs.
9,563,828.

i. Details of additional Loan
Loss Provisions
l

n
l

In NPR

Claim As on
15.07.2013

Provisions due to growth in the
volume have been added. No major
additional provisions have been
made.

i. Segregation of Investment
Portfolio into Held for Trading,
Held to Maturity and Available
for Sale
Investment Portfolio Net Amount(NPR)

Held For Trading
Held To Maturity
Available For Sale

NIL
12,650,092,740
103,425,500

n
l

f. Movement of Non Performing
Assets
l

Year on year upward movement of
Rs. 22,782,151

g. Write off of Loans and
Interest Suspense
l

Loans Write off during the year
is Rs. 42,209,047 and interest
suspense charged off during the
year is Rs 6,596,215.

h. Movements in Loan Loss
Provisions and Interest Suspense
l

Year on year upward movement

3. Risk Management Function
a. For each separate risk area (Credit,
Market and Operational risk), banks
must describe their risk management
objectives and policies, including:
l
l

l

l

Strategies and processes;
The structure and organization
of the relevant risk management
function;
The scope and nature of risk
reporting and/or measurement
systems; and
Policies for hedging and/or
mitigating risk and strategies,
and processes for monitoring the
continuing effectiveness of hedges/
mitigants.
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Credit Risk Management strategies include
effectively managing the risk of financial
loss arising out of booking an exposure
on counterparty and also ensuring
independence of the Credit Risk function
from the origination, trading and sales
function.
Credit risk under both Consumer
Banking and Wholesale Banking is
managed through a defined framework
which sets out policies, procedures and
standards covering the measurement
and management of credit risk. There
is a clear segregation of duties between
transaction originators in the businesses
and the approvers in the Risk functions.
All credit exposure limits are approved
within a defined credit approval authority
framework.
A standard alphanumeric credit risk
grade system is used for quantifying the
risk associated with the counterparty for
corporate and institutional clients (including
SME). The grading is based on our internal
estimate of probability of default over a one
year horizon, with customers or portfolios
assessed against a range of quantitative
and qualitative factors. The numeric grades
run from 1 to 14 and some of the grades
are further sub-classified A, B or C. Lower
credit grades are indicative of a lower
likelihood of default. Credit Grades 1A to
12C are assigned to performing customers
or accounts, while credit grades 13 and 14
are assigned to non-performing or default
customers.

The independence of the Risk function is
effectively maintained to ensure that the
necessary balance in risk/return decisions

Credit function in Consumer Banking
uses standard application forms which
are processed in central units and credit
approval process is guided by Credit
Approval Document (CAD) and Credit
Operating Manual. The probably of default
is calculated using portfolio delinquency
flow rates and judgement, where
applicable.
There are risk officers in both Consumer
Banking and Wholesale Banking
businesses. They have their primary
reporting line into the Group functional
level. Credit approval authorities are
delegated by Country Risk Committee to
individual risk officer in WB and CB based
on their judgment and experience. We
have a manual approval process in CB
(other than SME) and on-line approval
process in WB and SME, CB.
The scope and nature of risk reporting
and/or measurement procedures
are covered in the Country Portfolio/
Underwriting Standards approved by the
Board, CAD and Credit Operating Manual
specific to each business and other Group
level policies & procedures adopted after
the Board approval. The Country Risk
Committee chaired by the CEO, reviews
the portfolio exposure, portfolio quality,
country level risk triggers, etc on a bimonthly (once in two months) basis.
Country Portfolio/Underwriting Standards
and CAD / Credit Operating Manual
outlines the Bank’s policies and processes
for hedging and/or mitigating and
monitoring risk. We regularly monitor
credit exposures, portfolio performance
and external trends including political
and economic trends that may impact
risk management outcomes. Internal risk
management reports are presented to
the Country Risk Committee containing
information on key environmental, political
and economic trends, portfolio delinquency
and loan impairment performance.
Corporate accounts or portfolios including
SME portfolio in Consumer Banking are
placed on early alert when they display

signs of actual or potential weakness or
financial deterioration. Such accounts
and portfolios are subjected to a
dedicated process overseen by Early
Alert Committees. Client account plans
and credit grades are re-evaluated. In
addition, remedial actions are agreed and
monitored. Remedial actions include, but
are not limited to, exposure reduction,
security enhancement, exiting the
account, or immediate movement of the
account into the control of Group Special
Assets Management (GSAM), our special
recovery unit.
In Consumer Banking portfolio,
delinquency trends are monitored
continuously at a detailed level. Individual
customer behavior is also tracked
and considered for lending decision.
Accounts that are past due are subject
to a collections process, managed
independently by the Risk Function.
Charged-off accounts are managed by
specialist recovery teams.
Collateral is held to mitigate credit risk
exposures and risk mitigation policies
determine the eligibility of collateral types.
Collaterals which are eligible for risk
mitigation and valuation of the same are
reviewed every year. Portfolio Standards
also prescribe the frequency of valuation
for different collateral types. Collateral held
against impaired loans is maintained at
fair value.
The Country Risk Committee which has
been formed by and receives authority
from the Management Committee is
responsible for ensuring the effective risk
governance and management of credit,
reputational, market, operational risk, etc
throughout the bank.

b. Types of eligible credit risk
mitigants used and the benefits
availed under CRM.
As on
No. Credit Risk Mitigants
15.07.2013
1 Deposits with Bank
1,092,282,643
Deposits with other
2 banks/FI*
118,310,000
3 Govt. & NRB Securities
260,726,611
G’tee of Domestic
4 Banks*
Sec/G’tee of Foreign
5 Banks*
5,536,468,406
Total
7,007,787,660

* net of supervisory haircut
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In addition to nominal aggregate exposure,
Loss Given Default is used in the
delegation of credit approval authority and
must be calculated for every transaction to
determine the appropriate level of approval.
Significant exposures beyond the authority
of Credit Officers in both WB and CB are
approved by CEO on behalf of Country
Risk Committee after support from the
respective credit risk function at the Group
level. The SCB Nepal Board delegates its
authority to approve credit, market and
other risks exposures (“Risk Authorities”) to
the Management Committee for onward
delegation of these Risk Authorities to the
Country Risk Committee.

is not compromised by short term
pressures to generate revenues. This is
particularly important given that revenues
are recognized from the point of sale while
losses arising from risk positions typically
manifest themselves over time.
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Nepal Rastra Bank’s Approval and Directions
As per the decision, an approval is granted to distribute the cash dividend of Rs. 741,560,000 (40 percent of the paid up
capital) and bonus share of Rs. 185,390,000 (10 percent of paid up capital) from the distributable profit of financial year
2069/70 to the shareholders upon approval of the same by the annual general meeting; consent is also given to publish the
financial statement and accompanying schedules for the purpose of annual general meeting. Bank to implement the direction
given below and publish the same in the annual report.
Details
To take steps to address the issues identified by the auditor including the one mentioned below and build processes around to
ensure so that they are not repeated in future.
•

Payment of Stale/Post dated cheque having difference of amount in figures and in words.

99

Five years Financial Summary
Balance Sheet
(figures in Rs. thousands)

Particulars

2065-66

2066-67

2067-68

2068-69

2069-70

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

3,137,164

1,929,307

2,975,795

6,366,233

6,404,999

Assets
Cash and Bank Balance
Money at Call and Short Notice

2,055,549

1,669,460

4,280,888

2,126,035

3,009,064

Investments

20,236,121

19,847,511

17,258,682

12,966,635

12,753,518

Loans and Advances

13,679,757

15,956,955

18,427,270

19,575,968

22,828,838

Fixed Assets

137,293

118,540

106,071

89,633

81,518

Other Assets

820,687

691,547

761,812

552,548

553,163

Total Assets

40,066,570

40,213,320

43,810,520

41,677,052

45,631,100

Liabilities
Borrowings
Deposits

300,000

-

350,000

-

-

35,350,824

35,182,721

37,999,242

35,965,631

39,466,453

Other Liabilities

1,363,277

1,660,889

1,783,500

1,589,253

1,547,073

Total Liabilities

37,014,101

36,843,610

40,132,743

37,554,883

41,013,526

931,966

1,398,484

1,610,168

1,610,168

1,853,900

Shareholders Fund
Paid Up Capital
Proposed Bonus Shares
Reserve (including Exchange Reserve)
Undistributed Profit

465,983

209,773

-

241,525

185,390

1,415,025

1,731,489

2,023,202

2,261,536

2,546,917

239,495

29,965

44,407

8,940

31,368

3,052,470

3,369,709

3,677,777

4,122,169

4,617,574

Letter of Credit

3,120,879

2,627,212

1,542,549

2,605,897

3,046,891

Guarantees

3,687,373

3,248,829

4,333,115

6,535,797

8,560,504

Forward Exchange Contracts

1,332,126

1,223,147

388,522

249,067

3,097,266

Other Contingent Liabilties

3,031,614

2,588,137

4,253,643

3,590,037

3,389,423

Total Contingent Assets

11,171,991

9,687,325

10,517,829

12,980,797

18,094,084

Total Shareholders Fund
Contingent Liabilities
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Five years financial Summary
Profit & Loss Account

(figures in Rs. thousands)

Particulars

Interest Income
Interest Expenses

2065-66

2066-67

2067-68

2068-69

2069-70

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

1,887,221

2,042,109

2,718,699

2,870,971

2,535,359

543,787

575,741

1,003,100

1,007,199

611,382

1,343,435

1,466,369

1,715,599

1,863,772

1,923,977

Commission and Discount

288,031

338,298

314,674

267,766

294,968

Other Operating Incomes

33,191

34,479

36,753

38,355

42,727

Net Interest Income

Exchange fluctuation Income

427,468

458,564

394,231

468,557

515,050

2,092,125

2,297,710

2,461,257

2,638,449

2,776,721

Staff Expenses

253,056

312,964

365,986

386,823

421,631

Other Operating Expenses

276,327

295,305

305,215

349,365

382,484

1,689,441

1,790,055

1,902,261

1,972,607

Total Operating Income

Exchange fluctuation Loss
Operating Profit Before Provision for Possible Loss
Provision for Possible Losses
Operating Profit
Non-Operating Income/ (Loss)
Provision for Possible Loss Written Back
Profit from Ordinary Activities
Income/(Expenses) from Extra Ordinary Activities
Net Profit after considering all Activities
Provision for Staff Bonus
Provision for Income Tax
Net Profit/Loss
Accumulated Profit up to Previous Year

1,562,743
56,635

76,974

82,739

208,251

110,125

1,506,108

1,612,467

1,707,316

1,694,010

1,862,481

22,098

36,268

6,445

708

1,170

101,075

58,293

67,159

190,918

50,135

1,629,282

1,707,028

1,780,921

1,885,635

1,913,786

(15,356)

(17,024)

(22,765)

(42,577)

2,410

1,613,926

1,690,004

1,758,156

1,843,059

1,916,196

146,721

153,637

159,832

167,551

174,200

442,091

450,496

479,153

506,540

524,056

1,025,114

1,085,872

1,119,171

1,168,967

1,217,941

383,288

239,495

22,033

44,407

10,795

1,025,115

1,085,872

1,119,171

1,168,967

1,217,941

1,408,402

1,325,366

1,141,204

1,213,375

1,228,736

General Reserve Fund

205,023

217,174

223,834

233,793

243,588

Proposed Dividend

465,983

769,166

805,084

724,576

741,560

Proposed Issue of Bonus Shares

465,983

209,773

-

241,525

185,390

31,918

21,381

18,104

47,691

27,971

77,908

49,775

(43,151)

(1,141)

This Year’s Profit
Capital Adjustment fund upto Previous Year
Total

Exchange Fluctuation Fund
Capital Adjustment Fund
Other Appropriations
Accumulated Profit/(Loss)

239,495

29,965

44,407

8,940

31,368

1,467,205

1,536,367

1,598,324

1,675,508

1,741,996

Return on Shareholder’s Fund

33.58%

32.22%

30.43%

28.36%

26.38%

Cost Income ratio

32.32%

33.16%

33.76%

34.25%

35.23%

2,615

2,531

2,609

2,757

2,683

1.10

1.11

1.39

1.21

1.31

Profit Before Tax

Profit per employee
Dividend Cover ratio
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Disclaimer
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited is an Equal Employment Opportunity/ Affirmative Action employers.
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited is committed to providing equal employment opportunities to every
employee and every applicant for employment, regardless of, but not limited to, such factors as race, color, religion,
sex, age, familial or marital status, ancestry, sexual orientation, veteran status or being a qualified individual with
a disability; within the legal framework of the country. Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited undertakes no
obligation to update any statement in this Annual Report 2012-2013 to reflect events or circumstances after the date
on which such statement is made. Information in this Annual Report is as of July 15, 2013.
Designed & Processed by: Print Communication, 4241355 Printed in Nepal
Bimal Pratap Singh
Company Secretary
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